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ABOUT THE COMPANY

Pinnacle West Capital Corporation, a Phoenix-based company, has consolidated

assets of approximately $7 billion. Pinnacle West's major subsidiary ls Arizona

Public Service, Arizona's largest electric utility, with?67,000 customers.

APS provides wholesale or retail electric service to the entire state with the

exception of Tucson and about one-half of the Phoenix area. Pinnacle West's

other two subsidiaries are SunCor Development Company, with some 13,400

acres of residential, commercial and industrial projects under development, and

El Dorado Investment Company, an investment firm with a diversified portfolio.

ABOUT THE COVER AND THIS ANNUAL REPORT

o There is a lot on our minds this year and on the minds of our shareholders,

customers and employees.
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INCOME HIGHLIGHTS

Operating Rcvcnues

Income From Continuing Operations

BALANCE SHEET HIGHLIGHTS

Total Assets

Common Stock Equity

PER SHARE HIGHLIGHTS

S 1,995,026

S 235,856

S 6,850,417

S 2,027,436

S 1,817,760 S 1,669,798

S 211,059 S 199,608

9.8% 8.9%

11.7% 5.7%

S 6,989,289 S 6,997,052 (2.0)% (0.1)%

S 1,970,323 S 1,881,087 2.9% 4.7%

Earnings Per Share from Continuing
Operations - Basic

Dividends Paid Per Share

Stock Price Per Share - Year-End

S 2.76

S 1.125

S 42.375

S 241 S 2.28

S 1.025 S 0.925

S 31.75 S 28.75

14.5% 5.7%

9.8% 10.8%

33 5% I0.4%

STOCK PERFORMANCE

Market Capitalization - Year-End

Total Return

Stock Price Appreciation

S 3,594,457

38.0%

33.5%

14.2%

10.4%

52.0%

46.5%

S 2,778,628 S 2,516,081 29.4% 10.4%
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TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

This is the last time I get to occupy this space. BillPost willhave his say here

next year after he takes over in February, but now the space is inine and I will
try to make the most of it.

These years at Pinnacle have, for me, been a great run in terms of achievement

and financial reward (the latter being due in no small part to my stock in the

Company). 1997 was another great year in that run: solid operational and

financial progress by the Company and handsome reward to its shareholders.

I believe the ground is laid for substantial progress and reward in the years to
come, and that is what I most want to'talk about here.

Before that we need to recognize how the run to date has come to pass. In
short: good people; demanding objectives; great perforinance; marketplace

recognition. And good luck that included a strong national economy, especially
in our part of the country.

Good people —not only in management, but throughout our operating units.
You willsee that elsewhere in this annual report. I am confident you willsee

it in the years ahead.

Demanding objectives —we started the decade with these: resolve the diversifi-
cation problems; get Palo Verde to run reliably; improve the regulatory rela-

tionship; contain costs; reduce debt; and restore the dividend. We later refined
those to these: continue to manage costs; optimize our assets; work with our
regulators; channel our cash flow efficiently; anticipate our customers'eeds;
control our commitments; and capture the future.

Great performance —without going into detail here, I would simply say that the
achievement by my co-workers is the source of great personal satisfaction to
me, and I hope to you as well.

Marketplace recognition —see the shareholder return graph on page 1.

The comparable graph going back to the start of the decade appears below.

Stock Performance

Comparlaon

(Cumulatlro Total

Return Percentagea)
200u

330'u

loon

333u

Plrhrcl< rrtu
EEI 100 El<rriiulrlrr
SaP 500 lr*r



Luck- thanks be to God. Growth in our part of the world would cover what-
ever mistakes we have made (which I am not going to confess to here).

The run to date willnotstop now. The people are in place. Theyknowwhat
needs to be done in all important areas: continuing cost and quality control;
planning and operational excellence; good relationships with governmental
institutions at state and federal levels; desired outcomes of electricity industry
restructuring; adaptation to economic and real estate cycles; strong customer
relationships; effective marketing; financial strength.

And they are setting objectives accordingly. The objectives of the future willbe
no less demanding than those of the recent past —probably more so. But while
the ultimate shape of the future may not be so clear, we are building from a

much stronger base tlran we had not so many years ago.

Their ability to perform is not in doubt with me. I believe you willsee continu-
ing performance with a tight focus on stated objectives —with no deviations from
course that have not been clearly signaled and explained well in advance (none
such being at hand) —though with allowance for the kind of corporate agility
that willbe necessary to excel in an uncertain world.

And with the performance should come continuing marketplace recognition.
Some of the elements for investor analysis and forecast are well in place:

~ Top-line growth —sales growth continues to be strong and, while it cannot
last forever at the same pace and while it is moderated by rate decreases, we
continue to be (in the words of an industry observer whom we regard as very
astute) "a high-growth company in a low-growth industry."
~ Bottom-line leverage —we have not run out ofcost containment ideas and will
continue to employ them to lever the revenue growth at the operating income line.
~ Asset optimization —we have quietly become a superior operator of generation
plants and developer of real estate as discussed elsewhere in this report; that
means we are getting more out of our fixed asset base and this should continue.
~ Cash flow—strong, due among other things to recent rate settlements which
include rapid amortization of regulatory assets, manageable capital requirements,
and solid real estate and other cash-producing operations.



~ Dividend policy —annual increases at a relatively consistent dollar amount
which willcontinue dividend growth at a pace well above the industry average

but at a payout ratio well below the industry average.
~ Balance sheet —pay down debt (and preferred stock at APS) and increase

common stock equity to 50 percent of total capitalization by around the year 2000.
~ Focus —a tight, unyielding one on shareholder value.

We acknowledge that the marketplace has a question or two about how and

when the electricity industry is going to be restructured in Arizona. So do we

(and to those we would add some questions about the national scene).

In Arizona we have in recent years a good record ofworking with our regulators,
and this willstand us in good stead as we move forward, notwithstanding
changes in composition of the Arizona Corporation Commission and its staff.

The Legislature is approaching the issues in a responsible manner, as is the
Governor's office. I personally believe that we and the state willcome out of this

fine (as I define that term below), taking into account:

~ current unsettled conditions within the Commission
~ the possibility (probability?) of action by the people of the state on an

amendinent to the Arizona constitution to resolve legal issues associated

with restructuring
~ differences between investor-owned utilities in the state as to their individual
financial and other requirements that affect their desired outcomes from the
restructuring process
~ significant differences between those investor-owned utilities and their public
power brethren in the state
~ different opinions about a host of other issues including the timetable for
competition.

I did not mention stranded investinent and terms for the recovery thereof.

Fortunately, regulatory assets, which would have accounted for our largest expo-
sure before the 1996 rate settlement, were recognized and covered by that settle-

ment and are being ainortized on an accelerated basis. Any other stranded invest-

ment would be an issue which we willpress hard. But more important to us, and

bearing on the definition of how we come out of this epic as "fine," are these:

~ Willthe regulatory/legislative outcoines realistically allow all parties
concerned (ourselves for sure) to meet customer expectations for the cost and

quality (including reliability) of their electricity needs?
i Willthere be a reasonable degree of parity on which industry participants
compete?
~ Willgeneral tax policy in Arizona, and other jurisdictions where we may
compete, adequately and in a fair and timely manner be adapted to accommodate

competition?
~ Willgeneration become truly free from regulation (as contrasted to distribu-
tion and transmission which presumably willremain subject to state and federal

regulation into an indefinite future —a subject we willhold for a later day)?
~ Willthe authorities refrain from unnecessary intrusion into business dynamics
such as vertical integration?



Just so there is no misunderstanding, we cast a strong "yes" vote on each of
those questions. Coming out "fine" in Arizona means that enough people in
authority vote the same way.

Coming out "fine" in the nation's Capitol means more or less the same, plus
Congressional authorization of reciprocity across state lines. It also means

considerable clarification of antitrust policies regarding consolidation within
the electric utilityindustry (including, but by no means limited to, formation
of independent system operators) and environmental policies regarding plant
ernissions (including greenhouse gas emissions of the sort considered at Kyoto).

I mention antitrust because of its importance to any participation by us in future
industry consolidation. Our position, repeatedly confirmed to anyone who asks,

is that we are not going to stray far from the business in which we are now
engaged. That ineans we are limitingany major expansion in the foreseeable

future to our electricity business. That in turn means acquisitions of companies
or assets devoted to tliat business.

As to companies, we liave not been smart enough to figure their intrinsic values in
currently unsettled restructuring and political enviromnents. Now, we have even

more concern about unsettled conditions in the antitrust field and don't intend to
tie ourselves up for any lengthy period awaiting settlement of those conditions.

As to assets, we have not yet seen transactions in our part of the country at prices
we consider reasonable.

As to being on the other side of an acquisition transaction at the right price,

my telephone number is 602-379-2600. BillPost's is 602-250-2588. Ifyour
interest goes to real estate, John Ogden's is 602-285-6880. But don't bother
to call unless your offer (a) clearly beats the value we can achieve ourselves and

(b) is assured of unconditioned governmental clearance within a reasonably short
period of time. (Several years ago we received a series ofpublicly announced offers

which failed both of those tests, and a comparison of subsequent performance by
the utilitytlrat made the offers to our own perfonnance is quite informative.)

I mention Billand John, because they and their cohorts are your future with this

Company. Their co-leaders in management are nained on page 45 of this

report, and they in turn are supported by people I know and trust.

It has been a real privilege to work with them and for you. Looking ahead to

February of next year, I thank you for the privilege. In the meantime I willbe

in there swinging from the heels.

Sincerely,

Richard Snell

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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The Company Is producing exceptional value for shareholders and

customers as It navlgates the complex transition to competition.

High growth In Its markets, continued price reductions for electricity
customers, excellent operational and financial performance and

success In new emerging markets were all part of a strong 1.997.

Current strategies are designed to continue increasing shareholder

value and to achieve competitive advantage.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Shareholder Value: Pinnacle West continued to generate excellent

total returns to shareholders —38 percent in 1997- substantially

above the industry average. These returns were reflected in the

Company's market value that increased during the year by inore than

$815 million to nearly $3.6 billion. For the five-year period 1993 to

1997, the Company's total return to shareholders was 144 percent,

which ranked second among all electric companies.

Earnings Growth: Basic earnings per share from continuing operations

were $2.76 per share in 1997, up 14.5 percent over 1996. The prima-

ry factors contributing to this improvement were: 1) customer growth
of approximately four percent for Arizona Public Service, almost four
times the national average; 2) two fuel-related settlements which low-
ered fuel costs; 3) continuing successful efforts to reduce operating

costs; 4) lower financing costs resulting from lower interest rates and

reduced amounts of outstanding debt and preferred stock; and 5) thc
benefits of the stock repurchase program completed around mid-year..
SunCor Development and El Dorado Invesunent also contributed to
earnings growth by reporting combined earnings of $ 13.5 inillion, a

$9 million increase over 1996.

Cost Reductions: Enhancing profitability, utilityoperations and

maintenance cxpenscs were down $ 31 million, or seven percent, duc

primarily to a $ 32 million pretax charge recorded in the fourth quar-

ter of 1996 for a voluntary severance program and related savings in
1997. Savings would have been greater except for incrcascd cxpcnscs

for marketing initiatives and new information systems incurred in

preparation for competition.
Common Stock Dividends: In October, the common stock dividend

incrcascd by nine percent to $ 1.20 per share annually. At that tilne,
the Company reiterated its dividend policy ofannual increases at a

growth rate well above the industry average. In general, the Company

would like to maintain dividend payout ratios under 50 percent.

Cash Flow: Strong cash flow provided increased financial flexibility.
APS'et cash flow, after dividends to the parent, was approximately

116 percent of its capital expenditures. SunCor and El Dorado

together paid dividends of$50.5 million to Pinnacle West during the

year. The consolidated cash flow facilitated further reductions in out-

standing debt and preferred stock and the purchase of approximately

2.7 inillionshares of Pinnacle West's coininon stock.

Credit Quality Improvement: Standard 8: Poor's, one of the principal

credit rating agencies, upgraded APS'irst mortgage bond rating to

A- from BBB+.
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REGULATION AND COMPETITION
The 1997 financial results were accomplished within the paramctcrs

of the 1996 regulatory agreement with the Arizona Corporation

Commission (ACC), which included ainong thc provisions thc
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acccleratcd amortization ofapproxiinately $ 1 billion ofAPS'egulatory
assets over an eight-year period. During 1997, the effects of the-

agrecment included a full year of the 3A pcrccnt price decrease effec-

tive in July 1996, a half year of the 1.2 percent price decrease instituted

inJuly 1997 and the additional amortization ofapproximately $ 120

million (before income taxes) of regulatory assets. While this agree-

ment scrvcd to dampen current year earnings growth, the long-tenn

impact is to better position APS for increased competition in the elec-

tricitybusiness. The Company's perfonnance has produced three elec-

tricityprice decreases since mid-1994, and in March 1998 it filed for a

1 percent decrease to be effectiv July 1998, subject to ACC approval.

Restructuring the legal, regulatory and economic framework of thc

electricity supply business is complex. The Company's goal is to actively

provide leadership, technical knowledge and expcricncc to these under-

takings to optimize the outcome for shareholders and customers.

Federal

At the federal level, a wide variety of bills have been proposed rebted
to clcctric industry restructuring, both comprehensive and with
stand-alone provisions. In 1997, five committees held twenty-one

hearings with hundreds ofwitnesses —representatives of this Company
included. As Congress comes to grips with the complexity of the

issues, a possible "electricity bill"faces a crowded agenda that
includes tax reform, Social Security and thc budget. Outcomes at thc
fcdcral level are critical to thc industry, and the Company willactively

participate in resolving such policy issues as subsidies to govermncnt-

operatcd entities and the linkage ofglobal cliniate and cnviromncntal
concerns with industry restructuring.

State
Arizona has an uncommon regulatory structure with separate branches

ofgovernment having authority over utilities. As prescribed by the

state constitution, the ACC has broad powers to regulate invcstor-

owned utilities such as APS. The state legislature has certain powers

over govermnental clcctricity providers. Fairly integrating both
government-operated and investor-owned electricity providers into a

competitive marketpbce is among the largest public policy challenges

facing thc ACC and the legislature.

The Company is working to insure that the rules willbe the same for
all competitors. In order to achieve constructive resolution of these

very important issues, the Company believes additional ACC rules, leg-

islation and amendmcnts to the Arizona Constitution willbe required

before full and fair retail electric coinpetition can occur in Arizona.

A niajor step in the restructuring process took place in December

1996 when the ACC cstablishcd framework rules for competition.
The ACC also recognized that certain issues would require additional
consideration prior to implementation ofcompetition.

During 1997, the ACC held "workshops" to gather input from vari-

ous constituencies with respect to legal issues; stranded costs; bundled

and unbundled services; reliabilityand safety; the pliase-in process;

and independent system operator and spot market development.
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In February 1998, the ACC completed the only formal competition
hearing to date that focused on stranded cost detertnination.

Stranded Costs

Although stranded cost is only one of the important transition issues

which must be addressed prior to the opening ofcompetitive mar-

kets, the Company has made significant progress in the last several

years to reduce costs, thus substantially reducing the amount of
APS'otentialstranded costs. Based on various assumptions, projections

and methodologies, APS currently estimates that its stranded costs to
be recovered (excluding regulatory assets that have already been

addressed by the ACC) willbe less than $500 million. However, deci-

sions by the ACC have not yct been made on thc methodology and

underlying factors to be used, and significant work remains to be

completed by regulators on this and other issues prior to the start of
competition. The Company is seeking full recovery ofstranded costs

during a transition period to go through 2006.

Arizona Leglsiation

I'ollowing a two-year study by a joint legislative committee, a bill was

introduced in the Arizona legislature to provide'electric generation

competition at the end of 1998. The Arizona House of Representa-

tives approved this legislation in February 1998; however, it inay be

amended prior to final approval. The primary components of this

proposed legislation relate to promoting consistent statewide compe-

titiono setting rules for govermncnt-operated utilities and addressing

taxation issues.

Legislative and ACC activities with respect to industry restructuring

are important determinants of future operating results. The Company
looks forward to the resolution of these critical issues and the oppor-

tunity to co'mpetc in new markets, while it continues to anticipate

existing customer needs; to achieve operational excellence; and to

produce high shareholder value.

This rcport contains considerable inforination on the evolving

industry and the company's assessments of public policy in its various

stages of fortnulation. In this regard, readers are urged to review

thc Chairinan's Letter to Shareholders beginning on page 2, as

well as the sections on "Regulatory Agreements" on page 23 and

"Competition and Industry Restructuring" on page 24.
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OUTLOOK

Plans call for continuing to develop a greater prcscncc in the gener-

ation, transmission, distribution and power retailing businesses, and

to pursue opportunities that are related to these activities within
the western states and with Mexico. International investments and

situations in other regions of the U.S. are not among primary
managcinent strategies.

The Company's strong financial condition and operational excellence

arc the foundation for future earnings growth and competitiveness.

Thc Company also expects to continue benefiting from the excellent

growth characteristics of its retail market area. (See graph to the

right.) Sclccted 1997 economic statistics for the state follow.

~ Population growth —3.6 percent, four times the national average.

~ Job growth -4A percent, two tiines the national average.
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< Personal income growth —7A percent, compared with 5.8 percent

for the United States.
~ Unemployment rate -4.5 percent, versus a national rate of
5 percent.
~ In the Phoenix metropolitan area —29,100 single-family residential

housing permits, the second highest level in the nation and the

highest in the area's history.

Opcrauonally, customer retention and growth prograins, combined

with ongoing efforts to improve profitabilityand productivity, are

cxpccted to contribute positively to future earnings.

Partially offsetting these positive earnings factors willbe the full-year
iinpact of the 1997 electricity price reduction of 1.2 pcrccnt, the

expected effect of a proposed 1998 electricity price reduction, and

potential further price reductions.

A inain component of the Company's financial flexibilityis strong free

cash flow. The parent coinpany expects to have in excess of$200 mil-
lion available in 1998, and a slightly lower amount in 1999, to cover

its growing dividend; to make $50 million equity investtncnts into
APS each year; and for other discretionary purposes, such as debt

reduction. The Company's dividend payout ratio is well below the

national industry average. The Company anticipates earnings and

cash contributions from SunCor and El Dorado to continue, although
real estate market cycles and stock market volatilitymay affect year-

to-year results.

Managing the effects ofnew compeuuve markets and regulatory struc-

tures on capital and operating expenditures willcontinue to be a signifi-
cant challenge. The Company willcontinue focusing significant atten-

tion on cost management and cash flow strategies to provide financial

strength and flexibilityand to support the Company's businesses.

Competition requires that financial strategies reflec the uncertainty
of the future. To reflec its increasingly competitive cnvironlnent, the

Company intends to employ its free cash flow to continue iinproving
its financial strength primarily by further reducing outstanding debt
and preferred stocL Financial objectives call for common equity
ratios of about 50 percent for APS and for the consolidated company

by the year 2000. At December 31, 1997, these ratios were about 44

percent, which over the last five years have iinprovcd from 35 percent
for APS and from 30 percent for the consolidated group.
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GENERATION HIGHLIGHTS
APS is one of the leading electricity generation operators in the
11-state Western Systems Coordinating Council area. The graph
(bottom left) indicates that, based on generation owned or operated

for others, APS is the second largest investor-owned electricity gener-

ator in the western United States and the fourth largest overall. As

evident in the graph above, these resources are competitive, ranking
about the middle of large utilities on the basis of production cost per
kilowatt-hour. Further analysis indicates that APS'eneration has the

second lowest average production cost in the southwestern states.

Based on its current position in the lnarket, APS is well positioned to

capture market share through its generation resources, which the

Company believes willbe competitive at expected market prices.

APS'ower plant operations were outstanding during 1997. For the

fourth year in a row, the three Palo Verde units combined to generate

more power than any other facility in the United States, and, for the

last three years, set national generation records. Refueling of Units 2

and 3 were each accomplished in 37 days, and established a new

company record for refueling outages by two days. Unit 2 achieved

a company record for continuous operation by running for 490 days

without interruption. The Institute ofNuclear Power Operations

awarded Palo Verde its second consecutive INPO 1, the highest rat-

ing available for operational excellence from this highly regarded

organization. Palo Verde continues to be one of the premier nuclear

power plants in the world, achieving a capacity factor ofapproximately

91 percent for 1997. This performance compares very favorably with
the industry average of approximately 72 percent.

In 1997, the coal plants operated at an average capacity factor of
almost 75 percent, compared with a national average for the industry

of about 60 percent. The Company's goal is to increase the capacity

utilization of the coal plants by maintaining high availability levels

and minimizing production costs.

Current operations also benefited from two fuel-related settlements

negotiated in 1997. The settlements boosted pretax earnings by

approximately $21 million in 1997 and are expected to produce annual

fuel cost savings ofabout $ 10 million pretax for the next several years.



POWER MARKETING
The Bulk Power Marketing and Resource Operations Department is

responsible for meeting native load rcquircments and for managing
the risk associated with energy and fuel cost fluctuations. Further,
this group is actively involved in the natural gas markets and in trad-

ing emission allowances. With increased competition, these activities

are critical to the success ofAPS'perations. APS significantly
increased its presence in this business in late 1996 after implementa-

tion ofstrict management controls including the creation of the

Energy Risk Management Committee, which oversees the depart-
ment's daily operations. Thc Company expects to benefit from these

activities by managing asset risk and through future earnings contribu-
tions. With 1997 being the first fullyear of the new power marketing
operations, wholesale sales increased significantly, but earnings were

approximately the same as 1996 due to the low margins in the market.

CUSTOMER FOCUS

As it works to strengthen its competitive position in the West with
open competition approaching, APS remains focused on maintaining
its position as the largest energy provider in Arizona and on manag-

ing growth in its market area. Under the banner, "The Power To
Make It Happen," neiv APS marketing programs are being imple-
mented to enhance customer loyalty.

"Service Commitment" and "Service Solutions" are examples of
APS programs to maintain excellent service standards and to
strengthen customer relationships. Service Commiunent sets rigorous
customer service objectives rclatcd to service calls and non-weather

rclatcd power restoration guarantees. Service Soluuons provides

homebuilders with one-stop shopping for installation ofunderground
utilitics. Now in its third year of operation, Service Solutions is

managing and coordinating the complete installation or relocation

ofall electric, telephone, cable and water facilities at a number of
projects in Arizona.

NEW PRODUCTS

Capturing new sources of earnings that complement the Company's

core operations is an ongoing objective throughout the organization.

Late in 1997, APS and NorvikTraction Inc. reached an exclusive

agrceinent to globally market state-of-the-art electric battery charg-

ing systems. The APS/Norvik alliance capitalizes on APS'attery
expertise and Norvik's fast-charging technology. The turnkey charg-
er-battery services and support willallow airlines to utilize zero-ernis-

sions electric vehicles. APS installed thc first system for Southwest

Airlines at the Phoenix airport in 1997 and willinstall another system

for Southwest at Tulsa, Oklahoma, and the new Ontario, California,
airport in 1998. APS is currently in negotiations with other airlines

and airports to provide this product.

APS'lliance with Honeywell to provide home security products is

ongoing and is managed by Axiom Power Solutions. Axiom was

established to market energy management products and services as

well as home security systems. New Products and Services, an APS

division, is also managing the development of technology and soft-
ware that willallow homeowners to inanagc their energy costs
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through a home's existing electrical wiring. A pilot project employing
this technology is planned for 1998.

NEW MARKETS
With deregubtion of the California clcctricity market in 1997, APS

moved to capture ncw customers. Through a Sacramento Municipal
Utilities District program, APS was the first U.S. company to provide
cornpctitivc retail electricity services in California. Two other notable
California transactions arc APS'greement with Albcrtson's to supply
power to 150 grocery stores and the agreement with the Association

of Bay Area Governments to serve as its billingagent. In February
1998, APS was sclccted as energy provider for a California-based

ARCO unit, which produces oil from the fourth largest field in the

continental United States.

In Arizona, APS cntercd into agrccmcnts with a number of munici-

palities to provide customer services. Such services include taking off-
hours and weekend overflow calls for flie City of Glendale at the APS

Customer Solutions Center, accepting City of Phoenix water bill
payments at the APS Paradise Valley customer office and having the

City of Phoenix accept APS payments at its downtown Water
Deparuncnt oflice.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SAFETY PROGRAMS
The Company has high standards for environmental, health and safety

perforinancc. APS endorses a tcn-point Code of Conduct established

by the Coalition for Environmentally Responsible Economies

(CERES). The CERES Principles require public accountability and

reporting in regard to specific environmental achievements and goals,

and an APS Environincntal, Health and Safety Annual Report is

available to the public upon request. One environmental highlight
was APS'aunch in October 1997 ofArizona's first commercial sobr
power plant in Fbgstaff. Duc to market response, APS is doubling
the output from the Flagstaff facilityand is expanding the program
statewide, including the anticipated spring 1998 inauguration of a

commercial plant in thc Phoenix metropolitan area. This plant will
operate at APS'olar technology research center in Tempe.

Several operational areas posted record safety performance in 1997,

and the Company is very plcascd that 1997 was overall the safest

year on record for APS workers. The Company's philosophy is that

nothing is more important than thc safety of employees, and the goal

is nothing less than accident-free operations.

SUNCOR DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

One of the Southwest's premier real estate developinent companies,

SunCor is a master-planned cominunity developer, commercial

developer, homebuildcr and resort and golfmanagement company.

By leveraging its expertise and strengths and by taking advantage of
select opportunities, SunCor continues its strategies to iinprove

overall profitabilitywhile building value,'ontrolling conunitinents
,I

and providing cash to thc parent.

Some 13,400 acres are currently under„development by SunCor in

its master-planned communities and commercial projects. Nearly
two-thirds of SunCor's assets are invested in six inastcr-planned

communities. Its commercial and industrial properties owned directly



or through joint ventures and partnerships include approximately

350,000 square feet of industrial and office space and over 820,000

square feet of retail space. SunCor also manages a world-class,

Mobil Five-Star resort, six championship golfcourses and three

family-fun parks.

SunCor reported net income of$5.3 million for 1997, compared

with $4.2 million for the previous year. It contributed $38 million of
dividends to the parent company, up $ 11 million from the previous

year, and at year-end had $403 million in book value assets.

SunCor purchased Golden Heritage Homes in 1996 in order to
incrcasc profitabilityby further augmenting and integrating its

development process, and plans have been implemented for Golden

Heritage to be the primary homcbuilder in SunCor communitics.

SunCor's existing master-planned community properties are

described below:

Palm Valley consists of 9,000 acres west of Phoenix. Within Palm

Valley there is a SunCor residential project; a 2,200-acre adult golf
community being developed by Robson Communities called PebbleCrcek;

Wigwam Resort hotel property, which SunCor manages; championship

golfcourses; a retail outlet center; schools; and medical facilities. The
18-acre Palin Valley Markctpbce shopping center was opened in 1997

anchored by a Safeway supermarket. The first major movie complex in

the area is scheduled to open in 1998. SunCor is participating in a

joint venture to expand into the aparunent market with an apartment

complex ofmore than 260 units.

In New Mexico just outside Santa Fe, Rancho Viajo is SunCor's newest

conununity. Begun in 1996 when SunCor entcrcd into a joint venture

with thc owners of a large tract, Rancho Viejo has thc potential to be a

21,000-acre, master-planned conununity. SunCor is developing the

project in phases and its capital invesunent at risk willbe minimized.

The first phase is 2,500 acres with Golden Heritage Homes as the

homebuilder, and a inodel opening for late 1998 is planned. SunCor

and its partners have dedicated one-half of the property to open space.

Tatum Ranch, in North Phoenix is nearly built out. Allremaining
finished lot inventory is under contract.

In the foothills north of Scottsdale, thc Scottsdale Mountain project
is in its bst phase. The project, which was purchased in 1991, has

proven to be a signature project displaying SunCor's commitment to

quality while providing a high return on invesunent.

SunRldge Canyon, northeast ofPhoenix in Fountain Hills, continues

to produce high value while rccciving considerable attention in the

market due to a championship golfcourse which is the centerpiece

of the community and which is ranked in the top 50 nationally by
'olf

pagan ne.

Dcvelopmcnt continues at Sedona Golf Resort, 90 miles north of
Phoenix in famous red rock country. Production homes from Golden

I.Ieritagc, along with 62 custom homesites that by any standards would

bc called extraordinary, willbe available in 1998. The golfcourse's

reputation for challenge and beauty has earned it the title of"Most

Exotic Course" from Arizona's brgest newspaper.



I.Iighlights for SunCor's conunercial projects in 1997 include activity
at Tempe Autoplcx at MarketPlace, which became the home for the

American debut of Korean auto giant Daewoo, and Driver's Mart,
the newest concept in pre-owned car sales. At 105 acres, the Tempe

Autoplcx is the largest master-pbnned auto mall in the Southwest.

The success of this auto mall fueled the development of a second

Autoplcx at SunCor's Palm Valley community.

SunCor recently completed its first speculative industrial building
at Talavl, its business park in Glendale, west ofPhoenix. The new

building is designed to meet thc growing and changing needs of
Valley businesses.

EL DORADO INVESTMENT
The short-tenn goal of thc Company's invesunent subsidiary is to
convert its venture capital portfolio to cash as quickly and as advanta-

geously as possible. To that end, in 1997, El Dorado was able to
realize gains by selling all or part of its interests in several companies.

Similar activity is cxpectcd in 1998. Long term, the Company may
use El Dorado, when appropriate, as its subsidiary for new ventures

that are strategically close to the Company's principal business of
generaung, distributing and marketing electricity.

In 1997, El Dorado earned $8.2 million compared with SOB million
for the previous year. It returned $ 12.5 million of cash to the

parent in 1997.

At the end of 1997, El Dorado's book value assets totaled $34.5

million, most ofwhich were in direct invesunents and venture capital

partnerships. Holdings include a 49 percent interest in NAC
International, a company that specializes in nuclear spent fuel storage

and transportation technology, as well as nuclear fuel cycle and

international energy policy consulting. Atlanta-based NAC, founded

in 1968, serves more titan 200 clients worldwide.

In addition, El Domdo has a 22 percent interest in the Phoenix

Suns professional basketball team and a much smaller interest in the

Arizona Diamondbacks, a professional major-league baseball team.

The Diamondbacks just began play in March 1998 in a brand new

stadium in downtown Phoenix in the heart of APS'etail market area.



SELECTED CONSOLIDATED DATA

(Dollars in Tbonsonds, Esaps Pss Sbnrs srsnonnss) 1996 1995 1994 1993

OPERATING RESULTS

Operating revenues
Electric
Real estate

Income from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations-

net of income tax (d)
Extraordinary charge for early

retirement ofdebt - net
of income tax (c)

Cumulative effec ofchange in
accounting for income taxes (I)

Net income

COMMON STOCK DATA

S 1,878,553
116)473

$ 235,856

$ 235,856

S 1,718,272 S 1,614,952 S 1,626,168 S 1,602,413
99,488 54,846 59,253 32,248

$ 211,059(a) S 199,608 S 200,619(b) $ 169,978(c)

(9,539)

(20,340) (11,571)

19 252

$ 181,180 S 188,037 S 200,619 S 189,230

Book value per share - year-end

Earnings (loss) per average common
share outstanding

Continuing operations - basic
Discontinued operations
Extraordinary charge
Accounting change

Net income - basic

S 2.76 S 2.41(a) S 2.28 S 2.30(b) S 1.95

(0.11)
(0.23) (0.13)

0.22

S 2.76 S 2.07 S 2.15 S 2.30 S 2.17

$ 23.90 $ 22.51 S 21.49 S 20.32 $ 18.87

Continuing operations - diluted
Net income - diluted

S 2.74
S 2.74

S 2.40(a) $ 2.27 S 2.29(b) S 1.94

S 2.06 S 2.14 S 2.29 S 2.16

Dividends declared per share
Indicated annual dividend rate-

year-end

S 1.125 S 1.025 $ 0.925 S 0.825 S 0.20

S 1.20 S 1.10 S 1.00 S 0.90 S 0.80

Average common shares outstanding

TOTAL ASSETS

85,502,909

S 6,850,417

87,441,515 87,419,300 87,410,967 87,241,899

S 6,989,289 S 6,997,052 S 6,909,752 S 6,956,799

LIABILITIESAND EQUITY

Long-term debt less current maturities S 2,244,248
Other liabilities 2 407 572

4,651,820 4,800,293 4,847,404 4,864,774

S 2,372,113 S 2,510,709 $ 2,588,525
2 428 180 2 336 695 2 276 249

S 2)633)620
2 282 508

4,916,128
Minorityintcrcsts

Non-redeernablc prcferrcd stock
ofAPS

Redeemable preferred stock ofAPS

Common stock equity

TOTAL LIABILITIESAND EQUITY

142,051

29,110

2 027 436

S 6,850,417

165,673
53,000

193,561

75,000
193,561

75,000
193,561

197,610

I 970 323 I 881 087 I 776 417 I 649 500

S 6,989,289 S 6,997,052 S 6,909,752 S 6,956,799

(a) Includes an after tax charge of$ I8.9 million ($0.22 pcr share)
for a voluntary severance program and approximately 5 I2 rnil-
lion ($0.13 per share) of income rax benefits related to capital
loss carryforwards.

(b) Includes after-rax Palo Verde Unit 3 accretion income of
approximately $20.3 million and a non-recurring income rax
benefit of$26.8 million ($0.31 per share) related ro a change in
rax law.

(c) Includes afrer-rax Palo Verde Unit 3 accretion income of
approximately $45.3 million.

(d) Charges associated with rhc sctrlcment ofa legal matter related
ro MeraBanL, A Federal Savings BanL

(e) Charges associated with the repayment or refinancing of the
parent company's high-coupon debt.

(I) Results of the adoption of rhc liabilitymethod ofaccounting for
income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109.



(Dolloro o'n TbouoonCh, Zroopo Por Sbnro orinounoU 1996 1995 1994 1993

ELECTRIC OPERATING REVENUES

Residential
Commercial
Industrial
Irrigation
Other

S 744,952
687,165
164,456

8,733
11 860

S 721,219 S 672,794 S 675,418
677,731 652,171 632,454
161,636 156,666 166,606

9,495 9,571 10,548
12 825 12 626 12 730

S 627,732
610,730
169,154

9,246
11 794

Total retail
Sales for resale
Transmission for others
Miscellaneous services

1,617,166
226,828

10,295
24 264

1,582,906
98,560
10,240
26 566

1,503,828
86,510
9,390

15 224

1,497,756
95,158

9,506
14 440

1,428,656
119,385

7,979
25 019

Electric operating revenues
Retail rate refund reversal

Net electric operating revenues

ELECTRIC SALES IMWI1)

1,878,553

S 1,878,553

1,718,272 1,614,952 1,616,860 1,581,039
9 308 21,374

S 1,718,272 S 1,614,952 S 1,626,168 S 1,602,413

Residential
Commercial
Industrial
Irrigation
Other

7,970,309
8,524,882
3,123,283

112,363
86,090

7,541,440
8,233,762
3,039,357

121,775
84,362

6,848,905
7,768,289
2,933,459

119,580
78,478

6,873,300
7,456,049
2,926,318

132,340
76,827

6,247,002
7,040,026
2,890,859

111,902

75,175

Total retail
Sales for resale

Total electric sales

ELECTRIC CUSTOMERS - END OF YEAR

19,816,927
9233 573

29,050,500

19,020,696 17,748,711 17,464,834
3 367 234 2 720 704 2,764 223

16,364,964
3,685,736

22,387,930 20,469,415 20,229,057 20,050,700

Residential
Cornrncrcial
Industrial
Irrigation
Other

680,478
81,246

3,192
764
851

654,602
78,178

3,055
841

828

625,352
75,105

2,913
837
786

603,989
72,740

2,976
897
762

578,718
70,516

3,061
880
764

Total retail
Sales for resale

Total electric customers

766,531
50

766,581

737,504
48

704,993 681,364 653,939
39 44

737,552 705,032 681,408 653,979

See "Financial Review" on pages 22-25 for a discussion ofcertain information in the foregoing table.

QUARTERLY STOCK PRICES AND DIVIDENDS

Stock Spnboh PNW
DIVIDENDS

PER

HIGH LOW CLOSE SHARElal 1996 HIGH

DIVIDENDS
PER

LOW CLOSE SHARElbl

1st Quarter
2nd Quarter
3rd Quarter
4th Quarter

32 7/8 30 1/8 30 1/8 $ 0.275 1st Quarter
30 3/4 27 5/8 30 1/16 $ 0.550 2nd Quarter
34 7/8 29 13/16 33 5/8 $ — 3rd Quarter
42 3/4 33 3/16 42 3/8 $ 0.300 4th Quarter

30 1/4 26 1/4 28 7/8 $ 0.250
30 3/8 26 1/4 30 3/8 $ 0.500
30 28 29 5/8 $ 0.275
32 1/4 29 1/2 31 3/4 $

(a) Dividends for the 3rd quarter of 1997 were declared in June.

(b) Dividends for the 3rd and 4th quarters of 1996 were declared inJune and September, respectively.



FINANCIAL REVIEW

The followingdiscussion relates to Pinnacle West and its
subsidiaries: APS, SunCor and El Dorado. The discus-
sion also relates to the discontinued operauons ofMera-
Bank, A I'cdcral Savings Bank. References to "Notes"
refer to Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

1997 Compared with 1996
Pinnacle West reported net income of$235.9 inillion
in 1997 compared with $ 181.2 million in 1996. The
following is a suminary:

ITbousruds of Dollars)

Income from continuing
operauons

Loss from discontinued
operations-
net of income tax

Extraordinary charge for early
retirement ofdebt - net of
income tax

Nct income

1996

$ 235>856 $ 211>059

(9,539)

20 340

$ 235 856 $ 181,180

Earnings from continuing operations increased by $24.8
million (11.7%) primarily because of increased earnings
at the subsidiaries and lower financing costs at the par-
ent company resulting from debt reduction and lower
interest rates. The 1996 loss from discontinued opera-
tions related to remnants ofMeraBank legal matters.

APS'997 earnings increased $ 12.3 million (5.4%) over
1996 earnings primarily because ofcustomer. growth; a

$32 millionpretax charge in 1996 for a voluntary sever-
ance prograin; two fuel-related settlements; and lower
financing costs. These positive factors more than offset
the cffccts ofAPS'996 regulatory agreement with the
Arizona Corporation Commission (ACC), which during
1997 resulted in approximately $60 inillionofadditional
regulatory asset amortization and a $35 million revenue
dccrcasc caused by two retail price reductions. See Note
3 and "Results ofOperations —Regulatory Agree-
ments" below for addiuonal information about the 1996
regubtory agrceinent. In 1996, APS «Iso recognized $ 12

millionof income tax benefits, which were not repeated
in 1997.

Electric operating revenues increased $ 160 millionpri-
marily because of increases in sales for resale ($ 128 mil-
lion); customer growth ($58 million);and weather
effects ($7 million).As inentioned in the preceding
paragraph, these positive factors were partially offset by
a $35 million revenue decrease caused by retail price
reductions. Sales for resale are wholesale electricity sales
to third parties who resell the electricity to their cus-
tomers. The increase in sales for resale was a result of
increased activity in competitive bulk power markets.
The increase in sales for resale did not significantly
affect earnings because itwas substantially offset by
higher power purchases.

(Thou>rods ofDollrss) 1995

Income from continuing
operations

Loss from discontinued
operations-
net of incoine tax

Extraordinary charge for early
retireinent of debt - net of
income tax

Nct income

$ 211,059

(9,539)

20 340

$ 181,180

$ 199,608

11 571

$ 188,037

Excluding the effects of the discontinued operations and
extraordinary items, the Company's 1996 earnings
increased $ 11.5 million (5.7%) over 1995 earnings. This
increase reflects increased earnings at APS and lower
financing costs at the parent company due to continued
debt reduction and lower interest rates.

APS'996 earnings increased $5.9 million (2.7%) over
1995 earnings primarily because ofcustomer growth
and higher residential usage; weather effects; tax and
interest savings; and a $ 21 millionpretax write-down of
certain assets in 1995. These posiuve factors more than
offset the effects ofAPS'996 regulatory agreement
with the ACC, which during 1996 resulted in $60 mil-
lion ofadditional regulatory asset amortization and a

Thc two fuel-related settlements increased 1997 prctax
earnings by approximately $ 21 inillion.These scttle-
mcnts are reflected in the Consolidated Statcmcnt of
Income as reductions in fuel expense and as other
income. Approximately $ 16 millionof the settlcinents
related to years prior to 1997 and $ 5 million related to
1997. For at least thc next several years, the total annual
savings from the settlemcnts are expected to be about
$ 10 million before income taxes. APS does not have a

fuel adjustment clause as part of its retail rate structure.
As a result, changes in fuel and purchased power
expenses are reflecte in current earnings.

Operations and maintenance expenses were lower in
1997 because of the charge for the voluntary severance
program recorded in 1996 and related savings in 1997.
These savings were partially offset by increased expenses
for marketing, information technology and power
plant maintenance.

APS'inancing costs decreased $ 12 millionduring 1997
because of lower amounts ofoutstanding debt and
preferred stock.

SunCor reported net income of$5.3 million in 1997
compared with $4.2 million in 1996.

El Dorado reported net incoine of$8.2 million in 1997
coinpared with $0.4 million in 1996 as a result of invest-
ment sales in 1997.

1996 Compared with 1995
The Company reported net income of$ 181.2 million
in 1996 compared with $ 188.0 million in 1995. The
following is a summary:



$30 million revcnuc decrease caused by a retail price
reduction. See Note 3 and "Results ofOpcrations-
Regulatory Agrccmcnts" below for additional informa-
tion about the 1996 regulatory agreement.

Other important factors that nude the coinparison of
APS'996 earnings with 1995 earnings less favorable
were a $32 million pretax charge for a voluntary sever-
ance program; the recognition in 1995 of a $5 million
after-tax gain on the sale ofa small subsidiary; and
increased fuel expenses of$56 million"priinarilybecause
of increased retail and wholesale sales, higher natural
gas costs and higher coal prices.

Electric operating revenues increased $ 103 millionpri-
marily because of retail customer growth and higher
residential usage ($75 million);weather effects ($40 mil-
lion); increases in sales for resale ($9 million); and other
($9 million). As mcntioncd above, these positive factors
were partially offset by a $30 million revenue decrease
caused by a retail price reduction.

Taxes other than income taxes dccrcascd $21 million
primarily because ofa change in property tax law.
Income tax expense was lower because ofAPS'ecogni-
tion of$ 12 millionof income tax benefits associated
with capital loss carryforwards.

APS'inancing costs decreased $ 12 millionduring 1996
because of lower average intcrcst rates and lower
amounts ofoutstanding debt and prcfcrred stocL

SunCor reported net income of$4.2 million in 1996

compared with $4.1 million in 1995. Increased real
estate revenues and operating expenses were the result
of the acquisition ofGolden Heritage Homes in 1996.

El Dorado reported nct income of$0.4 million in 1996

compared with $8.5 million in 1995. The decrease

reflects investmcnt sales in 1995.

Regulatory Agreements
APS'esults ofoperations are affected, and willbe
affected, by the impacts ofexisting regulatory agree-
mcnts between APS and the ACC.

As part of the 1996 regulatory agreement with the ACC,
APS is recovering substantially all of its present regula-
tory assets through accelerated amortization over an

eight-year period that began July 1, 1996. See Note 3.
This accelerated amortization increases annual arnorti-
zation expense by approximately $ 120 million ($72 mil-
lion after taxes).

Also as part of thc 1996 regulatory agreement, APS
agreed to decrease retail prices effectiv July 1, 1996 by
approximately $48.5 millionannually ($29 million after
income taxes), or 3 4%. In addition, APS agreed to
share funire cost savings with its custorncrs tlirough
potential additional retail price reductions. Pursuant to
the agreed-upon price reduction formula, on July 1,

1997, APS reduced its retail prices by approxinutely
$ 17.6 millionannually ($ 10.5 niillionafter income
taxes), or 1.2%. Additionally, in March 1998, APS filed
with the ACC its calculation of an additional retail price

decrease ofapproxiinately $ 17 millionannually ($ 10

millionafter income taxes), or 1%, to become effective
July 1, 1998. The amount and timing of the price
decrease arc subject to ACC approval.

Thc factors that offset the earnings impact of the accel-
erated regulatory asset amortization and the 1997 and
1996 price decreases are discussed above in "Results of
Operations."

As part ofa 1994 settleinent with the ACC, APS acceler-
ated amortization ofsubstantially all deferred invest-
ment tax credits (ITCs) over a five-year period that ends
on December 31, 1999. The amortization ofITCs
decreases annual consolidated income tax expense by
approximately $24 million. See Note 4.

CAPITAL NEEDS AND RESOURCES

Parent Company
The parent company reduced its debt as follows: 1997,
$45 million; 1996, $60 million;and 1995, $ 119 million.
The parent company has a $250 million line ofcredit,
under which borrowings of$ 155 millionwerc outstand-
ing at December 31, 1997. The parent company does
not have any debt repayincnt obligations until 2001.

During the past three years, thc parent company's
primary cash needs were for common stock dividends,
interest payments and optional and mandatory repay-
ment ofprincipal on its long-term debt. See Note 6. As
provided in the 1996 regulatory agreement (see Note 3),
the parent company invested $50 million in APS in 1997
and 1996 and willinvest similar amounts annually in
1998 and 1999. During 1997, the Company repurchased
$80 million ofcommon stock, resulting in a reduction of
2.7 millionshares outstanding at year-end.

Dividends from APS have been Pinnacle West's primary
source of cash. SunCor provided cash to the parent in
1997, 1996 and 1995. El Dorado provided cash to the
parent in 1997 and 1995. Both are expected to con-
tribute to Pinnacle West's cash flow in 1998. Tax alloca-
tion payments to the parent company from subsidiaries,
in cxccss ofpayments rnadc by the parent company to
taxing authorities, were an additional source of cash in
1997, 1996 and 1995, and are expected to provide addi-
tional cash in 1998.

APS

APS'apital requirements consist primarily ofcapital
expenditures and optional and mandatory redemptions
of long-term debt and preferred stock. APS funds its
capital requirements from cash provided by operations,
annual equity infusions from its parent company of$50

million from 1996 through 1999 (see Note 3), and, to
the extent necessary, external financing. During the
period 1995 through 1997, APS funded all of its capital
expenditures from cash provided by operations and

expects to do so in 1998 through 2000 as well.

During 1997, APS redeemed approximately $240 mil-
lion of long-term debt and $47 millionofpreferred
stock, including premiums, with cash from operations
and long- and short-term debt.
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APS'rojected capital expenditures for the next three
years are: 1998, $ 323 million; 1999, $313 million;and
2000, $ 306 million.These amounts include about $30-
$35 million each year for nuclear fuel. In general, most
of the projected capital expenditures are for expanding
transmission and distribution capabilities to meet cus-
tomer growth, for upgrading existing facilities and for
environmental purposes. In addition, APS is considering
expanding certain of its businesses over the next several
years, which may result in increased expenditures.

APS'onstructionplans through the year 2007 do not include
any major baseload generating plants.

APS'ong-tenn debt and preferred stock redemption
requirements and payment obligations on a capitalized
lease for the next three years are: 1998, $ 114 million;
1999, $ 174 million; and 2000, $ 114 million. Based on
cash provided by operations and APS'apital require-
ments, APS may inakc optional redemptions of long-
tcrm debt and preferred stock from time to time.

As ofDecember 31, 1997, APS had credit conmiitments
from various banks totaling approximately $400 million,
which were available cithcr to support the issuance of
cornmcrcial paper or to be used as bank borrowings. At
the cnd of 1997, there were $ 130.8 millionofcommercial
paper and $ 150 inillionofbank borrowings outstanding.

During 1997, APS incurred $60 millionof long-term
debt under credit agreements and issued $50 millionof
its senior notes. UntilAPS has repaid all of its first mort-
gage bonds (other than those that secure senior notes),
the senior notes are secured by first mortgage bonds that
have the same interest rate, interest payment dates,
maturity and redemption provisions as the senior notes.
See Note 6 for additional information regarding the
senior notes. In January 1998, APS issued $ 100 million
ofunsecured debt.

Although provisions in APS'irst mortgage bond inden-
ture, articles of incorporation and ACC financing orders
establish maximum amounts ofadditional first inortgage
bonds and preferred stock that APS inay issue, rnanagc-
ment does not expect any of these provisions to limit
APS'bility to meet its capital requirements.

Non-UtlUty Subsldlarlos

During the past three years, SunCor and El Dorado
each funded all of their cash requirements through cash
flow from operations and their own financings.

SunCor's capital needs consist primarily ofcapital expen-
ditures for land development and home construction,
which, on the basis ofprojects now under devcloprnent,
are expected to be: 1998, $45 million; 1999, $58 million;
and 2000, $51 million. Capital resources available to
meet these requirements include funds provided by
operations and SunCor's own external financings.

As ofDecember 31, 1997, SunCor had a $55 million line
ofcredit, under which $40.6 millionofborrowing was

outstanding. SunCor's debt repayment rcquircments as

ofDecember 31, 1997 were as follows: 1998, $4.6 mil-
lion; 1999, $28.6 million;and 2000, $54.1 million.

COMPETITION AND INDUSTRY RESTRUCTURING

The electric industry is undergoing significant change
to a competitive, market-based structure from a highly-
regulated, cost-based environment in which companies
have been entitled to rccovcr their costs and earn fair
returns on their invested capital in exchange for com-
miunents to serve all customers within designated service
territories. In Deccrnber 1996, the ACC adopted rules
that provide a framework for the introduction of retail
electric competition in Arizona in phases from 1999 to
2003. See Note 3 for additional information about these
rules and other competitive developments.

The ACC ordered in the rules that numerous issues

require additional consideration prior to the implemen-
tation of retail electric competition in Arizona. During
1997, the ACC held workshops to gather input from
various constituencies with respect to those issues.

The rules indicate tliat the ACC willallow recovery of
unmitigated stranded costs, but do not set forth the
mechanisms for deterinining and recovering such costs.
In February 1998, the ACC completed a forrnal, generic
hearing on stranded cost dctcrmination and recovery.
Based on various assumptions, estirnatcs and method-
ologies, APS currently estimates tliat its stranded costs
to be recovered (excluding regulatory assets which have
already been addressed by the ACC) willbe less than
$500 million.APS is seeking full recovery of stranded
costs during a transition period proposed to go through
2006. Decisions by the ACC have not yet been inade
with respect to this issue.

An Arizona joint legislative committee studied electric
utilityrestructuring issues in 1996 and 1997. In February
1998, a billwas introduced in the Arizona legislature to
facilitate implementation of retail electric competition in
the state. The billhas progressed through several stages
to date. Additionally, legislauon related to electric cornpe-
tition has been proposed in the United States Congress.
See Note 3 for a discussion of legislative developments.

The Company believes that further ACC decisions, legis-
lation at the Arizona and federal levels and perhaps
amendments to the Arizona Constitution willultimately
be required before significant implementation ofretail
electric competition can lawfullyoccur in Arizona. Until
it has been determined how competition willbe irnple-
mented in Arizona, including the manner in which
stranded costs willbe addressed, the Company cannot
accurately predict thc impact of full retail competition
on its financial position, cash flows or results ofopera-
tions. As competition in the electric industry continues
to evolve, the Company willcontinue to evaluate strate-
gies and alternatives tliat willposition the Company to
compete effectively in a restructured industry.

APS prepares its financial statements in accordance with
the provisions ofStatement ofFinancial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 71, "Accounting for the Effects of
Certain Types ofRegulation." SFAS No. 71 requires a

cost-based, rate-regulated enterprise to reflect the
iinpact of regulatory decisions in its financial statements.



APS'xisting regulatory orders and current regulatory
environment support its accounting practices rclatcd to
regulatory assets, which amounted to approximately $ 1.0

billionat Deccinbcr 31, 1997. In accordance with the
1996 regulatory agrecmcnt, the ACC accelerated the
amortization ofsubstantially all ofAPS'egulatory assets

to an eight-year period that began July 1, 1996. IfAPS
ceases to bc cost-based rcgulatcd, itwould no longer be
able to apply the provisions ofSFAS No. 71 to all or some
part of its operations, which could have a material impact
on the Company's financial statements. Scc Note 1 for
additional inforination on regulatory accounting.

YEAR 2000 TECHNOLOGY ISSUES

The Company has made, and willcontinue to make,
certain modifications to its computer hardware and soft-
ware systems and applications to ensure they are capable
ofhandling dates in the year 2000 and thereafter. The
Company's major computer systems have bccn updated
and other systems are being analyzed for potenual modi-
fications. Thc financial impact on the Company is not
anticipated to bc inaterial to its financial position, cash
flows or results ofoperations. Thc Company is in the
process of forinal cominunications with its significant
suppliers, business parmers and large customers to
dctcrinine the extent to which it may be affected by
fliese third parties'lans to rcmcdiatc their own year
2000 issues in a timely manner.

ACCOUNTING MATTERS

Note 2 describes three new accounting standards rcbted
to comprehensive income, scgincnt disclosures and dis-
closures about pensions and other postrctirement bene-
fits, which are effective in 1998. These standards are not
expected to have a material effect on the Company's
financial position, cash flows or results ofoperations.
Also sce Note 13 for a description of a proposed stan-
dard on accounting for certain liabilities related to clo-
sure or removal of long-lived assets.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's operations include managing market
risks related to changes in interest rates, cominodity
prices and invcsunents held by the nuclear decommis-
sioning trust fund.

Interest Rate and Equity Risk
The Company's niajor financial market risk exposure is

changing interest rates. Changing interest rates will
affect interest paid on variable rate debt and interest
earned by the nuclear dccoinmissioning trust fund. The
Company's policy is to manage interest rates through
the usc of a combination of fixed and floating rate debt.
The nuclear decominissioning fund also has risks associ-

ated with changing market values ofequity invesunents.
Nuclear decommissioning costs are recovered in rates.

Thc table below presents contractual balances ofthe
Company's long-term and short-term debt at thc expect-
ed maturity dates as well as the fair value of those instru-
rncnts on Dcccmber 31, 1997. The weighted average
interest rates for the various debt presented are actual as

ofDecember 31, 1997.

Expected Maturity/Principal Repayment

Dkkkkkkbkr 3 I,
(TboukokkCk af Dollsrk3
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Weighted Average
Rates 6.27% 5.06% 7.66%

1998
1999
2000
2001
2002
Years thereafter
Total

Fair Value

S 130,750 S 3,064
28,598
54,133

155,079
150,088
443 178

S 105,631
164,378
104,711

27,488
125,000
998 628

S 130,750 S 834,140 $ 1,525,836
$ 130,750 $ 834,140 $ 1,556,697

Commodity Price Risk
The Company enters into forwards, futures and other
siinilar contracts to hedge the price risks associated with a

portion ofanticipated future electricity production and
gas purchases. Most of these agreements are settled in
physical delivery, with the balance settled in cash at or
prior to expiration. Under certain of these agreements,
payments arc sometimes made or received based on the
differential between a fixed and a variable product price.
Thc Company does not obtain collateral to support the
agreements, but monitors the financial viabilityofcoun-
terparties and believes it has minimized its credit risk on
these transactions. In the event ofnonperformance by
counterparties, the Company would be exposed to
price risL The Company may recognize an accounting
gain or loss where actual delivery occurs and the price in
the contract may differ from the prevailing price at the
delivery point in completing the transaction. The Compa-
ny defers the impact ofchanges in the market value ofcon-
tracts that serve as hedges until the related transaction is

completed.

FORWARD.LOOKING STATEMENTS

The above discussion contains forward-looking state-
inents that involve risks and uncertainties. Words such as

"estimates," "expects," anticipates," "plans," "believes,"
"projects," and similar expressions identify forward-look-
ing statements. These risks and uncertainties include, but
are not limited to, the ongoing restructuring of the elec-
tric industry; the outcome of the regulatory proceedings
relating to the restructuring; regulatory, tax and environ-
mental legislation; the ability ofAPS to successfully com-
pete outside its traditional regulated markets; regional
economic conditions, which could affect customer
growth; the cost ofdebt and equity capital; weather varia-
tions affectin customer usage; technological develop-
ments in the electric industry; and the strength of the real
estate market.

These factors and the other inattcrs discussed above may
cause future results to differ materially from historical
results, or from results or outcomes currently expected or
sought by the Company.



REPORT OF MANAGEMENT AND INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'EPORT

REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

The primary responsibility for the integrity of the
Company's financial information rests with manage-
ment, which has prepared the accompanying financial
statements and related information. Such information
was prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles appropriate in the circumstances,
based on rnanagcmcnt's best estimates and judgments
and giving due consideration to materiality. These
financial statements have been audited by independent
auditors and their rcport is included.

Management maintains and relies upon systems of inter-
nal accounting controls. A limitingfactor in all systems
of internal accounting control is that the cost of the sys-
tem should not exceed the benefits to be derived. Man-
agement believes that the Company's system provides
the appropriate balance between such costs and benefits.

Periodically thc internal accounting control system is
reviewed by both the Company's internal auditors and
its independent auditors to test for compliance. Reports
issued by the internal auditors arc released to rnanage-
ment, and such reports or summaries thereof are trans-
mitted to the Audit Committee of the Board ofDirec-
tors and the independent auditors on a timely basis.

The Audit Committee, composed solely ofoutside
directors, meets periodically with thc internal auditors
and independent auditors (as well as management) to
review thc work of each. The internal auditors and inde-
pendent auditors have free access to the Audit Commit-
tee, without rnanagcrncnt present, to discuss the results
of their audit work.

Management believes that the Company's systems,
policics and procedures provide reasonable assurance
that operations are conducted in conformity with the
law and with management's conunitment to a high
standard ofbusiness conduct.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'EPORT

We have audited the accompanying consolidated bal-
ance sheets ofPinnacle West Capital Corporation and
its subsidiaries as ofDecember 31, 1997 and 1996 and
the related consolidated statements of income, retained
earnings and cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 1997. These financial state-
ments are the responsibility of the Company's rrranage-
ment. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whcthcr thc financial statements are
free ofmaterial misstatement. An audit includes exarnin-

ing, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as

evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for
our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position ofPinnacle West Capital Corporation and its
subsidiaries at December 31, 1997 and 1996 and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for each
of thc three years in the period ended December 31,
1997 in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles.

Dcloitte 8: Touche LLP
Phoenix, Arizona
March 4, 1998

Richard Snell
Chairman 8c

Chief Executive Officer

George A. Schreiber, Jr.
Executive Vice President 8:
Chief Financial Oflicer



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Ibsr Endsd Dsssmbsr 33,
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OPERATING REVENUES

Electric
Real estate

Total

FUEL EXPENSES

Fuel for electric generation
Purchased power

Total

S 1,878,553
116 473

I 995 026

201,341
235 286

436 627

230,393
95 130

208,928
60 870

325 523 269 798

S 1,718,272 S 1,614,952
99 488 54 846

1 817 760 1 669 798

OPERATING EXPENSES

Utilityoperations and tnaintenance
Real estate operations
Depreciation and amortization (Note 1)

Taxes other than income taxes

399,434
111,628
368,285
121 546

430,714
96,080

299,507
122 077

400,814
50,344

243,989
142 429

Total

OPERATING INCOME

1 000 893

$ 57 506

948 378 837 $ 76

543 859 562 424

OTHER INCOME IDEDUCTIONS)

Allowance for equity funds used during
construction

Interest on long-term debt
Other interest
Capitalized interest
Preferred stock dividend rcquircmcnts
"ofAPS

Other - net

(160,670)
(18,673)
16,208

(12,803)
4 $ 69

5,209
(171,458)

(23,764)
9,509

(17,092)
6 748

4,982
(209,293)

(16,975)
9,065

(19)134)
349

Total 171 369 204 344 234 851

INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

BEFORE INCOME TAXES

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (NOTE 4)

386,137

150 281

339,515

128 456

327,573

127 965

INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Loss from discontinued opemtions-
net of income tax of $6,461

Extraordinary charge for early rctircment
of debt - net of income tax of
$ 13,777 and $7,834

NET INCOME

AVERAGE COMMON SHARES
OUTSTANDING

EARNINGS PER AVERAGE COMMON

SHARE OUTSTANDING

Continuing operations - basic
Nct income - basic
Continuing operations - diluted
Nct income - diluted

23$ ,856

$ 235,856

85,502,909

S 2.76
2.76
2.74
2.74

211,059 199,608

(9,$ 39)

20 340 11 571

$ 181,180 S 188,037

87,441,515 87)419,300

S 2.41 $ 2.28
2.07 2.15
240 2.27

2.06 2.14

DIVIDENDS DECLARED PER SHARE S 1.125 S 1.025 $ 0.925

See Notes to Consolidated 1 tnaneial Statements.



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Drrroubrr Jl,
(Tboououds ofDollsro) 1996

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Customer and other receivables - nct
Accrued utilityrevenues (Note 1)
Materials and supplies (at average cost)
Fossil fuel (at average cost)
Deferred income taxes (Note 4)
Other current assets

Total current assets

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS

Real estate investments - net (Note 6)
Other assets (Note 13)

Total invesunents and other assets

UTILITYPLANT (NOTES 6, 10 AND 11)
Electric plant in service and held for future use
Less accutnulated depreciati6n and amortization

Total

Construction work in progress
Nuclear fuel, nct of amortization of$66,081 and $63,892

Net utilityplant

DEFERRED DEBITS

Regulatory asset for income taxes (Note 4)
Rate synchronization cost deferral (Note 1)
Other deferred debits

Total deferred debits

$ 27,484
183,507

58,559
70,634

9,621

57,887
41 408

449 100

365,921
215 027

580 948

7,009,059
2 620 607

4,388,452

237,492
51 624

4 677 568

458,369
358,871
325 561

1 142 801

$ 26,686
169,237
55,470
74,120
13,928
69,688
41 140

450 269

398,527
173 109

571 636

6,803,211
2 426 143

4,377,068

226,935
51 137

4 655 140

516,722
414,082
381 440

1 312 244

TOTAL ASSETS $ 6,850,417 $ 6,989,289

EO

ta

ce

ca

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,
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LIABILITIESAND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payablc
Accrued taxes
Accrued interest,
Short-term borrowings (Note 5)
Current maturities of long-tenn debt (Note 6)
Customer deposits
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM DEBT LESS CURRENT MATURITIES )NOTE 6)

DEFERRED CREDITS AND OTHER

Dcfcrred income taxes (Note 4)
Deferred invesunent tax credit (Note 4)
Unatnortizcd gain - sale ofutilityplant

other'otal
deferred credits and other

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES )NOTE 12)

MINORITY INTERESTS INOTE 7)
Non-redeemable preferred stock ofAPS

Redeemable preferred stock ofAPS

COMMON STOCK EQUITY )NOTE 8)

Common stock, no par value; authorized 150,000,000 shares;
issued and outstanding 84,824,947 at end of 1997 and
87,$ 15,847 at cnd of 1996

Retained earnings

Total cotnmon stock equity

S 117,429
84,610
32,974

130,750
108,695
30,672
18 534

523 664

2 244 248

1,363,461
50,861

82,363
387 223

1 883 908

142 051

29 110

1,553,771
473 665

2 027 436

S 184,095

82,413
39,652
16,900

156,277
34,222
37 0$ 6

550 615

2 372 113

1,359,312
74,379
86,939

356 935

1 877 565

165673

53 000

1,636,354
333 969

1 970 323

TOTAL LIABILITIESAND EQUITY $ 6,850,417 S 6,989289



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

2bah Enchc Dhhhhnbhr 3l)
P'bonhanC) ofDollarr)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
INOTE 1)

1996 1995

Income from continuing opcrauons

Items not requiring cash
Depreciation and atnortization
Deferred income taxes - net
Allowance for equity funds used

during construction
Deferred invcsttnent tax credit
Other - net

S 235,856

401,813
24,809

(23,518)
(4,680)

334,808
'3,392

276,288
61,076

(5,209)
(23,518)

(365)

(4,982)
(23,529)
16,099

S 211)059 S 199,608

Changes in current assets and liabilities
Customer and other receivables - net
Accrued utilityrevenues
Materials, supplies and fossil fuel
Other current assets
Accounts payable
Accrued taxes
Accrued interest
Other current liabilities

Decrease (increase) in land held
Other - net

(14,270)
(3,089)
7,793
(109)

(54,882)
2,197

(6,678)
(23,087)
29,515
65,909

(38,106)
(1,951)
111945

(8,949)
65,586

(7,088)
(9,306)

1,515

16,547

12,176

4,653
1,913

25,606
(4,249)
(2,093)
6,818

(7,100)
3,714

(4,660)
6,700

Net Cash Flow Provided By Operating Activiues

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditures
Capitalized interest
Other - net

Net Cash Flow Used For Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

637,579

(307,876)
(16,208)
(20,779)

(344,863)

572,536 555,862

(258,598) (295,772)
(9,509) (9,065)

(15,945) 422

(284,052) (304,415)

Issuance of long-tenn debt
Short-term borrowings - net
Dividends paid on common stock
Repurchase and retirement ofcommon stock
Repayment of long-tenn debt
Redemption of preferred stock
Extraordinary charge for carly retirement ofdebt
Other - net

146,013
113,850
(96,160)
(79,997)

(325,526)
(47,201)

(2,897)

557,067
(160,900)

(89,614)

(575,332)
(50,360)
(20,340)

(1,858)

225,128
46,300

(80,855)

(383,117)

(11)571)
(2,512)

Net Cash Flow Used I or Financing Activities (291,918) (341,337) (206,627)

Net Cash Flow

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

798

26,686

S 27,484

(52,853) 44,820

79,539 34,719

S 26,686 S 79,539

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF RETAINED EARNINGS

Ibur Endkd Dooonobor 3I,
(Tbousnndo ofDollop) 1996 1995

Retained Earnings at Beginning ofYear

Nct Income

Common Stock Dividends

Retained Earnings at End ofYear

Sce Notes io Consolidated Financial Staicmcnts.

$ 333,969

235,856

(96,160)

$ 473,665

$ 242,403 S 135,221

181,180

(89,614)

188,037

(80,855)

$ 333,969 $ 242,403

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Consolldatlon and Nature of Operations
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts
ofPinnacle West and its subsidiaries: APS, SunCor and
El Dorado.

APS, the Company's major, subsidiary and Arizona's brgcst
electric utility,with 767,000 customers, provides wholesale
or retail electric service to thc entire state with the excep-
tion ofTucson and about one-half of the Phoenix area.

SunCor is a developer of residential, commercial and
industrial projects on some 13,400 acres, prcdorninantly in
the rnctropolitan Phoenix area. El Dorado is a vcnturc
capital finn with a diversilied portfolio.

Accounting Records
Accounting records are maintained in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The
preparation of financial statements in accordance with
GAAP requires the usc ofestimates by management.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Regulatory Accounting
APS prcparcs its financial statcmcnts in accordance
with the provisions ofStatcmcnt ofFinancial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 71, "Accounting for the Effects of
Certain Types ofRegulation." SFAS No. 71 requires a

cost-based, rate-regulated cntcrprisc to reflec the impact
ofregulatory decisions in its financial statements.

APS'ajor regulatory assets are deferred income taxes (see

Note 4) and rate synchronization cost dcferrals (sec "Rate
Synchronization Cost Deferrals" in this note). These
items, combined with miscellaneous regulatory assets and
liabilities, amounted to approximately $ 1.0 billion and $ 1.1

billion at December 31, 1997 and 1996, respcctivcly, most
ofwhich are included in "Deferred Debits" on the Consol-
idated Balance Sheets. In accordance with thc 1996 regula-

tory agreement (see Note 3), the Arizona Corporation
Commission (ACC) accclcratcd the amortization of
substantially all ofAPS'egulatory assets to an eight-year
period that began July 1, 1996. The accelerated portion of
thc regubtory asset amortization, approxiinatcly $ 120

millionpretax in 1997 and $60 millionprctax in 1996, is

included in depreciation and amortization expense on the
Consolidated Statements of Income.

During 1997, the Emerging Issues Task Force (EITQ of
the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued

EITF 97-4, which requires that SFAS No. 71 be discontin-
ued no later than ivhen legislation is passed or a rate order
is issued that contains suflicient detail to dcterinine its
effect on the portion of thc business being deregulated,
which could result in write-downs or write-offs ofphysical
and/or regulatory assets. Additionally, the EITF deter-
mined that rcgubtory assets should not be written offif
they arc to be recovered from a portion of the entity which
continues to apply SFAS No. 71.

Although thc ACC has issued rules for transitioning gener-
ation services to competition, there are many unresolved
issues. APS continues to apply SFAS No. 71 to all of its
operations. Ifrate rccovcry ofregulatory assets is no longer
probable, whether due to competition or regulatory action,
APS would be required to write offthe remaining balance
as an extraordinary charge to expense.

UtilityPlant and Depreciation
Utilitypbnt represents the buildings, equipment and other
facilities used to provide electric service. The cost ofutility
plant includes labor, materials, contract services, other
related items and capitalized interest or an allowance for
funds used during construction. The cost of retired depre-
ciable utilityplant, plus removal costs less salvage realized,
is charged to accumulated dcprcciation. See Note 13 for
inforination on a proposed accounting standard which
impacts accounting for removal costs.

Dcprcciation on utilityproperty is recorded on a straight-
linc basis. The applicable rates as prescribed by regulators
for 1995 through 1997 ranged from 1.51% to 20%, vvhich

rcsultcd in an annual composite rate of3.35% for 1997.

Depreciation and amortization ofnon-utilityproperty and

equipment are provided over thc estimated useful lives of
the related assets, ranging from 3 to 50 years.

Capltallzed Interest
In 1997, APS began capitalizing interest in accordance with
SFAS No. 34, "Capitalization ofInterest Cost." Capitalized
interest rcprescnts the cost ofdebt funds used to finance
construction ofutilityplant. Plant construction costs,

including capitalized interest, are rccovcred in authorized
rates through depreciation when completed projects arc
placed into commercial operation. Capitalized interest
does not represent current cash earnings. The rate used

to calculate capitalized interest for 1997 was 7.25%.



Prior to 1997, APS accrued an allowance for funds used

during construction (AFUDC). AFUDC represented the
cost ofdebt and equity funds used to finance construction
ofutilityplant, and did not represent current cash earnings.
AFUDC was calculated using composite rates of7.75% for
1996 and 8.52% for 1995.

Revenues
Electric operating revenues are recognized on the accrual

basis and include estimated amounts for service rendered
but unbillcd at the end of each accounting period.

Rate Synchronization Cost Deferrrils
As authorized by the ACC, operating costs (excluding
fuel) and financing costs ofPalo Verde Units 2 and 3 were
deferred from the commercial operation dates (September
1986 and January 1988, respectively) until the dates the
units were included in a rate order (April 1988 and
December 1991, respectively). Beginning July 1, 1996, the
deferrals are being amortized over an eight-year period in
accordance with the 1996 regubtory agreement (see Note
3). Prior to July 1, 1996, the deferrals werc amortized over
thirty-fiveyear periods. Amortization of the deferrals is

included in depreciation and ainortization expense on thc
Consolidated Statements of Income.

dividends paid on preferred stock ofAPS werc $ 13.3 mil-
lion, S17.4 millionand $ 19.1 million, respectively.

Reclassiflcatlons
Certain prior year ainounts have been restated to conform
to the 1997 presentation.

2. ACCOUNTING MATTERS

The Financial Accounting Standards Board has issued

SFAS No. 130 "Reporting Comprehcnsivc Income," SFAS

No. 131 "Disclosures about Segments ofan Enterprise and

Rebted Information" and SFAS No. 132
"Employers'isclosures

about Pensions and Other Postretircinent
Benefits," all ofwhich are effectiv in 1998.

SFAS No. 130 changes the reporting ofcertain items cur-
rently reported in the common stock equity section of the
balance sheet and is not expected to have a material effect
on the Company's financial statements.

SFAS No. 131 requires that public companies report certain
information about operating segments in their financial
statements. Italso establishes related disclosures about
products and services, geographic areas, and major cus-

tomers. The Company is currently evaluating what impact
this standard willhave on its disclosures.

Nuclear Fuel

Nuclear fuel is charged to fuel expense using the unit-of-
production method under which the number ofunits of
thermal energy produced in the current period is related to
the total thermal units expected to be produced over
the remaining life of the fuel.

Under federal law, the United States Department ofEnergy
(DOE) is responsible for the permanent disposal ofspent
nuclear fuel, and assesses $0.001 pcr kWh ofnuclear genera-
tion. This amount is charged to nuclear fuel expense. See

Note 12 for inforination on spent fuel disposal and Note 13

for information on nuclear decommissioning costs.

Income Taxes

Thc Company files a consolidated U.S. income tax return.
In accordance with an intercompany tax allocation agree-

ment, provisions for income taxes arc made by each sub-

sidiary as ifseparate income tax returns were filed. The dif-
ference, ifany, between these provisions and consolidated
income tax expense is allocated to the parent company.

Reacquired Debt Costs
APS amortizcs gains and losses on reacquired debt over the
remaining life of the original debt, consistent with ratemak-

ing. In accordance with the 1996 regubtory agreement (see

Note 3), the ACC accelerated APS'mortization of the reg-
ulatory asset for reacquired debt costs to an eight-year peri-
od that began July 1, 1996. The accelcratcd portion of thc
regulatory asset ainortization is included in depreciation
and amortization expense on the Consolidated Statements
ofIncomc.

Statements of Cash Rows

Temporary cash investments and marketable securities
are considcrcd to be cash cquivalcnts for purposes of the
Consolidated Statements ofCash Floivs. During 1997,

1996 and 1995, the Company paid interest, nct ofamounts
capitalized, of$ 163.0 million, $ 185.9 millionand $216.8
million, respectively. Income taxes paid were $ 146.2 mil-
lion, S121.0 millionand $77 4 million, respectively; and

SFAS No. 132 standardizes thc disclosure requirements for
pensions and other postretireinent benefits to provide
inforination that is more comparable, understandable and
concise. It is not cxpccted to have a material effect on the
Company's financial statement disclosures.

3. REGULATORY MATTERS
Electric Industry Restructuring
State
Thc ACC has been conducting an ongoing investigation
into the restructuring of the Arizona electric industry. In
December 1996, thc ACC adopted rules that provide a

framework for the introduction ofretail electric competi-
tion. The ACC framework rules include thc following
inajor provisions:

~ The rules are intcndcd to apply to virtuallyall of the Ari-
zona elecmc utilities regulated by the ACC, including APS.
~ Each affecte utilitywould bc required to make available at
least 20% ofits 1995 system retail peak demand for competi-
tive generauon supply to all customer classes not later than

January I, 1999; at least 50% not later than January 1, 2001;
and all ofiis retail deinand not later than January 1, 2003.
~ Electric service providers that obtain Certificates ofCon-
venience and Necessity (CCB;Ns) from the ACC would be

allowed to supply, market and/or broker specified electric
services at retail. These services would include electric gen-
eration, but exclude clcctric transmission and distribution.
~ On or before December 31, 1997, each affected utility
was required to file with the ACC proposed tariffs for bun-
dled service, ifdifferent than current tariffs, and unbundled
service. Bundled service ineans electric service elements

(i.e., generation, transmission, distribution and ancillary ser-

vices) provided as a package to customers within an affected
utility's current service area. Unbundled service means

electric service clemcnts provided and priced separately.
~ The rules indicate that the ACC willallow recovery of
unmitigated stranded costs. Stranded costs are the costs of
generating plants, other assets and contract commitments
that were prudently incurred to serve power customers that



could go unrecovered ifthese customers are allowed to use

open access to move to another supplier. Each affected util-
itywould be required to file with the ACC its estimates of
unmitigated stranded costs. The ACC would then, after
hearing and consideration ofvarious factors, determine the
magnitude ofstranded costs and appropriate stranded costs

recovery mechanisms and charges.

The ACC ordered in the rules that numerous issues (includ-
ing reliability; stranded cost measurement and recovery; the
phase-in process; bundled, unbundled and metering ser-
vices; legal issues; and independent system operator and

spot market dcvclopment) require additional consideration
prior to implementation of retail electric competition. Dur-
ing 1997, the ACC conducted workshops to gather input
from various constituencies with respect to those issues.

In February 1998, the ACC completed a formal, generic
hearing on stranded cost determination and recovery. Based

on various assumptions, estimates and methodologies, APS
currently estimates that its stranded costs to be recovered
(excluding regulatory assets which have already been
addressed by the ACC) willbe less than $500 million. APS
is seeking full recovery ofstranded costs during a transition
period proposed to go through 2006. Decisions by the
ACC have not yet been made with respect to this issue.

An Arizona joint legislative committee studied clcctric
utilityindustry restructuring issues in 1996 and 1997. In

4

conjunction with that study, Arizona legislative counsel pre-
pared memoranda in late 1997 related to the legal authority
of the ACC to dcrcgulate the Arizona electric utilityindus-
try. The memoranda raise a question as to the degree to
which the ACC nray, under the Arizona Constitution,
deregulate any portion of the electric utilityindustry and
allow rates to be determined by market forces.

In February 1998, a bill to facilitate implementation of
retail electric competition in the state was introduced in the
Arizona lcgislaturc. The billhas progressed through several

stages to date. The bill includes the followingmajor provi-
sions: (a) requirements diat large govermnent-operated
clcctric utilities (i) cntcr into intergovernmental agrcernents
with the ACC to promote consistent statewide practices;

(ii) implement retail electric generation competition for
20% ofeach utility's 1995 retail peak demand by December
31, 1998 and for all customers by December 31, 1999; (iii)
dccrcase rates by at least 10% over a ten-year period begin-
ning as carly as January 1, 1991; and (iv) recover unmitigated
stranded costs through a surcharge on distribution prices;
and (b) a proposal that the ACC adopt provisions for public
service corporations (including investor-owned utilities
such as APS) consistent with some of the bill's provisions
for certain government-operated electric utilities as

described above.

The Company believes that certain provisions of thc ACC
framework rules are deficient. In February 1997, a lawsuit
was filed by APS to protect its legal rights regarding those

rules. That lawsuit is pending, but trvo related cases filed

by other utilities have been decided adversely to the
utilities'ositions.

The Company believes that further ACC decisions, legisla-

tion at the Arizona and federal levels and perhaps amend-

ments to thc Arizona Constitution (which amendments

would require a vote of the people) willultimately be
required before significant implementation ofretail electric
competition can lawfullyoccur in Arizona. Until the man-
ner of implerncntation ofcompetition, including addressing
stranded costs, is determined, thc Company cannot accu-

rately predict the impact offull retail competition on its
financial position, cash flows or results ofoperation. As
competition in the electric industry continues to evolve, the
Company willcontinue to evaluate strategies and alterna-
tives that willposition the Company to compete in thc new
regulatory environrncnt.

Federal
The Energy Policy Act of 1992 and recent rulcmakings by
Federal Energy Regubtory Commission (FERC) have pro-
moted increased competition in thc wholesale electric
power markets. The Company docs not expect these rules
to have a material impact on its financial statements.

Scvcral electric utilityreform bills have been introduced
during thc rcccnt congressional sessions, which as currently
written, would allow consumers to choose their electric
supplier by 2000 or 2003. These bills, other bills that are
expcctcd to be introduced, and ongoing discussions at the
federal level suggest a wide range ofopinion that willneed
to be narrowed before any substantial restructuring of the
electric utilityindustry can occur.

1996 Regulatory Agreement
In April 1996, the ACC approved a regulatory agreement
between APS and the ACC Staff. The major provisions of
this agreement arc:

~ An annual rate reduction ofapproxiniately $48.5 million
($29 millionafter income taxes), or 3 4% on avcragc for
all customers except certain contract customers, effcctivc
July 1, 1996.
~ Recovery ofsubstantially all ofAPS'resent regulatory
assets flirough accelerated amortization over an eight-year
period diat began July 1, 1996, increasing annual amortiza-
tion by approximately S120 million ($72 millionafter
income taxes). See Note 1.

> A formula for sharing future cost savings between cus-

tomers and shareholders (price reduction formula)
rcfercncing a return on equity (as defined) of 11.25%.
~ A moratorium on filingfor permanent rate changes prior
to July 2, 1999, except under the price reduction
formula and under certain other limited circumstan'ccs.
~ Infusion of$200 millionofcommon equity into APS by
the parent company, in annual payments of$50 million
starting in 1996.

Pursuant to the price reduction formula, in i%ay 1997, the
ACC approved a retail price decrease ofapproximately
S17.6 million ($ 10.5 millionafter income taxes), or 1.2%,
effective July 1, 1997. In March 1998, APS filed iidth the
ACC its calculation ofan annual retail price reduction of
approximately $ 17 million ($ 10 million after income taxes),

or 1%, to bccomc effective July I, 1998. The amount and

timing of the price decrease are subject to ACC approval.

4. INCOME TAXES

Investment Tax Credit
Beginning in 1995, substantially all invesnnent tax credits
are being amortized over a five-year period in accordance

with a 1994 rate scttlcmcnt agrccrncnt.



itar Endsd Dsssmbsr )l,
(Thousands ofDollar) QQQP 1996 1995

Current
Federal
State

$ 105,818 S 105,312 $ 77,869
43 172 35 052 1 081

Total current 148,990 140,364 78,950

Deferred
NOL and ITC

carryfonvard utilized
Change in

valuation allowance
ITC amortization

28,729 23,752 21,339

(3,920)
23 518

58,019

(12,142) (6,814)
23 518 23 529

Total expense $ 150,281 S 128,456 S 127,965

Income tax expense differed froin the amount computed by
multiplying income from continuing operations before
income taxes by the statutory federal income tax rate due to
the following:

Income Taxes
The Company follows thc'liabilitymethod ofaccounting for
income taxes which requires that deferred income taxes be

recorded for all temporary difference between the tax bases

ofassets and liabilities and the amounts recognized for finan-
cial reporting. Deferred taxes are recorded using currently
enacted tax rates.

In accordance with SFAS No. 71, APS established a regulatory
asset for certain temporary differences, primarilyAFUDC
equity, to reflect the ratemaking treatment. This regulatory
asset is being amortized as the related differences reverse. In
accordance with the 1996 regulatory agreement (sec Note 3),
the ACC accelerated APS'mortization of the regulatory
asset for income taxes to an eight-year period that began

July 1, 1996. The accelerated portion of the regulatory asset

amortization is included in depreciation and amortization
expense on the Consolidated Statements of Income.

The components of income tax cxpcnse from continuing
operations arc as follows:

The components of the nct deferred income tax liability
were as follows:

Dsssmbsr 3l,
(Thousands ofDollaa) 1996

Deferred tax assets
Alternative ininimum tax (can be

carried forward indefinitely) S

Deferred gain on Palo Verde
Unit 2

sale/leasebacl'ther

Valuation allowance
Total deferred tax assets

53,601

33,257
91,701

178 559

S'25,735

35,105
97,060

7 964
249 936

Deferred tax liabilities
Plant-related
Regulatory asset for

income taxes

Rate synchronization deferrals
Other

Total deferred tax liabilities
Accumulated dcfcrred

income taxes - nct

1,096,222

185,084
144,908

57 919
1 484 133

S 1,305,574

1,104,902

208,647
167,202
58 809

1 539 560

S1,289,624

5. LINES OF CREDIT

APS had committed lines ofcredit with various banks of
$400 millionat December 31, 1997 and 1996, which were
available either to support the issuance ofcommercial paper
or to be used for bank borrowings. The commitment fees at
Deceinber 31, 1997 and 1996 for these lines ofcredit ranged
from 0.07% to 0.15% per annum. APS had long-term bank
borrowings of$ 150 millionand $ 100 millionoutstanding at
December 31, 1997 and 1996, respectively, under these lines
ofcredit.

APS had coinmercial paper borrowings outstanding of
$ 130.8 millionand $ 16.9 millionat December 31, 1997 and

1996, respectively. Thc wcightcd average interest rate on
commercial paper borrowings was 6.27% and 6 40% on
December 31, 1997 and 1996, respectively. By Arizona
statute, APS'hort-term borrowings cannot exceed 7% of
its total capitalization without the consent of the ACC.

Tbar Ended Dssombsr 31,
(Thousands ofDollars)

Federal income tax
expense at statutory
rate, 35% $

Increases (reductions)
in tax expense

resulting from:

Tax under book
depreciation

Preferred stock
dividends ofAPS

ITC amortization
State income tax

net of federal
income tax benefit

Change in valuation
allowance

Other

QQQQ 1996 1995

14,694 19,229 18,186

4,481
(23,518)

5,982

(23,518)
6,697

(23,529)

24,497 19,565 19,245

(3,400)

1 621

(10,525)

I 107

(5,908)

I 377

135)148 $ 118,830 $ 114,651

The parent company had a revolving line ofcredit
ofS250 millionand $225 millionat December 31, 1997 and
1996, respcctivcly. Thc coinmiunent fees on this line ranged
from 0.10% to 0.125% in 1997 and 1996. Outstanding
ainounts under this line at December 31, 1997 and 1996,
were S155 million and $200 million, respectively.

SunCor had revolving lines ofcredit totalling $55 millionat
December 31, 1997 and 1996. Thc commiunent fees on
these lines were 0.125% in 1997 and 1996. SunCor had

$40.6 millionand $42.4 millionoutstanding under thcsc
lines at December 31, 1997 and 1996, respectively.

Income tax expcnsc $ 150,281 S 128,456 $ 127,965
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT

Borrowings under the APS mortgage bond indenture are
secured by substantially all utilityplant; SunCor's debt is

collaterized by interests in certain real property; Pinnacle
West's debt is unsecured. The following table presents the
components ofconsolidated long-term debt:

Dccctnbcr Jl,
(TbonsonCk ofDollors)

APS

First mortgage bonds

Unamortized discount and premium
Pollution control indebtedness
Colbteralizcd loan
Senior notes (c)
Senior notes (c)
Debentures
Bank". loans
Capitalized lease obligation (e)

SunCor

Revolving credit
Bank loan
Notes payable

Pinnacle West
Revolving credit
Senior notes

Total long-tean debt
Less current maturities
Total long-term debt less

current maturities

a'1 to ln rltr
Dotes (o)

1997

1998
1999
2000
2002
2004
2020
2021
2021

~ 2023
2024
2025
2028
2028

2024-2031
1999

2006
1999
2025
2002

1997-2001

2000
2000

1997-2006

2001
2001-2003

Intcrcst
Rates

7.125%
7.625%
7.625%
5.75%
8.125%
6.625%
10.25%
9.5%
9%
7 25%
8.75%
8%
5.5%
5.875%

Adjustable rate(b)
6.125%
6.75%
6.72%
10/
Adjustable rate(d)
7.48%

(I)
(g)
(h)

100,000
100,000
100,000
125,OOO

85,000
109,550
45,140
72,370
97,150

121,918

88,500
25,000

154,000

(7,033)
439,990

10,000
100,000
50,000
75,000

150,000
15 645

2 057 230

40,600
45,000

5 113

90 713

155,000
50 000

205 000
2,352,943

108 695

S 2,244,248

1996

S 150,000
100,000
100,000
100,000
125,000
IOOPOO

1141550

50,810
72,500

100,000

148,500
116,900
25,000

154,000

(8,412)
439,990

100,000

75,000
100,000

19 424
2 183 262

42,432
45,000

7 696
95 128

200,000
50 000

250 000
2,528,390

156 277

S 2,372,113

(a) This schedule docs not reflect the timing ofredemptions which
may occur prior to maturity.

(b) The weighted-average nte for the pars ended December 31, 1997

and 199G vns 3.62% and 3 40%, respectively. Changes in short-
tcnn interest rates would affect the costs associated with this debt.

(c) APS has issued S150 millionof first mortgage bonds ("senior
note mortgage bonds") to the senior note trustee as collateral for
the senior notes. The senior note mortgage bonds have the same

interest rate, interest papncnt dates, maturity, and redemption
provisions as the senior notes. APS'ayments ofprincipal, pre-
mium, and/or interest on the senior notes satisfy the Company's

corresponding payment obligations on the senior note mongage
bonds. As long as the senior note mortgage bonds secure the
senior notes, the senior notes willeffectively rank pari pasttt with
the iirst mortgage bonds. On the date that APS has repaid all of
its first mortgage bonds, other than those that secure senior
notes, the senior note mortgage bonds willno longer secure thc
senior notes and willcease to be outstanding.

(d) The wcightcd-average ntc at December 31, 1997 and 1996 was

6.25% and 5.76%, respectively. Changes in short-term interest
rates would affect the costs associated with this debt.

(e) Rcprcscnts the present value of future lease papncnts
(discountcd at an interest rate of7 48%) on a combined cycle

plant sold and leased back frotn the independent owner-trustee
formed to own the facility(see Note 10).

(I) The weighted-average rate at December 31, 1997 and 1996
was 8.60% and 8.52%, respectively. Interest for 1997 and 1996

was based on LIBORplus 2% or prime plus 0.5%.

(g) Thc weighted-avenge rate at Dccembcr 31, 1997 and 199G

was 8.44% and 7.62%, respectively. Interest for 1997 and 1996

was based on LIBORplus 2% or prime plus 0.5%.

(h) Multiplenotes primarilywith variable interest rates based

mosdy on the lcndcrs'rime.
(i) The weighted-avenge nte at December 31, 1997 and 1996 was

6.25% and 6.03%, respectively. Interest for 1997 was based on
LIBORplus 0.33%-0.4% and for 199G ms LIBORplus 0.4%.

Q Includes two series ofnotes: $25 millionat 6.62% due 2001,
and $25 million at 6.87% duc 2003.

Aggregate annual principal papnents due on total long-term debt
and for sinking fund requirements through 2002 are as follows:
1998, $ 108.7 million; 1999, $ 193.0 million;2000, $ 158.8 million;
2001, $ 182.6million; and 2002, $275.1 million. Sce Note 7

for redemption and sinking fund requirements of redeemable

prcfcrrcd stock ofAPS.



7. PREFERRED STOCK OF APS

Non-redeemable preferred stock is not redeemable
except at the option ofAPS. Redeemable preferred

stock is rcdeetnable through sinking fund obligations.
Preferred stock balances ofAPS are shown below

(Dollortin Tbontondt,
Zrttpt Ptr Sbnro Amount) Antboriutd

blumbtr ofSbortt Outttonding
Dtttmbtr 3l,

1996
Pnr Vnlut
Ptr Short

Prr Vnlut Outttondiug
Dtttmbtr 31,

1996

Coll
Prior Ptr
Short (o)

Non-Redeemable:

$ 1.10 preferred
$2.50 preferred
$2.36 preferred
$4.35 preferred
Serial preferred:

$2 40 Series A
$2.625 Series C
$2.275 Series D
$ 3.25 Series E

Serial preferred:
Adjustable rate

Series Q
Serial prcfcrrcd:

$ 1.8125 Series W
Total

160,000
105,000
120,000
150,000

1,000,000

4,000,000(b)

145,559

97,252
38,506
68,386

234,839
231,572
164,101

312,991

152,740
102,532

40,000
75,000

239,900
240,000
199,655
320,000

S 25.00 S 3,639
50.00 4,863
50.00 1,925

100.00 6,839

50.00 11,742
50.00 11,579
50.00 8,205
50.00 15,649

10,000,000
1 693 016 2 398 615

3,339,073 4,141,293

25.00 42 325

S 142,051

352,851 372,851 100.00 35,285

$ 3,818
5,127
2)000
7,500

11,995
12,000
9,983

16,000

37,285

59 965

S 165,673

$ 27.50
51.00
51.00

102.00

50.50
51.00
50.50
51.00

(c)

(d)

Redeemable:
Serial prefcrrcd:

$ 10.00 Series U
$7.875 Series V

Total

291,098

291,098

410,000 S 100.00 $ 29,110
120 000 100.00

530,000 $ 29,110

S 41,000
12 000

$ 53,000

(a) The actual call price per share is the indicated amount plus any
accrued diiddends.

(b) This authorization also covers all outstanding rcdccmable
preferred stocL

(c) Dividend rate adjusted quarterly to 2% below that ofcertain
United States Treasury securiYics, but in no event less than 6%
or greater than 12yo per annum. Redeemable at par.

(d) Rcdcemablc at par after December 1, 1998.



(Dol4ss in Tbonsonds)
Nnmbsr of

Sborss
Pssr Vssins

sfmonns

Balance, December 31, 1994
Retirements

750,000 $ 75,000

Balance, Deccinbcr 31, 1995

Retirements
$ 10.00 Series U
$7.875 Series V

Balance, December 31, 1996

Retirements
$ 10.00 Series U
$7.875 Series V

750,000

(90,000)
130 000

"

530,000

(118,902)
120 000

75,000

(9,000)

53,000

(11,890)

Balance, December 31, 1997 291,098 $ 29,110

Ifthere were to be any arrearage in dividends on any of
its preferred stock or in the sinking fund rcquircments
applicable to any of its redcemablc prcfcrred stock, APS
could not pay dividends on its common stock or acquire any
shares thereof for consideration. The redemption require-
ments for the above issues for thc next three years are: 1998,
S10.0 million; 1999, $ 10.0 million; and 2000, $9.1 million.
There are no redemption rcquircments in 2001 and 2002.

Redeemable preferred stock transactions ofAPS during
each of the three years in the period cndcd Deceinber 31,
1997 are as folloivs:

9. RETIREMENT PLANS AND OTHER BENEFITS

Voluntary Severance Plan
APS sponsored a voluntary severance pbn in 1996, which
resulted in a pretax charge ofS31.7 million (including
pension and postretirement benefit expense) recorded pri-
marily as operations and inaintenance expense. Employees
participating in the plan were credited with an additional
year ofage and service for purposes ofcalculating pension
and postretirement benefits. The total additional pension
and postretirement benefit expense recorded in 1996 for this
program was S2.3 millionand $5.4 million, respectively.

PensIon Plans
The Company sponsors defined benefit pension plans
covering substantially all cmployces. Benefits arc based on
years ofservice and compensation utilizing a final average

pay benefit formula. Company policy is to fund not less

than the minimum required contribution nor greater than
the maximum tax-dcductiblc contribution. Plan assets con-
sist primarilyofdomestic and international cominon stocks
and bonds and real estat'e. Pension expense, including ad-
ministrative and severance costs, for 1997, 1996 and 1995
was approximately $9.3 million, $ 15.5 million and $ 10.0

million, respectively.

The components ofnet periodic pension costs before
consideration ofamounts capitalized or billed to others
and excluding severance costs of$2.9 million in 1996 arc
as follows:

8. COMMON STOCK

The Company's common stock issued during each of the
three years in the period cndcd Dcccmbcr 31, 1997 is

as follows:

(Dol4rsin Tbonsonds)
¹mbsr of

Sbnrss srmonns (o)

Balance, December 31, 1994 87,429,642 S 1,641,196
Common stock issued 86 205 2 512

Balance, December 31, 1995 87,515,847 1,638,684
Common stock issued 2 330

Balance, December 31, 1996 87,515,847 1,636,354
Coinmon stock issued (2,586)
Common stock retired 2 690 900 79 997

Balance, December 31, 1997 84,824,947 $ 1,553 771

(a) Including premiums and expenses ofpreferred stock issues ofAPS.

(Tbonsonds ofDollors)

Service cost - benefits
carncd during
the period

Interest cost on
projected benefit
obligation

Return on plan assets

Net amortization
and deferral

Net consolidated
periodic pension
benefit cost

QQQP 1996 1995

48,402
(88,618)

45,124 39,762

(63,136) (83,031)

39 511 19 969 46 469

$ 19,730 S 25,354 S 19,590

S 20,435 S 23,397 $ 16,390



P'bogssads ofDorian) 1996

Plan assets at fair value $
Less:

Accumulated benefit
obligation, including vested

benefits of$499,559 and
$418,052 in 1997 and 1996,
respectively

Effect ofprojected future
compensation increases

Total projected benefit obligation
Plan assets less than projcctcd

benefit obligation
Plus:

Unrecognized nct loss

from past experience
different 1'rom that assumed

Unrecognized prior service cost
Unrecognized net

transition asset

Accrued pension liability '

619 412 S 539 179

558,967

149 177

472,864

135 811

708 144 608 675

(88,732) (69,496)

16,943

24,792
3,314

20,563

26 462 29 690
73,459 S (75,309)

Principal actuarial assumptions used werc:

1996

Discount rate
Rate of increase in

compensation levels
Expected long-term rate

ofreturn on assets

7.25%

4.50%

9.00%

7.75%

4.50%

9.00%

A reconciliation of thc funded status of the plan to the
amounts recognized in the balance sheets is presented below:

(ThouwnCk ofDollars) 1996 1995

Service cost - benefits
earned during
the period

Interest cost on
accumulated benefit
obligation

Return on plan assets

Net amortization
and deferral 27,153

Nct consolidated
periodic postrehre-
mcnt benefit cost S 17,794

14,441

(30,846)

$ 8,168 $ 6,925

13,525 13,879

(12,550) (15,133)

12,778 17,179

$ 21,921 S 22,850

Postretlrement Plans
The Company provides medical and life insurance benefits
to its retired employees. Employccs must retire to become
eligible for these retirement benefits, which are based on
years ofservice and age. Thc retiree medical insurance plans
are contributory; the retiree life insurance plans are non-
contributory. In accordance with thc governing plan
documents, the Company retains the right to change or
elirninatc these benefits.

Funding is based upon actuarially determined contributions
that take tax consequences into account. Plan assets consist

primarily ofdomestic stocks and bonds. The postretirement
bcncfit cxpcnse for 1997, 1996 and 1995 was approximately
$9.8 million, $ 16.2 millionand $ 13.7 million, respectively.

The components ofnct periodic postretirement benefit
costs before consideration ofamounts capitalized or billed
to others and excluding severance costs ofS9.6 million in
1996 are as follows:

In addition to the defined benefit pension plans, the
Company also sponsors qualified defined contribution plans.
Collectively, tliese plans cover substantially all employees.
The plans provide for cmploycc contributions and partial
employer matching contributions after certain eligibility
rcquircrnents arc mct. Expenses related to these plans for,
1997, 1996 and 1995 were $3.9 million, $ 3.6 millionand

$ 3.2 niillion, respectively.



(Tbousnslds ofDsllsrs) 1996

Plan assets at fair value
Less accuinulatcd postrctircinent

benefit obligation:
Retirecs
Fully eligible plan participants
Other active plan participants

Total accumulated postretirement
benefit obligation

Plan assets less than accumulated
benefit obligation

Plus:

Unrecognized transition
obligation

Unrecognized net gain from past
experience different from
that assmned

Accrued postretircrnent liability

$ 151 146 $ 109 763

95,309
6,120

97 919

87,146
3,720

90 539

199 348 181 405

(48,202) (71,642)

115,541 123,239

79 013 62 759)
$ 11,674 $ 11,162)

Principal actuarial assumptions used were:

1996

Discount rate
Annual salary increases for life

insurance ob!igation
Expected long-term rate of return

on assets - after tax
Initial health care cost trend

rate - under age 65

Initial health care cost trend
rate - age 65 and over

Ultimate health care cost trend
rate (reached in the year 2002)

7.25%

4.50%

7.75%

8.00%

7.00%

5.00%

7.75%

4.50%

7.75%

9.00%

8.00%

5.50%

Assuming a 1% increase in the health care cost trend rate,
the 1997 cost ofpostretirement benefits other than pensions
would increase by approximately $6 millionand the accu-

mulated benefit obligation as ofDecember 31, 1997 would
increase by approximately $ 34 million.

A reconciliation of the funded status of the plan to the
ainounts recognized in the balance sheets is presented below:

10. LEASES

In 1986, APS entered into sale and leaseback transactions
under which it sold approximately 42% of its share ofPalo
Verde Unit 2 and certain cominon facilities. The gain of
approximately $ 140.2 millionhas been deferred and is

being amortized to operations expense over the original
lease term of29.5 years. The leases are being accounted for
as operating leases. The amounts to be paid each year
approximate $40.1 million through 1999, $46.3 million in
2000, and $49.0 million through 2015. Options to renew
for two additional years and to purchase the property at fair
market value at the end of the lease terms are also included.
Consistent with the ratcinaking treatment, an amount equal
to thc annual lease payments is included in rent expense. A
regulatory asset is recognized for the difference between
lease payments and rent expense calculated on a straight-
line basis.

In accordance with the 1996 regulatory agreement (sce
Note 3), the ACC accelerated APS'mortization of the reg-
ulatory asset for leases to an eight-year period that began
July 1, 1996. The accelerated ainortization is included in
depreciation and ainortization expense on the Consolidated
Statements of Income. The balance of this regulatory asset

at December 31, 1997 was $ 53.2 million. Lease expense
was approximately $42 inillion in each of the years 1995

through 1997.

APS has a capital lease on a combined cycle plant which it
sold and leased bacL The lease requires semiannual pay-
ments of$2.6 million through June 2001, and includes
rcncwal and purchase options based on fair market value.
This plant is included in plant in service at its original cost
of$54.4 million;accumulated amortization at December
31, 1997 was $46.5 inillion.

In addition, the Company leases certain land, buildings,
equipment and miscellaneous other items through operat-
ing rental agreements with varying terms, provisions and
expiration dates. Rent expense for 1997, 1996 and 1995 was

approxiinatcly $ 11.2 million, $ 12.8 millionand $ 15.4
mil-'ion,

respectively. Annual future ininimum rental commit-
'ents,excluding the Palo Verde and combined cycle leases,

through 2002 are as follows: 1998, $ 16.2 million; 1999,
$ 16 4 million; 2000, $ 16.7 million; 2001, $ 17.8 million; and
2002, $ 18.2 million.Total rental commiunents after the
year 2002 are estimated at $ 160.4 inillion
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11. JOINTLY-OWNED FACILITIES

AtDecember 31, 1997, APS owned interests in the follow-
ing jointly-owned electric generating and transmission

facilities. APS'hare of related operating and maintenance

expenses is included in utilityoperations and maintenance.

(Dollorkin T'boukonCk)

Ptrttnt
Ountd by

APS

Pion t
In

Strvito
Attuknulottd
Dtprttiotion

Conktruttion
IVorkin
Progrttt

Generating Facilities
Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station

Units 1 and 3

Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station
Unit 2 (sce Note 10)

Four Corners Steam Generating Station
Units 4 and 5

Navajo Stcam Generating Station
Units 1,2 and 3

'holla Stcam Generating Station
Common Facilities (b)

17.0%

15 0%

14.0%

62.8%(c)

572,054

148,342

182,637

66,106

213,717

66,470

82,326

34,551

9,338

1,369

33,081(Q)

580

29.1% S 1,830,794 $ 628,960 $ 14,498

Transmission Facilities
ANPP 500 KVSystem
Navajo Southern System
Palo Verde - Yunha 500 KVSystein
Four Corners Switchyards
Phoenix - Mead System

35.8%(c)
31 4%(c)
23.9%(c)
27.5%(c)
17.1%(c)

62,593
27,159
111376

3,071

36,418

19,107

16,710

3,971
1,707

(2,169)

4,903

1

337

(a) The construction costs at Navajo are primarily related to the
installation ofscrubbers required by recent environmental
legislation.

(b) APS is the operating agent for Cholla Unit4, which is owned

by PacifhCorp. The common faciliiicsat the Cho! Ia Pbnt are

jointly-owned.
(c) Weighted average of interests.

12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Litigation
The Company is party to various claims, legal actions and

complaints arising in the ordinary course ofbusiness. In the
opinion of inanagement, the ultimate resolution of these

matters willnot have a material adverse effec on the Com-
pany's financial statements.

Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station
APS has encountered tube cracking in stcam generators and
has taken, and willcontinue to take, rcmcdial actions that
it believes have slowed the rate of tube degradation. The
projected service life of the steain generators is reassessed

periodically and these analyses indicate that itwillbe

economically desirable for APS to replace the Unit 2 steam

generators between 2003 and 2008. APS estimates that its
share of the replacement costs (in 1997 dollars and includ-
ing installation and replaceinent power costs) willbe

approximately $ 50 inillion, inost ofwhich willbe incurred
after the year 2000.

During the fourth quarter of 1997, the Palo Verde partici-
pants, including APS, entered into a contract for the fabri-
cation of two replacement steam generators. The cost to
APS is estimated at approximately $26 million.These gen-
erators willbe used as replacements ifperformance ofexist-

ing generators deteriorates to less than acceptable levels.

The generators are expected on site in 2002. APS'hare of
installation costs is approximately $24 million.

Based on the latest available data, APS estimates that thc
Unit 1 and Unit 3 steam gcncrators should operate for thc
license periods (until 2025 and 2027, respectively), although
APS willcontinue its norhnal periodic assessment of these

steam generators.

Under the Nuclear Waste Policy Act, DOE was to develop
thc facilitics necessary for the storage and disposal of spent
fuel and to have the first such facility in operation by 1998.

That facilitywas to be a permanent repository, but DOE
has announced that such a repository now cannot be com-
pleted before 2010. In November 1997, the Court of
Appeals for the D.C. Circuit aAirmed its previous decision
that DOE must begin accepting spent fuel by 1998 and
issued an order precluding DOE from excusing its own
delay on the grounds that DOE has not yct prepared a

permanent repository or interim storage facility.

The Company has capacity in existing fuel storage pools at
Palo Verde which, with certain modifications, could accom-
modate all fuel expected to bc discharged from norhnal

operation ofPalo Verde through about 2002, and believes it
could aughnent that wet storage with new facilities for on-
sitc dry storage ofspent fuel for an indeterminate period of
operation beyond 2002, subject to obtaining any required
governmental approvals. The Company currently bclievcs

that spent fuel storage or disposal methods willbe available

for use by Palo Verde to allow its continued operation
beyond 2002.



The Palo Verde participants have insurance for public
liabilityresulting from nuclear energy hazards to thc full
limitof liabilityunder federal law. This potential liabilityis
coycrcd by primary liabilityinsurance provided by com-
mercial insurance carriers in the amount ofS200 million
and the balance by an industry-wide retrospective assess-

rncnt program. Iflosses at any nuclear power plant covered

by the programs cxcced thc accumubted funds, APS could
bc assessed retrospective premium adjustmcnts. The maxi-
mum asscssmcnt per reactor under the program for each

nuclear incident is approximately S79 million, subject to an

annual limitofS10 millionper incident. Based upon
APS'9.1%

interest in the three Palo Verde units, APS'axi-
mum potential assessment pcr incident for all three units is

approxiniately $ 69 million, with an annual payincnt limita-
tion ofapproxiniately S9 million.

The Palo Verde participants maintain "all risk" (including
nuclear hazards) insurance for property damage to, and
decontamination of, property at Palo Verde in the aggre-
gate amount of$2.75 billion, a substantial portion ofwhich
must first be applied to stabilization and decontamination.
APS has also secured insurance against portions ofany
incrcascd cost ofgeneration or purchased power and busi-
ness interruption resulting from a sudden and unforeseen

outage ofany of thc three units. The insurance coverage
discussed in this and the previous paragraph is subject to
certain policy conditions and exclusions.

Fuel and Purchased Power Commitments
APS is a party to various fuel and purchased power
contracts with terins expiring from 1998 through 2020
that include required purchase provisions. APS estimates
its 1998 contract requirements to be approximately $ 136

million. IIowcvcr, this amount may vary significantly
pursuant to certain provisions in such contracts which
pcrrnit APS to decrease its rcquircd purchases under
certain circumstances.

APS is contractually obligated to rcimbursc certain coal
providers for amounts incurred for coal mine reclamation.
APS'hare of the total obligation is estimated at $ 110 mil-
lion. The portion of the coal mine reclamation obligation
related to coal already burned is approxiniatcly $66 million
at December 31, 1997 and is included in "Deferred Credits-
Othcr" in the Consolidated Balance Shccts. A regulatory
asset has been established for amounts not yct rccovcred
from ratcpayers. In accordance with the'1996 regulatory
agreement (scc Note 3), the ACC began accelerated amor-
tization ofAPS'egulatory asset for coal mine reclamation
costs over an eight-year period beginning July-l, 1996.

Amortization is inclu<lcd in depreciation and amortization

expense on the Consolidated Statements of Income. The
balance of the regulatory asset at December 31, 1997 was

approximately $60 million.

Construction Program
Consolidated capital expenditures in 1998 are estimated at
$ 368 million.

13. NUCLEAR DECOMMISSIONING COSTS

APS recorded S11.4 million for decommissioning expense
in each of the years 1997 and 1996. APS estimates itwill
cost approximately $2.0 billion (S460 million in 1997

dollars), over a 14-year period beginning in 2024, to
decommission its 29.1% interest in the three Palo Verde
units. Decommissioning costs arc charged to expense over
the respective unit's operating license term and are included
in the accumubtcd depreciation balance until each unit
is retired. Nuclear decommissioning costs are recovered
in rates.

APS is utilizing a 1995 site-specific study for Palo Verde,
prepared for APS by an independent consultant, that
assuines the prompt removaVdismantleincnt method of
dccominissioning. APS is required to update the study
every three years.

As required by regulation, APS has established external
trust accounts into which quarterly deposits are made
for decommissioning. As ofDecember 31, 1997 and 1996,

APS had deposited a total ofS79.5 inillionand S68.1 rnil-
lion, respectively. The trust accounts are included in
"Investments and Other Assets" on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets at a market value of$ 124.6 millionand
$95.5 millionon Dcccmber 31, 1997 and 1996, respective-

ly. The trust funds are invested primarily in fixed-income
securities and domestic stock and are classified as available

for sale. Rcalizcd and unrealized gains and losses are
reflecte in accumulated depreciation.

In February 1996, the FASB issued an exposure draft
"Accounting for Certain Liabilities Related to Closure or
Removal ofLong-Lived Assets" which would require the
cstimatcd present value of thc cost ofdecommissioning and
certain other removal costs to be recorded as a liability,
along with an offsetting pbnt asset when a decommission-

ing or other reinoval obligation is incurred. The FASB has

not dctermincd when a revised exposure draft or a final
statement willbe issued.



14. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIALDATA IUNAUDITEDI

Consolidated quarterly financial infortnation for 1997 and 1996 is as follows:

(Dollars in Thousands, Exttpt ptr Shark kf mounu)

Quarter Ended bfartb 33 punt 30 Stpttmbtr 30 Dtttmbtr 3I

Operating revenues
Electric
Real cstatc

Operating income (a)
Net income

Earnings per average common share outstanding
Continuing operations and nct income - basic

Continuing operations and nct income - diluted
Dividends dcclarcd per share (b)

S 379,021 S 458,751 S '32,821 S 407,960
19,543, 30,166 30,929 35,835

S 82,471 S 150,024 S 243,454 S 81,557
S 25,382 S 67,182 S 124,340 S 18,952

S 0.29 S 0.79 S 1 47 S 0.21

S 0.29 S 0.78 S 1.46 S 0.21

S 0275 S 055 S — S 030

(Dollart in Thousands, Erttpt ptr Sbart sf mounts) 1996

Quarter Ended bfartb 3l juno 30 Stpttmbtr 30 Dtttmbtt 3l

Operating revenues
Electric
Real estate

Operating income (a)

Income (loss) from continuing operations (c)
Loss from discontinued operations - net of income tax
Extraordinary charge for early retirement ofdebt-

net of incotne tax
Net income (loss)

Earnings (loss) pcr average common sharc
outstanding

Continuing operations - basic
Discontinued operations - basic

Extraordinary charge - basic

Nct income - basic

Continuing operations - diluted
Discontinued operations - diluted
Extraordinary charge - diluted
Net income - diluted

Dividends declared per share (d)

S 345,261 S 426,658 S 566,899 S 379,454
15,994 26,150 31,892 25,452

S 106,562 S 152,094 S 245,800 S 39,403

S 34,859 S 61,454 S 121,406 S (6,660)
(9,539)

3 597 2 471 14272
S 31,262 S 58,983 S 107,134 S (16,199)

S 0.40 S 0.70 S 1.39 S (0.08)
(0.1 1)

0.04 0.03 0.1

S 0.36 S 0.67 S 1.23 S (0.19)

S 0.40 S 0.70 S 1.38 S (0.08)
(0.11)

0.04 0.03 0.1

S 0.36 S 0.67 S 1.22 S 0.19)
S 025 S 050 S 0275 S

(a) APS'perations are subject to seasonal fluctuations primarily as

a result ofweather conditions. The results ofoperations for
interim periods are not necessarily indicadve of the results to be
expected for the fullyear.

(b) Dividends for the quarter ended September 30, 1997 were
declared in June.

(c) Net loss for the quarter ended December 31, 1996 includes a

charge of$ 18.9 million for a voluntary severance program.
(d) Dividends for the quarters ended September 30

and December 31, 1996 were declared inJune and
September, respectively.



15. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company estimates that the carrying amounts of its
cash cquivalcnts and commercial paper are reasonable esti-
mates of their fair values at December 31, 1997 and 1996

due to their short maturities.

Investments in debt and equity securities are held for pur-
poses other than trading. Thc December 31, 1997 and 1996
fair values ofsuch invesuncnts, determined by using quoted
market values or by discounting cash flows at rates equal to
thc Company's cost ofcapital, approximate their carrying
anlounts.

Thc carrying value of long-tenn debt (excluding a capitalized
lease obligation) on December 31, 1997 and 1996 was $2.34

h billionand $2.51 billion, respectively, and the estimated fair
value was S2.38 billion and $ 2 47 billion, respectively. The
fair value estimates are based on quoted market prices of the
same or similar issues.

16. EARNINGS PER SHARE

In 1997 the Company adopted SFAS No. 128 "Earnings
Pcr Share." This statcmcnt requires the presentation of
both basic and diluted earnings per share on the financial
statements. The following table presents earnings per
avenge common share outstanding (EPS):

17. STOCK OPTIONS

The Company has incentive plans under which it may grant
non-qualilied stock options (NQSOs), incentive stock options
(ISOs) and rcstrictcd stock awards to officers and key
employees.

The plans provide for the granting ofncw options or awards
ofup to 3.5 million shares at a price pcr option not less than
fair market value on the date thc option is granted. The plans
also provide for the granting of any combination ofstock
appreciation rights or dividend equivalents. The awards out-
standing under the various incentive plans at December 31,
1997 approximate 1,486,417 NQSOs, 183,190 restricted
shares, and no dividend equivalent shares, ISOs or stock
appreciation rights.

The FASB issued SFAS No. 123 "Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation" which was cffectivc for 1996. The statcrnent
cncouragcs, but docs not require, companies to recognize
compensation expense based on the fair value method. The
Company continues to recognize expense based on Account-
ing Principles Board Opinion No. 25. I.Iad the Coinpany
determined compensation expense based on the fair value
of its stock options, the Company's nct income and earnings
per share would have been reduced to thc pro fonna
amounts indicated below:

1996 1995 (Doliorhin TbovhunCh,

Erhhph por Sbnro hlnhounhs) GMV 1996 1995

Basic EPS:
Continuing

operations
Discontinued

operations
Extraordinary

ella rge
Nct income

Diluted EPS:

Continuing
operations

Discontinued
operations

Extraordinary
charge

Nct income

S 2.76

$ 2.76

$ 2.74

$ 2.74

$ 2 41 S 2.28

(0.11)

, 0.23 0.13

$ 2.07 $ 2.15

$ 2 40 S 2.27

(0.1 1)

0.23 0.13

S 2.06 S 2.14

Nct income
As rcportcd S 235,856
Pro fonna S, 235,446

Nct income pcr share
As reported S 2.76
Pro forma S 2.75

$ 181>180 $ 188,037

$ 180,969 $ 188,010

$ 2.07 $ 2.15

$ 2.07 .S 2.15

1996 1995

Risk-free interest rate
Dividend growth
Volatility
Expcctcd life (months)

5 66%
4.50%

'5.63%
60

5.77% 5.43%
4.50% 4.50%

17.10% 12.60%

58 56

Thc fair value ofeach fixed stock option is estimated on fllc
date ofgrant using thc Bbck-Scholcs option-pricing lnodcl
with thc followingweighted-average assumptions:

Dilutivcstock options increased average conunon shares out-
standing by 519,800 shares, 580,405 shares, and 464,926
sltares in 1997, 1996 and 1995, respectively, but had no effect
on nct income. Total average common shares outstanding for
the purposes ofcalculating diluted earnings per share were

86,022,709 shares, 88,021,920 shares and 87,884,226 shares

in 1997, 1996 and 1995, respectively.

Options to purchase 254,450 shares ofconmlon stock at
$39.75 per share were outstanding since the last quarter of
1997 but were not included in the computation ofdiluted
EPS because the options'xercise price was greater than the
average nlarket price of the common shares. The options
werc still outstanding at the end of 1997.

The cffccts ofapplying SFAS No. 123 for disclosing com-
pensation cost may not bc reprcsentativc of thc effect on
reported nct income for future years bccausc pro fonna net
income does not consider compensation costs for stock
options granted prior to January I, 1995.
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El Paso Electric Company is a public utility engaged in the generation,
I

F

transmission and distribution of electricity in an area of approximately 10,000

square miles in West Texas and Southern New Mexico. EPE has total a<sets

of approximately $ 1.8 billionand total revenues for the year ended December

31, 1997 were almost $ 600 million.
I

EPE serves approximately 284,000 retail customers in Texas and New Mexico.

In addition, it sells electricity to wholesale customers in New Mexico and

California and also has a contract for sales of power to the Comisidn Federal

de Electricidad de Mexico (the national electric utilityof Mexico). Principal

industrial and,other large customers of EPE include. steel production, copper

and oil refining, and garment manufacturing concerns as well as United

States military installations, inc)uding,the United States Army Air Defense

Center at Fort Bliss in Texas, White Sands Missile Range and Holloman Air

Force Base in New Mexico.

(P<jlyggnnltl:.

EPE's mission is to provide

reliable, competitively priced

electric service. We willkeep

to the highest standards of

safety, integrity and excellence

in all that we do, and we will

achieve financ'ial health.

~(n ~ P~Irfpy;

EPE's principal offices are located at,Kayser Center, 100 North Stanton,

El Paso, Texas 79901. EPE was incorporated in Texas in 1901.

VUAI filkl Hr, I."Slit&>V

In 1997, EPE made significant progress toward improving its financial

fundamentals. EPE continues to experience strong sales growth with increases

of 2.3% in retail energy sales and 1.7% customer growth, over 1996 levels.

'EPE once again successfully renewed a 200 MWpower sales contract with

Mexico for 1998. Operationally, the Palo Verde Nuclear Cenerating Station

achieved an 88% capacity factor and earned a 1.2S overall SALP score

while operations and maintenance costs associated with the plant declined

7.2% from the previous year. EPS for 1997 were $ 0.64, an increase of 25%,

and EBITDAper share were $ 4.38. EPE also continued efforts to delever its

capital structure, with $ 83 million of long-term debt repurchases on the
I

open market, bringing total debt (net of available cash) to approximately
I,

64% of capital at year-end.

Safety —Electricity is an

inherently hazardous product,

yet itis essential in our

modern society. Producing

and distributing it safely is

essential to our success.

Integrity'- Accountability,

honesty, and reliabilitymust "

characterize all that we do.

Excellence —We measure

our performance against the

highest standards and expect

continuous improvement In

all that we do.
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Financial

1997 ~ic
Earnings per Share
rrurrrchrared ~lghred average) $ 0.64

(Pro forms)

$ 0.51 24.80%

f0

,l

EBITDA $ 264,521 $ 256,857 2.98%

Debt.Repurchascs $ 83,102

Operating Revenue $ 594,038

$ 117,951

$ 583,393 1.82% left to rlzhlt Rasrnundo Cotuoga, rvtaflO htartf lier,
Charlie Vlffanueva, Scen Mccoy ifl„endRoland Lucfcy with
Ofstnbutlon Operartons and Ohrntxcion Ocwtgn and Oct)very.

Ol)Mexpense

NcfIncome

$ 166,698

$ 38,649

$ 169,720

$ 30,757 25.66%

Capitalization
Common Stock Equity

Preferred Stock

Long-Term Debt

Financing and Capital
Lease Obligations

Current Maturities of
Financing and Capital
Lease Obligations

Total Capitalization

21.88'Yo

7.16%

$ 28,248 66.97% $ 24 424 70.96'Yo

$ 28,463

$ 1,486,232

$ 28,333

100.00% $ 1,514,189 100.00%

$369,640, 24.87% $ 331 r257

$ 121 319 8.16'Yo $ 108,426

$ 938,562 $ 1,021,749

II"~n QQQ
IhlIIfjd@J'ggjggjlyyg$~fnnjj

II'flil~njj ~0

Systematic Assessment of
Licensee Performance (SALP)

Number ofShares
Outstanding

Weighted Average Shares
Shares and Equivalents
Outstanding

Actual Shares
Outstanding 12/31

60,437,632

60,256,438

Book Value pe/Share $ 6.13

60,116,709

60,179,981 s,

$ 5.50

Report Date Evaluation Period Average

04/28/98 06/96-03/98 1.25

07/05/96 12/94 %5/96 1.25

01/12/95 06/93-11/94 2.00

Market Price per Share

Number ofRegistered
Shareholders

$ 7.31

6,675

$ 6.50

11,847

SALP evafuates four arcan(1) Operations,
(2) hbintenancc, (3) Engineering, and (4) Pbnt Support.

Thc cvafuatfon range fs 1„2, or 3, with 1 Icing the
highest score.

(tn thousands except number of ref))stored shueholden and per share data)

Operational
Institute of Nuclear Power
Operations (INPO)

1997 1996 1995 1994 '993 Date Rating

Megawatt hour Sales

Sales for Resale

Retail

Osvned Generating
Capacity (MfAri

Total System Peak (Mytll

I

1,897,885, 1,753,553

5,784,447 5,652,907

1,646,357, 1,925,671 2,484,128

5,416,902 5,396,040 4,948,077

1,500 1,500 1,500 1,497 1,497

1,442 a 1,387 1,374 1,365 1,335

October 1997 1

October 1995

July 1994 2

Note: INPO pbnt evaluations arc conducted on a 12
to (Smooth cycle.

Number ofEmployees ',076 1,082;, 1,111 1,133 1,140

Number ofCustomers 284,174 279,326 . 273,623 267,77S, 261,958
'NPO cwafuates seven areas." (1) Organization and

Adminiuration, (2) Ope~ations, (3})vtafntcnancc,
(4) Engfnecvfng, (5) Chemhtry, (6) Radiologkal
Protection, and (7) Training.

PV Capacity Factors 88 86 81 69 66
The evaluation range fs 1,2, 3, 4, or 5, with 1 being
the highest score.
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Working smarter than ever before, EPE's dedicated employees added substantially to
EPE's accomplishments over the past year.

In 1997, we paid down debt by $ 83 million through open market purchases. We also
accumulated cash of $ 111 million. This cash is now available for additional open
market purchases of debt or the retirement of debt and preferred stock as debt matures
and the preferred stock becomes callable. In addition, we renewed our power sale
agreement with Mexico's national electric utility, the ComisirJn Federa(de Elec(ricidad.
It is a valuable association which rwe willcontinue to cultivate and expand.

picturerit Maartrot Cattro with itrwrer ceo«ration.

"A// the officers

and directors

ofE/'E are-

'committed to

increasing the

value of your

investment...."

George Edwards
Cha'irma« ofth«Boast

While retail sales increased 2.3% over 1996, we held O&Mcosts below 1996 levels-
a third straight year of'O&Mcost reductions. Earnings per share were $ .64 and free
cash flowper share was $ 2.30. Standard and Poors improved our debt rating from BII-
to BB+ with a positive outlook, and Moody's and Duff & Phelps improved our credit
ratings as well, to Ba2 and BB, respectively.,

We are focused on winning the loyalty of our customers. From streamlining the process
through which we plan and build facilities to connect new customers, and improving
the reliability of our electric service, to providing value-addetf products and services
through our Energy Services Business Unit, we are taking care of our customers in
ways'which benefit them and EPE. Notably, our ESBU began operation in July 1997
and now has over $ 6.5 million in energy service proposals outstanding and $ 1.9
millionof energy service projects in progress.

. Altjiough our very strong cash flow and rapid deleveragiog are indicative of bright
future prospects, our future is not entirely free of uncertainty. Three separate matters
are cause for concern: our controversy with Las Cruces, New Mexico; the New Mexico
Public UtilityCommission's review of our New Mexico retail rates; and the potential
enactment in 1999 of laws introducing retail competition to the electric industry in
Texas and Ngw Mexico.

Our controversy with Las Cruces, which represents about 8% of our total reventie, is
the most vexing. Las Cruces has created a municipal utilityand is attempting to take
over, through acquisition or condemnation, our distribution facilities in Las Cruces.
Although Las Cruces has refused to renew our franchise which expired in 1993, we
continue'to provide Las Cruces with electric service pending the, outcome of the
municipalization effort. At the center of'the controversy is the issue of fair compensation
to EPE for costs we have incurred, primarily through our investment in the Palo Verde
Nuclear Generating Station, to assure our ability to satisfy the present and
future energy needs of our customers, including those in Las Cruces.

This issue is awaiting decision at the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission. The
FERC staff has calculated a range for the Las Cruces stranded costs from $ 8 million
to $ 74 million, and made an initial recommendation that Las Cruces pay'$30 million.
Las Cruces contends the range should be from zero to $ 20 million. We believe fair
compensation would be $ 101 million. To.acquire our system, Las Cruces would also
have to pay us the value of our distribution facilities in Las Cruces, over and above
the amount of stranded cost compensation. Barring agreerhent, that value would be
determined through a condemnation proceeding in state court.

I

We prefer a negotiated settlement with Las Cruces. However, we will not voluntarily
agree to a solution which does not fairlycompensate us for investments we have made
to serve our Las Cruces customers. While we will continue to pursue a negotiated
settlement, we do not predict a speedy resolution of this controversy.

I

The New Mexic'o Commission's review of our rates is a separate proceeding from the
Las Cruces matter, and is a result of rate complaints filed by two residential customers.
Although we are not seeking to increase our New Mexico rates, we have filed evidence
which shows that under existing interpretation of New Mexico law, our New Mexico
rates should be increased by approximately 8.5%. Other parties to the case, however,
may file evidence which willargue that our rates should bq reduced. Our goal is to
find a basis upon which this case can be settled. We expect this case to be resolved
by year-end 1998.



Finally, the Texas and New Mexico legislatures appear prepared fo consider legislative
proposals during their 1999 sessions which would introduce retail competition to the
generation of electricity. EPE supports such a transition as long as all customers are
treated fairly, the new competitive playing field is level (i.e. electric utilities are allowed
to compete on the same basis as other generators), and past investments by electric
utilities approved by utilitycommissions may be recovered.

We willcontinue our efforts to resolve these three concerns. Their successful resolution,
however, will not in itself assure our success; at best, it will only set the stage. To
further increase the value of EPE, we willpursue four principal objectives:

:..EE! i CX$.

~ Enhancing our transmission iriterconnection with the Comisi6n Federal de
Electrlcldad to permit joint planning and development of mutually beneficial
generation projects and energy trading;

~ Maintaining abbve-average growth in'retail sales, coupled with aggressive
action to win'the loyalty of our customers;

pieturesf t peul ~n with Customer Services,

~ Increasing revenue from our Energy Services Business Unit; and

~ Controlling costs and maintaining our cash flowyo that we can continue to
delever and move toward investment-grade credit fundamentals.

The first two objectives require elaboration. The El Paso/Las Cruces/Julrez metroplex

„
is a unique international community celebrating its 400th anniversary this year. The
potential economic development of this area, driven by international trade, is almost
unlimited. El Paso/Julrez is the busiest border point in the world. Approximately 20%,
of the U.S. land trade with Mexico moves through the El Paso area. One startling
indicator of the substantial growth potential in this international community is the rise
in electric energy consumption in Julrez. From 1993 to 1997, electricity use in Julrez
grew at an annual compound rate of more than 9%. In 1997, 48,000 new jobs were
created in Julrez.

El Paso> itself is poised for significant economic growth. While El Paso'lost many
garment industry jobs in 1997, the Greater El Paso Chamber of Commerce reports that
El Paso gained more than 4,000 new jobs in 1997. The Chamber's goal for 1998 is

6,000 jobs.

As for EPE's growth, our retail sales have increased at a compound annual rate'of over
3.5% for the last five years, a substantially higher rate than the industry average. The

" number of our customers"has grown at an average annual rate of 2% to 2.5% per year,
'nd more than 30% of our sales to large commercial and industrial customers are

under long-term, competitively priced contracts.

We are pleased to report that at the end of the year Patricia Holland-Branch and James

Cicconi joined our Board. Both bring outstanding business and public affairs experience
to an already strong and independent Board. All the officers and directors of EPE are
committed to increasing the value of your investment by maintaining our strong cash

flow, winning the loyalty of our customers through outstandin'g service, effectively
meeting challenges in New Mexico, and seeking regional and international opportunities
for growth.

Thank you for y'our confidence.

For the Board,

"We are

focused on

winning

the loyalty

of ouI

customers."

James Haines
Pres Irfen\ xntJ
Chief Executive Offion

George W. Edwards, Jr.

Chairman of the Board
James S. Haines, Jr.
President.and Chief Executive Officer
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Change in the electric industry is occurring daily. Federal open access

rules guiding transmission service related to wholesale competition are a

reality, and retail competition is taking shape in several states. Texas and
New Mexico will likely consider restructuring legislation during their
1999 legislative sessions. As part of our plan to succeed and achieve.our
principal objectives, we have identified critical areas of our business which
merit our concentrated focus:

4

i

~ Deleveraging and Cash Flow

~ Competitive Service and Pricing

~ System Reliability

~ Safety

~ Corporate Citizenship

EPE sets specific yearly corporate goals relating to these areas of focus, and

has established an all-employee cash bonus plan ifgoals are attained. Under
the plan, no bonus is paid, irrespective of performance in other areas, if the
cash flow goal is not achieved. The cash flow goal must be achieved net
of any bpnus paid.

During 1997, the first full year of the plan, EPE met or exceeded most of the

goals set, including the cash flow goal, resulting in a bonus pay out to all

employees. EPE believes that this type of goal alignment. between employees
and shareholders creates the culture necessary for success in today's changing

utility landscape.

Deleveraging

In 1997, EPE repurchased $ 83 million of first mortgage bonds jn the open
market. At year-end, the debt component of the capital structure was

approximately 67% (including current maturities). Net of available cash,

the debt ratio at year-end would have been approximately 64%. By
comparison, EPE emerged from bankruptcy protection in February 1996

with debt (net of cash) at approximately 74% of its capital structure.

left to riShlr patricia Vltarreal, trora Herrera, t rettrrry Sheannan,
ansi Atma Rasa Torres with tinanctal Snvices.

r

"Reducing the amount

ofdebt in the capital

- structure is critical

to EPE's ability to

achieve financial

health. However,

deleveraging goes

beyond simply

repurchasing debt.

Efficiencies which

reduce costs or

increase productivity

improve cash flow

and help delever EPE."

This rapid dele'veraging progress was cited by credit rating agencies as a

contributing factor to their decision to upgrade credit ratings for EPE in 1997

and early 1998.

Minimizing financial risk through the reduction of fixed obligations will
continue to be a primary focus. Currently, credit rating agencies define an

investment grade capital structure as having a debt-to-capital ratio between

.50-55%. Achieving an investment grade credit rating is a fundamental

objective for EPE, which we believe is achievable in the relatively near term

given EPE's strong free cash flow ($2.30 per share in'1997).

rtrrrrr I
i> itr'

Chris Bohle
ManaRer,
TreasrIry Servirs s
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Competitive Service and Pricing
'

One factor in EPE's recent 'financial improvement has been its ability to
reduce costs. The Rate Freeze Agreement currently in effect in EPE's Texas

jurisdiction provides for EPE to maintain the benefit of cost reductions and
increases in productivity. In 1997, EPE was able„to reduce its operations
and maintenance costs by 1.79% from 1996 levels, marking the third year
in a row of declining costs.

/
Recognizirt'g that revenue enhancement iy equally vital to success, EPE

created an Energy'Services Business-Unit during 1997. The ESBU was
charged with developing energy efficient products and services that will

~ build on EPE's core competencies in the electric utilitybusiness and should
serve to differentiate EPE from potential competitors. Marketing plans have

been. developed and are being implemented. Customers are now being
offered pricing options, as well as value-added products and services that
give them greater value for the kilowatt-hours purchased from EPE. These

- efforts are focused primarily on developing customer loyalty in addition,
to providing a base for incremental revenue growth in the future.

"It's important for
'PE to demonstrate
its ability to provide
value-added services,

. to be competitive and
to-be customer-focused.'-".

Eddie Rodriguez
&miorVice President
Cud/ner rtCorporsregrNtces

n

During approximately six months of operation,'since its inception in 1997,
the ESBU has conti'acted to provide energy services such as lighting retrofits;

mapping services, upgrading customer facilities and other energy-related
-services to customers which have resulted in over $ 6.5 million in energy

„service proposab outstanding aS of year-end 1997, approximately $ 1.9
million of which are currently in progress.

System Reliability

System reliability will be a major. issue in the transition to a competitive
market. Emphasizifig that fact, the. Public UtilityCommission of

Texas'dopted

rules during 1997 requiring all Texas utilities under its jurisdiction
~ to file semi-annual reports on their service performances, based on several

industry-.accepted reliability. indices. EPE also measures the performance
= of its New Mexico service area with the same reliability indices. Of

the 1,0 largest Texas utilities filing initial reports in 1997, EPE ranked
third-best in the category'easuring frequency of outages.

/

"As retail competition
approaches, one of the

primary distinguishing
- characteristics ofpotential

electric service providers
. is likely to-be quality
ofservice. One major-
component ofquality of

-. service is reliabi%ty- the
measure ofa utility's ability
to maintain continuous

. service to its customers."

EPE engages in an active ongoing program to upgrade facilities and enhance

reliability. In 1997, EPE expended $ 47.7 million for capital improvements-
on its facilities, of which app'roximately 33% was directly'related to,
maintaining oq improving system reliability. Capi'tal improvement projects

'range from new construction and equipment installations to facility
replacement and repair. EPE has and continues to expend significant capital

for undergrol'jnd cable replacement, feeder reconductoring and voltage
upgrades, protective device improvements, line rebuilds, substation upgrades

and power plant improvements. The ultimate objective of all facility
improvements, replacements and repairs is to ensure operational integrity
and to mai'ntain or enhance total system reliability.

Larry Berg
Project Management
Spedhlist
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Safety

Continually striving to minimize the number of work-related accidents
and the amount of work time lost as a result of accidents is essential to
our success, given the inherently dangerous nature of our business. EPE

has recently implemented various programs designed to make employees
and the community more aware of the importance of safety when dealing
with electricity. As a result of these programs during 1997, EPE reduced
the number of overall on-the-job injuries by 44% from the previous year.
In addition, EPE administered and organized important safety training
and certification courses for hundreds of EPE employees. EPE believes
that this safety message is also vital to the public and made more than
120 safety presentations to schools, businesses, community groups and
government agencies.

The success of EPE relies upon the efforts of its employees. When they
work safely and productively, EPE can achieve its goals and succeed in
our changing industry.

"Our commitment to safety
goes beyond providing
a safe environment for
employees and customers.
We want to change the,
way people view their
work place, their homes,
their schools and their
communities."

Hector Silva
satigy sup N'i'm

Corporate Citizenship

Being a good corporate citizen is a principal element of the working
philosophy at EPE. A strong, giving presence in the communities we serve

reinforces our relationship with our customers and develops pride and a

sense of accomplishment in our employees. There is no better
way to show our customers how much we care than through our direct
and active support of civic and charitable activities.

Responding to specific community needs during 1997, EPE's support
focused on programs which addressed issues such as youth education,
family and child crisis, abuse prevention and support for single
parent families.

In 1997, EPE's employees generously contributed to United Way, exceeding
our corporate contribution goal. As a result, EPE was one of only five area

businesses to be recognized with the prestigious Arco de Oro Award from
the United Way of El Paso County given for substantial contribution.

"AtEPE, we all share a

common vision: we
believe that making
our communities
and neighborhoods
better pla'ces in
which to live and,

work is an important
part ofourjob."

Another example of the spirit of giving evident in EPE employees is the
Volunteers in Action Program. EPE makes specific work hours available
to employees who wish to participate in civic and charitable activities..
Since its inception, hundreds of employees have contributed thousands

of hours to make their communities better places in which to live. EPE

employees tutor school children in various subjects; they coach Little
League; they volunteer in senior citizen centers; and they organize fund-

raising events for their churches. Their commitment and dedication affirm
EPE's belief that its employees are an essential part of our corporate
citizenship efforts'.

Victoria Perea
r <immunity
Dc v<0~>nx»t Advw>r



Operating Revenues (in thousands):

Base Revenues

Retail:

Residential

Commercial and Industrial, Small

Commercial and Indus(rial, Largo

Sales to Public Authorities

Total Retail

Wholesale Sales for Resale

Total Base Revenues

Fuel Revenues and Economy Sales

1997

$ 146,412

143,395

45,581

64 328

399,716

59,263

458,979

130,172

1996 (8)

$ 141,719

1387910

43,483

65,534

389,646

71,254

460,900

114,042'995

tb)

$ 128,295

128,715

40,870

59 613

357,493

74,557

432,050

68,823

1994

'129,869

126,450

39,754

59 811

355,884

75,750
"431,634

101,076

Other 4 887 3,981 3 744 4,050

Total Operating Revenues $ 594 038 , $ 578 923 $ 504 617 $ 536 760

Number of Customers (end of year):

Residential

Commercial and Industrial, Small

Commercial and Industrial, Large

Other

Total

254,348

25,900
115

3 811

284 174

250,209

25,304

102

3 711

279 326

245,245

24,615

89

3 674

273 623

240,368

23,857

80
3 470

267 775

Energy Supplied, Net, kWh (in thousands):

Generated

Purchased and interchanged

Total

Energy Sales, kWh (in thousands):

Retail:

Residential .

Commercial and industrial, Small

Commercial and Industrial, Large

Sales to Public Authoritfes

Wholesale:

Sales for Resale

Economy Sales

Total Sales

Losses and Company Use

Total

8,186,187
617,651

8,803,838

1,587,733

1,834,953

1,271,449

1,090,312

57784644$

1,897„885

640,017

8,322,349

481,489

8,803,838 ( 1

~ ~

7,920,675

711,791

8,632,466

1,545,274

1,779,986

17216,941

1,110,706

5,652,907

1,753,553

757,999

8,164,459

468,007

8,632,466 (1

7,439,404

584,853.

8,024,257

1,473,349

1,754,176

1,121,329

1,068,048

5,416,902

1,646,357

538,102

7,601,361

422,896
8,024,257 (0

7,018,423
-1,051,251

8,069,674

1,500,426

1,721,736

1,092,028
1,081,850

5,396,040

1,925,671

320,026

7,641,737

427,937

8,069,674 (0

Native System:

Peak Load, kW
Net Generating Capacity for Peak, kW
Load Factor

1,122,QOO

1,500,000

64.0%

1,105,000

14500/000

63.4 %

1,088,000

1,500,000

61.6 %

1,093,000

1,497,000

61 1%

Total System:

Peak Load, kW
Net Generating Capacity for Peak, kW
Load Factor

1,4426000

1,500,000
64.0 %

1,387,000

1,500,000
64.2 %

1,374,000

1,500,000%

62.0%

1,365,000

1,497,000

63 7%
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1993 1992 1991 1990 1989 1988

$ 123,706

120,084

36,440
57 063

337,293

89,863

427,156,

112,005
I

$ 0 124,805

120,793

38,693

57 780

342,071

80,663

422,734

98,451

$ 109,891

104,794

35,5,92

51 200

301,477

'4,095

355,572

103,810

$ 101,307

94,117

30,170
47,425

273,019

49,918

322,937

119,525

$ 97,381

89,043 .

27,986
46 046

260,456

52,272

312,728

118,305

$ 90,733

80,449
23,631

41 390

236,203

57,223

2)3,426

104,499

5 543 594. 5 524 760

4 433 . 3 575 3 023

5 . 462,405

2 847

5 445 309

2,437

$ 433,470

3,945

5 401 870

235,151

23,338
74

3 395

261 958

228,688

22,883

68

3 251

254 890

223,684

22,417
68

3 156

249 325

218,753

22;135

60
2 788

243 736

214,664

21,762

52

2 659

239 137

209,550

21,069

39
2 543

233 201

66625,162

I 416,172

8 041 334

7„330,004

589,288

7 919 292

68128,171

I 273 440

7 401 611

5,2777127
I 726,525

7 003 652

4,753,236
I 794 492

6 547 728

'

4,904,854

2,079 665

6 984 519

1,424,935

1,616,434

872,477

1,034,231

4,948;077

2,484,128

164,559

7,596,764

444,570
8 041 334

1,395,387

1,555,047 „

911,750

997,483

4,859,667

2,361,204

264,654

7,485,525
433 767

7 919 292

1,342,830

1,511,550

864,025

956,691

4,6754096

1,717,850
637 425

7,030,371

371 240

7401 611

lq318;471

1,484,207

7847177

954,441

4,5418296

1,442,799

640,399

6,624„494

379,158

7003 652

1,299,768

1,450,817

763„650

947.948

4,462,183

',411,162

348,429

6,221,774

325,954

6 547 728

1,246,081

1,397,913

697,758

908,238

4,249,990

1,271,366

I 309 87?

6,631,228
353 291

6984 519

99471000

1,497,000

62.1 070

974,000

1,497,000

62.3 %

929,000

1,497,000

626%

920,000

1,497,000

61 6%

916,000

1,497„000

61 0%

840,000

1,497,000
630%

~,

1,076(000

1,497,000
670%

1„302,000

1,497,000

664%

17335,$ + 171427000 1 0987000 1,002,000

1,497,000 1,497,000 1,497,000 .1,497,000

664% 67.9 % 66.7 % 67.3 %

a) Financial data I5 ba3ed on the combined re5uit3 for the dece5505 conpany for the period January I, 1996 to februar)71141996 and the Reorganized company for the period february 12, 1996 to )ecemnbec 31, 1996.

b) edece550 Company. ~, /
c) lnclude5unbiiledkWh.
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Company Officers

James S. Haines, Jr.
President & Chief Executive Officer

Eduardo A. Rodriguez
Senior Vice President-Customer 8
Corporate Services

J. Frank Bates
Vice President- Transmission &
Distribution

Michael L. Blough
s Vice President-Administration

Gary R. Hedrick
,Vice President-Chief Financial
Officer & Treasurerr's

Seated lett to right: Ceorge Erhra rh, games ttaines. Standing lett to right: Kenneth iteitar VVitson Cadman, Michael S'arirsr lames Gcconi,
lames Cardwetj, Pautcta t tot land Branch, lames Ituris, Ramjro'Goamarc Sttphen werteimer, Charles Yama rene, Eric Siegel

Board of Directors

John C. Horne
Vice President-Power Generation

Robert C. McNiel
Vice President-New Mexico Affairs

George W. Edwards, Jr.
Chairman of the Board
Retired in 1995. Prior to retirement,
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Securities and Records
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BONY Shareholder Services at 800-524-4458. This service is available to
all shareholders'Monday through Friday 8 a.m. to 6 p.'m., ET.
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DEFINITIONS

The following abbreviations, acronyms or defined terms used in this report are defined below:

Abbreviations,
Acr n ms or Defin d Term Terms

Agreed Order.

ANPP Participation Agreement ...

Bankruptcy Case.

CFE.

Common Plant or Common Facilities.....

Company.
DOE..
Effective Date
FERC.
Four Corners.....
Freeze Period .

IID
KV
KW.
KWH.
MW.
MWH.
New Mexico Commission .....
NRC.
OPC.
Palo Verde.
Palo Verde Leases ..

Palo Verde Participants.....

Plan.

PNM
Predecessor Company
Rate Stipulation ..

Reorganization..

Reorganized Company ....

SFAS
SPS
Texas Commission.
TNP.

Agreed Order of the Texas Commission entered August 30, 1995
implementing certain provisions of the Rate Stipulation

Arizona Nuclear Power Project Participation Agreement dated August 23,
1973, as amended

Arizona Public Service Company
The case commenced January 8, 1992 by El Paso Electric, Company in the

United States Bankruptcy Court for the Western District ofTexas, Austin
Division, as Case No. 92-10148-FM

Comision Federal de Electricidad de Mexico, the national electric utility of
Mexico

Facilities at or related to Palo Verde that are common to all three Palo
Verde Units

El Paso Electric Company
'United States Department ofEnergy
February 12, 1996, the date the Reorganization became effective
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
Four Corners Generating Station
Ten-year period beginning August 2, 1995, during which base rates for most

Texas retail customers are expected to remain frozen pursuant to the
Rate Stipulation

Imperial Irrigation District, an irrigation district in Southern California
Kilovolt(s)
Kilowatt(s)
Kilowatt-hour(s)
Megawatt(s)
Megawatt-hour(s) „

Ncw Mexico Public UtilityCommission
Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Texas OAice ofPublic UtilityCounsel
Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station
Leases and other documents entered into in 'connection with a series of sale

and leaseback transactions in 1986 and 1987 involving a portion of the
Company's interest in Palo Verde

Those utilities who share in power and energy entitlements, and bear certain
allocated costs, with respect to Palo Verde pursuant to the ANPP
Participation Agreement

The Company's Fourth Amended Plan of Reorganization dated
November 7, 1995, pursuant to which the Company emerged from
bankruptcy on the Effective Date

Public Service Company ofNew iMexico
The Company prior to the Reorganization
Stipulation and Settlement Agreement dated as ofJuly 27, 1995, between

the Company, the City of El Paso, OPC and most other parties to thc
Company's rate proceedings before the Texas Commission providing for
a ten-year rate freeze and other matters

Reorganization and the einergence from'bankruptcy by the Company
pursuant to the Plan

The Company following the Reorganization
Statement ofFinancial Accounting Standards
Southwestern Public Service Company
Public UtilityCommission ofTexas
Texas-New Mexico Power Company
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PART I

Item 1. Business

General

El Paso Electric Company is a public. utility engaged in the generation, transmission,and
distribution of electricity in an area of approximately 10,000 square miles in west Texas and southern
New Mexico. The Company also serves wholesale customers in Texas, New Mexico, California and
Mexico. The Company owns or has significant ownership interests in five electrical generating facilities
providing it with a total capacity ofapproximately 1',500 MW. For the twelve months ended December
31, 1997, the Company's energy sources consisted of approximately 53 /0 nuclear fuel, 34'/0 natural gas,
6/0 coal and 7'/0 purchas'ed power.

,

~ The Company serves approximately 284,000 residential, commercial, industrial and wholesale
customers. The Company distributes electricity to retail customers principally in El Paso, Texas and the
City ofLas Cruces ("Las Cruces"), New Mexico (representing approximately 58'/o and 8'/0, respectively,
of the Company's revenues for the twelve months ended December 31, 1997). In addition, the
Company-sells electricity to,wholesale customers, including Texas-New Mexico Power Company, the
Imperial Irrigation District (a southern California electric power agency), and the Comision Federal de
Zlectricidad de Mexico (the national electric utility of Mexico). Principal industrial and other large
customers of the Company include steel production, copper and oil refining, garment manufacturing
concerns and United States military installations, including the United States Army AirDefense Center
at Fort Bliss in Texas and White Sands Missile Range and Holloman AirForce Base in New Mexico.

The Company's principal oAices are located at Kayser Center, 100 North Stanton, El Paso,
Texas 79901 (telephone 915-543-5711). The Company was incorporated in Texas in 1901. As of
February 23, 1998, the Company had approximately 1,100 employees, approximately 31'/0 ofwhom are
covered by a collective bargaining agreement that expires inJune 2000.

Facilities

The Company currently has a net installed generating capacity of approximately 1,500 MW,
consisting of an entitlement of 600 MW from Palo Verde Units 1, 2 and 3, 482 MW from its Newman
Power Station, 246 MW from its Rio Grande Power Station, 104 MW from Four Corners Units 4 and 5,
and 68 MW from its Copper Power Station.

Palo Verde Station

The Company owns a 15.8'/0 interest in each of the three nuclear generating units and Common
Plant at Palo Verde, located west of Phoenix, Arizona. The Palo Verde Participants include the

Company and six other utilities: APS, Southern California Edison Company, PNiM, Southern

,.California Public Power Authority, Salt River Project Agricultural Improvement and Power District and

the Los Angeles Department ofWater and Power. APS serves as operating agent for Palo Verde.

R

The NRC has granted facility operating licenses and full power operating licenses for all three

units at Palo Verde for terms of forty years each. In addition, the Company is separately licensed by the

NRC to own its proportionate share ofPalo Verde.



Pursuant to the ANPP Participation Agreement, the Palo Verde Participants share costs and
generating entitlements in the same proportion as their percentage interests in the generating units and
each Palo Verde Participant is required to fund its proportionate share of fuel, other operation,
maintenance and capital costs. The Company's total monthly share of these costs was approximately
$ 7.3 million in 1997. The ANPP Participation Agreement provides that, ifa participant fails to meet its

payment obligations, each non-defaulting participant shall pay its proportionate share of the payments
owed by the defaulting participant.

Decommissioning. Pursuant to the ANPP Participation Agreement and federal law, the Company is

required to fund its share of the estimated costs to decommission, Palo Verde over the estimated service
life of forty years. The Company's funding'requirements are determined periodically based upon
engineering cost estimates performed by outside engineers retained by the ANPP.

In December 1995, the Palo Verde Participants approved a decommissioning study performed
by an outside engineering firm. The 1995 study determined that the Company will have to fund
approximately $229 million (stated in 1995 dollars) to cover its share of decommissioning costs. The
1995 study assumed that (i) maintenance expense for'pent fuel storage will'e incurred for ten years
after the shutdown of the last unit (estimated to be in 2024); (ii) a national interim spent fuel storage
facility will be available; and (iii) as a result of such national spent fuel storage facility, the amount of
spent fuel stored on-site will be reduced from all spent fuel assemblies to the final core plus fuel
assemblies from approximately three refuelings. See "Spent Fuel Storage" below.

Cost estimates for decommissioning h'ave increased with each study. The previous cost estimate
from a 1993 study determined that the Company would have to fund approximately $ 221 million (stated
in 1993 dollars). The 1993 estimate, however, reflected an 84/o increase from the previous estimate
made in 1989 primarily related to increases in estimated costs for'ow-level radioactive waste disposal.

7

Although the 1995 study was based on the latest available information, there can be no assurance
that decommissioning cost estimates will not continue to increase in the future or that regulatory
requirements willnot change. In addition, until a new low-level radioactive waste repository opens and
operates for a number ofyears, estimates of the cost to dispose of low-level radioactive waste are subject
to significant uncertainty. The decommissioning study is updated every three years and a new study will
be completed in 1998. See "Disposal ofLow-Level Radioactive Waste" below.

The rate freeze under the Rate Stipulation would preclude the Company from seeking a rate
increase in Texas during the Freeze Period to recover increases in decommissioning cost estimates.
Additionally, there can be no assurance that the Company could increase its rates in any of its other
jurisdictions to recover such increased costs. See Part II, Item 7, "Management's Discussion and
'Analysis ofFinancial Conditio'n and Results ofOperations —Operational Prospects and Challenges."

Sleam "Generators. Palo Verde has experienced degradation in the steam generator tubes of each
unit. The degradation includes axial tube cracking in the upper regions of the two steam generators in
Unit 2 and, to a lesser degree,"in Units 1 and 3. This form of steam generator tube degradation,'hile
less common than other types, has also been seen at other United States nuclear generating stations. The
units also have experienced circumferential cracking at the tube sheet, a more common ty'pe of tube
cracking. The axial tube cracking was discovered following a steam generator tube rupture in Unit 2 in



March 1993. Since that time, APS has undertaken an ongoing investigation and analysis and has

performed corrective actions designed to mitigate further degradation. Corrective actions have included
changes in operational procedures designed to lower the operating temperatures of the units, chemical
cleaning and the implementation of other technical improvements. APS has stated that it believes its

remedial actions have slowed the rate of tube degradation.

Steam generator tubes in each of the Palo Verde units have been inspected during regularly
scheduled refueling outages and mid-cycle inspection outages. If tube cracks are detected during an

inspection, the aAected tubes are taken out of service by plugging. This may impair the performance of
a unit ifsuAicient numbers ofsteam generator tubes are aAected.

The projected service lives of the units'team generators are reassessed by APS periodically in
conjunction with inspections made during outages of the Palo Verde units. APS has determined that it
willbe economically desirable to replace the Unit 2 steam generators, which have been the most aAected

by tube cracking. In 1997, the Palo Verde Participants unanimously approved the purchase ofone set of
spare steam generators for delivery in May 2002.'he Company's share of the cost is approximately
812.9 million. APS has indicated that in 1998 itwill request that the participants approve installation of
the spare generators in Unit 2 in 2003. The Company believes that such installation would require the
unanimous approval of the Palo Verde Participants. The Company will continue to analyze the
economic feasibility of steam generator replacement, or other options that may be available in
connection-with the operation of Unit 2. Also, the Company cannot predict whether the Palo Verde
Participants will agree to replace the Unit 2 steam generators. The costs for the construction and

shipping of the spare steam generators are expected to be incurred between 1998 and 2002. Installation
costs, ifthey are approved, would be expected to be incurred between 1999 and 2003, with the bulk of
the expenditures after 2000. The Company's portion of total costs associated with construction and
potential installation of new steam generators in Unit 2, including replacement power costs and costs

that would otherwise have been expended through the. operation and maintenance budget, is currently
estimated not to exceed $ 36 million. = APS has also stated that, based on the latest available data, it
estimates that the steam generators in Units 1 and 3 should operate for their designated lives of40 years

(to 2025 and 2027, respectively). APS will reassess the expected lives of these steam generators
periodically.

The Rate Stipulation precludes the Company from seeking a rate increase in Texas during the
Freeze Period to recover capital costs, associated with such replacement of steam generators. It is

uncertain whether the costs associated with replacing the Unit 2 steam generators would be approved by
the New Mexico Commission and included in the Company's rate base in New Mexico. See Part II,
Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—
Operational Prospects and Challenges."

Disposal ofLow-Level Radioactive PVaste. Congress has established requirements for the disposal of
radioactive waste by each state generated within its borders. Arizona, California, North Dakota and

South Dakota have entered into a compact (the "Southwestern Compact" ) for the disposal of low-level

radioactive waste. California will act as the first host state of the Southwestern Compact, and Arizona
will serve as the second host state. The construction and opening of the California low-level radioactive

waste disposal site in Ward Valley has. been delayed due to extensive-public hearings, disputes over

environmental issues and review of technical issues related, to the proposed site. Despite, being licensed

by the State of California, the Department of the Interior has not transferred the land -to the state.



Following a report by the National Academy of Sciences, the Department of the Interior announced
that, ifcertain environmental conditions were implemented prior to-the transfer, it was prepared to

convey the land. On January 16, 1998, the Department of the Interior announced that further scientific
drilling had been approved for the Ward Valley site with testing to be performed by the federal
government first, followed by testing by the State of California. No dates for the commencement of
federal government testing have been established.

P

Although Palo Verde is projected to undergo decommissioning during the period in which
Arizona will act as host for the Southwestern Compact, the opposition, delays, uncertainty and costs

experienced in California demonstrate possible roadblocks that may be encountered when Arizona seeks

to open its own waste repository.

Spent Fuel Storage. The spent fuel storage facilities at Palo Verde have sufficient capacity to store
all fuel expected to be discharged from normal operation'of all three Palo Verde units through at least
1999. APS anticipates requesting approval from the NRC to use more of the space in the existing spent
fuel storage facilities to extend the available storage capacity through 2001. Alternative on-site storage
facilities are expected to be constructed by 2001 to supplement the existing facilities.

Pursuant to the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982, as amended in 1.987 (the "Waste Act"), the
DOE is obligated to accept and-dispose of all spent nuclear fuel and other high-level radioactive wastes

generated by all domestic power reactors. In accordance with the Waste Act, the DOE entered into a

spent nuclear fuel contract with the Company and all other Palo Verde Participants. In
November 1989, the DOE reported'that-its spent nuclear fuel disposal facilities would not be in
operation until 2010. Subsequent judicial decisions required the DOE to start accepting spent nuclear
fuel no later than January 31, 1998. The DOE did not meet that deadline. As a result, under the
DOE's current criteria for shipping allocation rights, it is estimated that Palo Verde could not ship spent
fuel to the DOE's permanent disposal facility until approxi'mately 2025. APS has indicated that
alternative'interim spent fuel storage methods willbe available on-site or off-site for use by Palo Verde to
allow its continued operation and to store spent fuel safely until shipments to the DOE's permanent
disposal facilitybegin. APS's recommendation is to establish an on-site facility initiallycapable ofstoring
approximately one-fourth of the total amount of spent fuel expected to be produced by Palo Verde,
utilizing a dual purpose (storage and transport) dry storage system. The facility will be designed to be
expandable in phases to accommodate additional amounts of spent fuel'as needed. This facility is

planned to be completed by May 2001. InJanuary 1997, the Texas Commission established a project to
evaluate what, ifany, action it should take with regard to payments made to the DOE for funding of the
DOE's obligation to start accepting spent nuclear fuel by January 31, 1998. After receiving initial
comments, no further action has been taken in the project;

T

Liabiliyl and Insurance Matters. The Palo Verde Participants have public liability insurance against
nuclear energy hazards up to the full limit of liability under federal law. The insurance consists of
$200 million of primary liability.insurance provided by commercial insurance carriers, with the balance
being provided by an industry-wide retrospective assessment program, pursuant=-to which industry
participants would be required to pay an assessment to cover any loss in excess of $200 million. The
maximum assessment per reactor for each nuclear incident is approximately 879.2 million', subject to an
annual limitof 510 million per incident. Based upon the Company's 15.8/o interest in Palo Verde, the
Company's maximum potential assessment per incident is approximately 537.6 million for all three units
with an annual payment limitation ofapproximately 84.7 million.



The Palo Verde'articipants'maintain "all risk" (including nuclear hazards) insurance for
property damage to, and decontamination of, property at Palo Verde in the aggregate amount of
$ 2.7 billion, a substantial portion of which must first be applied to stabilization and decontamination.
Finally, the Company has obtained insurance against a portion of any increased cost of generation or
purchased power which may result from an accidental outage of any of the three Palo Verde units ifthe
outage exceeds 23 weeks.

Newman Power Station
4

The Company's ¹wman Power Station, located in El Paso, Texas, consists of four generating
units with an aggregate capacity of 482 MW. The units operate primarily on natural gas, but can also

operate on fuel oil.

Rio Grande Power Station

The Company's Rio Grande Power Station,'ocated in Sunland Park, New Mexico, adjacent to
El Paso, Texas, consists of three steam-electric generating units with an aggregate capacity of 246 MW.
The units operate primarily on natural gas, but can also operate on fuel oil.

Four Corners Station
I 8

The Company owns an undivided 70/0 interest in Units 4 and 5 at'Four Corners, located in
northwestern New Mexico. The two coal-fired generating units each have a generating capacity of
739 MW. The Company shares power entitlements and certain allocated costs of the two units with
APS (the Four Corners operating agent) and the other participants.

Four Corners is located on land held under easements from the federal government and a lease

from the Navajo Nation that expires in 2016. Certain of the facilities associated with Four Corners,
including transmission lines and almost all of the contracted coal sources, are also located on Navajo
land. Units 4 and 5 are-located adjacent to a surface-mined supply ofcoal. See "Environmental Matters
—Coal Mine Reclamation" below.

'opperPower Station

The Company's Copper Power Station, located in E1 Paso, Texas, consists of a 68MW
combustion turbine used primarily to meet peak demands. The unit operates primarily on natural gas,

but can also operate on fuel oil. The Company leases the combustion turbine and other generation

equipment at the station under a lease that expires in July 2000, with renewal options for up to seven

additional years.

Transmission and Distribution Lines and Agreements

The Company owns or has significant ownership interests in four major transmission lines and

owns the distribution network within its retail service area. The Company is also a party to various

transmission and power exchange agreements that, together with its owned transmission lines, enable the

Company to obtain its energy entitlements from its remote generation at Palo Verde and Four Corners.



Springennlk-Diablo Line. The Company owns a 310-mile, 345 KV transmission line from Tucson
Electric Power Company's ("TEP") Springerville Generating Plant near Springerville, Arizona, to the
Luna Substation near Deming, New Mexico, and to the Diablo Substation near Sunland Park,
New Mexico, providing an interconnection with TEP for delivery of the Company's generation
entitlements from Palo Verde and, ifnecessary, Four Corners.

Arroyo-WesI, Mesa Line. The Company owns a 202-mile, 345 KV transmission line from the
Arroyo Substation located near Las Cruces, New Mexico, to PNM's West Mesa Substation located near
Albuquerque, New Mexico. This is the delivery point for the Company's generation entitlement from
Four Corners, which is transmitted to the West Mesa Substation over approximately 150 miles of
transmission lines owned by-PNM. This transmission line also. carries power from the region to the west
and north of Four Corners, where the Company has a major interconnection with the other Four
Corners participants.

Qeenke-newman Line. The Company owns an undivided interest in a 196-mile, 345 KV
transmission line from the Newman Power Station to TEP's Greenlee Substation in Arizona. This line
provides an interconnection with TEP for delivery of the Company's entitlements from Palo Verde and,
ifnecessary, Four Corners.

kVRAD-Eddy Coun'ine. The Company owns an undivided 66.7'lo interest in a 125-mile,
345 KV transmission line from the AMRAD Substation near Oro Grande, New Mexico, to the
Company's and TNP's high voltage direct current terminal at the Eddy County substation near Artesia,
New Mexico. This terminal enables the Company to connect its transmission system to that of SPS,
providing the Company with access to power markets to the east.,

Issues Regarding Operation ofTransmission System. As previously reported, the Company experienced
four system-wide outages between September 1995 and March 1996. As a result of remedial actions
begun in November 1995, however, the Company has not experienced a system outage since
March 1996. The remedial actions included relay equipment replacements, transmission structure
reconfigurations and implementation of load-shedding schemes designed to limit the extent of system
instability under certain atypical conditions. The Company continues to import normal amounts of
power over its transmission system and believes that it has identified and corrected the root causes of the
outages to such a degree as to preclude, to the extent possible, similar future occurrences.

Environmental Matters

The Company is subject to regulation with respect to air, soil and water quality, solid waste

disposal and other environmental matters by federal, state-and local authorities. These authorities
govern current facility operations and exercise continuing jurisdiction over facility modifications.
Environmental regulations can change rapidly and are diAicult to predict. Because construction of new
facilities is subject to standards imposed by environmental regulation, substantial expenditures may be
required to comply with such regulations. The Company analyzes the costs of its obligations arising
from environmental matters on -an ongoing basis, and management believes it has made adequate
provision in its financial statements to meet such obligations. However, unforeseen expenses associated
with compliance could have a material adverse elfect on the future operations and financial condition of
the Company.



PCB?realment, Inc. The Company received a request from the U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency ("EPA") to participate in the remediation of polychlorinated biphenyls ("PCBs") at'wo facilities
in Kansas and Missouri, which had been operated by PCB Treatment, Inc. {"PTI"). Presently, PTI has

discontinued. operations and the EPA has determined that:, PTI's abandoned facilities require
'remediation.

The Company and the PTI Steering Committee, vrhich consists of the largest generators of the
PCBs sent to PTI, have executed a settlement agreement. In consideration for the payment of
approximately $0.2 million, the settlement agreement excuses any further liability by the Company to
the Steering Committee and indemnifies the Company for any liabilities to other parties as may be
asserted in the future.

On September 16, 1997, the,EPA sent the Company a "general notice of liability"wherein the
agency formally notified the Company that it was,considered a Potentially Responsible Party at the sites.

The Company believes any liability it may face at the sites is covered by the settlement agreement.
Accordingly, the Company immediately notified the Steering Committee and demanded it defend and
indemnify the Company as provided in the settlement agreement. The Steering Committee informed
the Company that it intends to honor this indemnity obligation.

The Company may still face liabilityfor possible deliveries ofPCBs by PTI to a third site which is

also subject to remedial action by the federal authorities, except to the extent that those PGBs were
transferred from the first site. The Company's records do not indicate any deliveries of PCBs to this
third site. The Company believes it is unlikely to face substantial unindemnified liabilities associated
with this third site.

Coal Mine Reclamation. The Company has been informed by APS that the Company's estimated
financial obligation for coal mine reclamation at Four Corners, is not being fully reflected in the;costs for
which the Company is billed. APS, the, operating agent for Four Corners, is performing an analysis to
establish an appropriate revised cost estimate. Based on preliminary estimates from APS and the coal
provider, the Company recorded a liability of approximately $ 12 million in 1996 which reflects the
present value of the-'estimated future costs of reclamation for its share of the coal mine reclamation
obligation.



Construction Program

The Company" has no current plans to construct any new generating facilities through at least
2004. Utilityconstruction expenditures reflected'in the table below consist primarily of expanding and
updating the electric transmission and distribution systems and the cost of improvements and purchases
of new steam generators at Palo Verde. The Company's estimated cash construction costs for 1998
through 2001 are approximately $ 220 million. Actual costs may vary from the construction program
estimates set forth below. Such estimates are reviewed and updated periodically to reflect changed
conditions.

By Year (1)
In millions

By Function
In millions 4

o

1998..
1999.........
2000..
2001

Total.

3 51

57
56
56

Production (1)......
Transmission .......
Distribution .........
General"

Total.

.......... 5 57
22

105
36

(1) Does not include acquisition costs for nuclear fuel. See "Energy Sources -'Nuclear Fuel.'"

Energy Sources

General

'he following table summarizes the percentage contribution of nuclear fuel, natural g'as, coal
and purchased power to the total KWHenergy mix of the Company:

Power Source
Years Ended December 31

1997 1996'995
Nuclear Fuel
Natural Gas..
Coal..
Purchased Power.

Total

53% 53% 53%
34 32 30

6 7 9
7 8 8~olo~olo~olo

Fuel and purchased power costs are generally passed through directly to customers in Texas and
New Mexico pursuant to currently applicable regulations. Historical fuel costs and revenues are
reconciled periodically in proceedings before the appropriate commission to establish the applicable fuel
rate to be charged customers and to determine whether a refund or surcharge based on such historical
costs and revenues is necessary. See "Regulation —Texas Rate Matters —Fuel" and "- New Mexico
Rate Matters —Fuel."



Nuclear Fuel

The Palo Verde Participants have contracts for, uranium concentrate which should be sufficient

to meet Palo Verde's operational requirements through at least 2000. The Company made spot

purchases of uranium during 1997 to take advantage of low market prices. Additional spot purchases

may be made as appropriate. The Palo Verde Participants have contracted for up to 100'/0 of
conversion services required through 2000. The Palo Verde Participants have an enrichment services

contract with the United States Enrichment Corporation ("USEC") which obligates USEC to furnish the

enrichment services required for. the operation of the three Palo Verde, units through 2002, with an

option for five additional years. A new contract provides fuel assembly fabrication services. for each

Palo Verde unit through 2016.

JYuckar Fuel Financing. Pursuant to the ANPP Participation Agreement, the Company owns an

undivided interest in nuclear fuel, purchased in connection with Palo Verde. The Company has

available a $ 100 million credit facility that provides for working capital and up to $60 million for the

financing of nuclear fuel. At December 31, 1997, approximately $52.0 million had been drawn to

finance nuclear fuel. This financing is efIected through a trust that borrows under the facility to acquire

and process the nuclear fuel. The Company is obligated to repay the trust's borrowings, and has secured

this obligation with First Mortgage Collateral Series Bonds. In the Company's financial statements, the

assets and liabilities of the trust are reported as assets and liabilities of the Company.

Natural Gas

In 1997, the Company's natural gas requirements at the Rio Grande Power Station'were met

solely with spot natural gas purchases from various suppliers. Interstate gas is delivered under a firm ten-

year transportation agreement, which expires in 2001. Based on the current availability of economical

and reliable spot natural gas, the Company anticipates it willcontinue to purchase spot natural gas for a

portion of the fuel needs for the Rio Grande Power Station for the near term. To complement the spot

purchases in 1998, the Company has entered into a one-year fixed-price gas supply contract. In
addition, the Company has entered into a partial-year gas supply contract (April through October 1998).

For the long term, the Company will.evaluate the availability ofspot natural gas versus other supplies in

obtaining a reliable and economical supply for the Rio Grande Power Station.

In 1997, natural gas for the Newman and Copper Power Stations was supplied pursuant to an

intrastate natural gas contract which became eAective January 1, 1997 and which expires December 31,

2001. To supplement this contract, the Company entered into a second natural gas supply agreement,

which runs through 2001..

F

Coal

APS, as operating agent for Four Corners, purchases Four Corners'oal requirements from a

supplier with a long-term lease of coal reserves owned by the Navajo Nation. The Company, based

upon information from the operating agent, believes that Four Corners has sufficient- reserves of coal to

meet the plant's operational requirements for its useful life.

Purchased Power

To supplement its own 'generation and operating reserves, the Company has a firm power

purchase agreement with SPS for amounts ranging from 50 MW to 110 MW for 1998.



Operating Statistics

Operating revenues gn thousands):
Base revenues:

Retail:
Residential ."

Commercial and industrial, small.................
Commercial and industrial, large

'alesto public authorities.
Total retail

Wholesale sales for resale
Total base revenues .

Fuel revenues and economy sales.
Other.

Total operating revenues.

Number ofcustomers (End ofyear):
Residential.
Comme'rcial and industrial, small
Commercial and industrial, large
Other

Total
Average annual KWHuse per residential customer ....

1997

$ 146,412
143,395
45,581
64 328

399,716
59 263

458,979
130,172

4 887
!~dd!38

254,348
25,900

115
3 811

December 31
~1996 tL

S 141,719
138,910
43,483

~6534
389,646

~71 54
460,900
114,042

3'981
Etr!L225

250,209
25,304.

102
3 711

2LtL32!!

~1995 B

S 128,295
128,715
40,870
59 613

357,493
74 557

432,050
68,823

3 744

5 'HKQll

245,245
24,615

89
3 674

~ZZ622

Energy supplied, net, KWHgn thousands):
Generated.
Purchased and interchanged.

Total
Energy sales, KWH gn thousands):

Retail:
Residential.
Commercial and industrial, small.
Commercial and industrial, large
Sales to public authorities

1,587,733
1,834;953
1,271,449
I 090 312
5,784,447

1,545,274',779,986

1,216,941
I 110706
5,652,907

8,186,187 7,920,675
617 651 '11 791

MJll!3~! UL632~

',439,404
584 853

Mld!24~

1,473,'349
1,754,176
1,3,21,329

~1068 48
5,416,902

1,122,000
1,500,000

~Q%

Wholesale:
Sales for resale ................................................... 1,897,885
Economy sales .....'...................................................... 640 017

Total sales........................................ 8,322,349
Losses and company nse ......... 481 489

Total ~ll!'L!L'!8
Native system:

Peak load, KW
Net generating capacity for peak, KW.
Load factor.

Total system:
Peak load, KW 1,442,000
Net generating capacity for peak, KW. 1,500>000
Load factor.

1,753,553
757 999

8,164,459
468 007

Md!52.555

1,646,357
538 102

7,601,361
422 896

1,387,000
1,500,000

1,374,000
1,500,000~s/s

1,105,000 1,088,000
1,500,000 1,500,000

(A) I"inancial data is based on the combined results for the Predecessor Company for the period January 1, 1996
to February 11, 1996 and the Reorganized Company for the period February 12, 1996 to December 31, 1996.

(B) Predecessor Company.

10



Regulation

Texas Rate Matters

The-rates and services of the Company in Texas municipalities are regulated by those

municipalities, and in unincorporated areas by the Texas Commission. The largest municipality in the
Company's service, area is, the City of EI Paso. The Texas Commission has exclusive appellate

'urisdiction to review municipal orders and ordinances regarding rates and services in Texas and
jurisdiction over certain other activities of the Company. The decisions of the Texas Commission are

subject to judicial review.

Rate Slipulation and Agreed Order. The Company's rates for its Texas. customers are governed by a

rate order entered by the Texas Commission in Docket 12700 adopting a Rate Stipulation and Agreed
Order entered into by the Company, the Texas Commission staA; the City of El Paso and virtually all
other intervenors in the case. The Agreed Order implemented certain provisions of the Rate Stipulation
and set rates consistent with the Rate Stipulation. Among other things, under the Rate Stipulation:
(i) the Company's base rates for most customers in Texas were fixed for the ten-year Freeze Period which

'began in August 1995; (ii) the City of El Paso granted the Company a new franchise that extends
through the Freeze Period; (iii) the Company will retain 75/0 during the first live years of the Freeze
Period and 50'/0 during the reinainder of the Freeze Period of (A) the net revenues'enerated by
providing third-party transmission services and (B) profit margins from certain off-system power sales;

(iv) the Company's reacquisition of the Palo Verde leased assets was deemed to be in the public interest;
and (v) all appeals of Texas Commission orders concerning the Company and all outstanding Texas
Commission dockets concerning the Company's rates were resolved.

Neither the Rate Stipulation nor the Agreed Order deprives the Texas regulatory authorities of
their jurisdiction over the Company during the Freeze Period. However, the Texas Commission
determined in the Agreed Order that the rate freeze is in the public interest and results in just'nd
reasonable rates. Further, the signatories to the Rate Stipulation (other than the General Counsel, OPC
and the State ofTexas) agreed not to seek to initiate an inquiry into the reasonableness of the Company's
rates during the Freeze Period and to support the Company's entitlement to rates at the freeze level

throughout the Freeze Period. The Company believes,"but cannot assure, that its cost of service will
support rates at or above the freeze level throughout the Freeze Period and, therefore, does not believe

any attempt to reduce the Company's rates would be successful. However, during the I'reeze Period, the

Company is precluded from seeking rate increases in Texas, even in the event of increased operating or
capital costs. In the event of'a merger, the parties to the. Rate Stipulation retain all rights provided in the

Rate Stipulation, their rights to participate as a party in any proceeding related to the merger, and the

right to pursue a reduction in rates below the freeze level to the extent ofpost-merger synergy savings.

5'ueL Pursuant to Texas Commission rules, the Company periodically must make a filing
reconciling the revenues collected from Texas customers under its fixed fuel factor with the fuel and

purchased power expenses actually incurred for the period covered by the reconciliation. A fuel and

purchased power reconciliation must include not less than twelve months nor more than thirty-six
months of reconcilable data. The Company has not filed a reconciliation for any period since

June 1995. Differences between revenues, collected and expenses incurred are subject to a refund to

customers (in the case of an overrecovery of fuel costs) or surcharge (in the'case of an underrecovery of
fuel costs). The Texas Commission staA; local regulatory authorities such as the City of El Paso, and
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customers are entitled to intervene in a fuel reconciliation proceeding and to challenge the recovery of
fuel and purchased power expenses.

Higher than expected natural gas prices were experienced in December 1996, continued in the
first quarter of 1997 and remained at higher levels through the remainder of 1997 compared to 1996.
These higher natural gas prices have increased the Company's underrecovered fuel costs, which will be
reviewed in the next Texas fuel reconciliation. A significant disallowance of fuel costs in this
reconciliation could have an. adverse eAect on the Company's financial results. In January 1998, the

'ompanyfiled a request with the Texas Commission to increase its Texas fixed fuel facto'r and
implement a surcharge, subject to reconciliation, of its underrecovered fuel costs. The Company
entered into a stipulation with all parties to the docket to implement the surcharge and a new fixed fuel
factor. Both the fixed fuel factor and surcharge are expected to go into efFect in April 1998.

, PaI0 Verde Pegormance Standards. The Texas Commission has established performance standards
for the operation of Palo Verde, pursuant to which each Palo Verde.'unit- is evaluated annually to
determine whether its three-year rolling average capacity factor entitles the Company. to a reward or
subjects it to a penalty. There are five performance bands based around a target capacity factor of70%.
The capacity factor is calculated as the ratio of actual generation to maximum possible generation. If
the capacity factor, as measured on a station-wide basis for any consecutive 24-month period, should fall
below 35 Jo, the Texas Commission could reconsider the rate treatment ofPalo Verde, regardless of the
provisions of the Rate Stipulation. The removal of Palo Verde from rate base could have a significant
negative impact on the Company's revenues and financial condition. For the three-year rolling average
period ended December 31, 1997:, Palo Verde Units 1, 2 and 3 achieved capacity factors of 83.75%,
83.04% and 88.70%, respectively. These capacity factors result in the Company's entitlement to a
combined reward of $2.8 million pursuant to the formula established by the Texas Commission for the
Palo Verde units. H

New Mexico Rate Matters

The New Mexico Commission has jurisdiction over the Company's rates and services in
New Mexico and over certain other activities of the Company, including prior approv'al of the issuance,
assumption or guarantee of securities. The New Mexico Commission's decisions are subject to judicial
review. Current base rates in New Mexico were established in 1990 and have not increased since. The
Company does not have an agreement with. New Mexico regulatory authorities or parties to, past
New Mexico regulatory proceedings comparable to the Rate Stipulation. The largest city in the
Company's New Mexico service territory is Las Cruces, which in.1997 accounted for 8% "of the
Company's total revenue. See Item 3, "Legal Proceedings —Litigation with Las Cruces."

I

Pending Rate Case. In October 1996, the NewMexico Commission issued an order in Case
No. 2722, requiring the Company to answer certain ratepayer complaints and to file a rate filing
package, including cost of service data and supporting testimony. On March 3, 1997, the Company
filed with the New Mexico Commission all of the rate filingpackage data required by the Commission's
order. Although the Company's filingdemonstrates a revenue deficiency of approximately 88.6 million
under current rates, the Company did n'ot request a rate change to recover the deficiency. The
New Mexico Commission could order a rate reduction or, alternatively, in response to economic factors
and regulatory, political and competitive pressures, the Company could agree to a rate reduction as part
ofan overall settlement ofall issues in New Mexico. Prosecution of the rate case before the New Mexico
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Commission is expected to be completed before. the end of 1998. The Company is unable at this time to

predict the outcome of this proceeding.

1"ueL The Company is required to make annual filings with the New Mexico Commission to

reconcile the revenues collected under its fixed fuel factor with its fuel and purchased power expenses

actually incurred, and to report the results ofPalo Ver'de performance standards. These reports are due

by January 31 of each year for the preceding calendar year, and are filed along with the Company's

request to revise its fixed fuel factor to reflect current projections of fuel and purchased power costs and
to include the over or underrecovery reflected in"the reconciliation report and the reward or penalty
reflected in the performance standards report. Gn October 31, 1997, the Company filed testimony and
evidence supporting its continu'ed use of the methodology and manner of collecting fuel and purchased

power costs reflected in its tariffs. A hearing on this filing is scheduled forJuly 1998.
t

The Company's 1998 annual filingreflects a significant increase in the monthly fuel charge. This
increase is necessary because of (i) significant increases in the spot price ofnatural gas and (ii) the delayed

implementation of the 1997 change,'effective with bills rendered on or after August 1, 1997, which has

caused the Company to underrecover its fuel costs in New Mexico by approximately 35.3 million for the

year ended December 31, 1997. The recovery of this amount, coupled with continued higher gas costs

for 1998, results in an increase in the proposed 1998 fixed fuel factor of approximately 24% over the

present factor. The Company believes it has fully justified its fuel and purchased power costs and

recovery methodology. In March 1998,, the New Mexico Commission consolidated the 1998 annual

filing and the October 1997 filing for hearing in July 1998. There can be no assurance that the New
Mexico Commission will accept the Company's proposed fixed fuel factor. As in Texas, interested

parties are allowed to intervene and challenge the recoverability of fuel expenses. A significant
disallowance of fuel costs could have an adverse eflect on the Company's financial results.

Palo Verde Perfonnance Standards. The New Mexico Commission has established performance

standards for the operation of Palo Verde, pursuant to which the entire Palo'Verde station is evaluated

annually to determine ifits achieved capacity factor allows the Company to claim a reward or subjects it
to a penalty. There are five performance bands based around a target capacity factor of67.5%. Because

Unit 3 is not included in the Company's New Mexico rate base, any penalty or reward calculated on a

total station basis is limited to two-thirds of such penalty or reward. The capacity, factor is calculated as

the ratio of actual generation to maximum possible generation. Ifthe annual capacity factor is'35% or

less, the New Mexico 'Commission is required to initiate a proceeding to 'reconsider the rate base

treatment of Palo Verde Units 1 and 2. The removal of Palo Verde from rate base could have a

significant nega'tive impact on the Company's revenues and financial condition. For the year ended

December 31, 1997, the Palo Verde station capacity factor was 88.43%. This capacity factor results in

the Company's entitlement to a reward of Sl.l million, pursuant to the formula established by the

New Mexico Commission for 'the Palo Verde units.

Federal Regulatory Matters

Iiederal Enure Regulator Commission. The Company is subject to regulation by the FERC in certain

matters, including rates for wholesale power sales, transmission of electric power and the issuance of
securities.

The Company has 'a long-term firm power. sales agreement with IID providing for the sale of
100 MW of firm capacity and 50 MW of contingent capacity through April 2002. The agreement



generally provides for level sales prices over the life of the agreement. The Company also has a firm
power sales agreement with TNP, providing for sales to TNP in the minimum amount of 25 MW
through 2002. Sales prices are essentially level for the remaining life of the agreement. Rate tarifFs
currently applicable to IID and TNP contain fuel and purchased power "cost adjustment provisions
designed to recover the Company's fuel and purchased power costs.

InJuly 1996, the Company filed its open access transmission tariAs (Docket No. OA96-200-000)
(the "Open Access Case" ), in compliance with FERC Order No. 888, Promoting Wholesale Competition
Through Open Access Eon-Discriminatory Transmission Smices by Public Uhlilies; Recovery ofStranded Costs by.Public
Utilities and Transmitting Utilities ("Order 5'o. 888"), covering network and point-to-point transmission
services and the six specifically required ancillary services. Several parties, including Las Cruces, other
utilities and several wholesale power marketers, intervened and filed protests to the Company's tariAs.
Issues raised by the intervenors included rates and the terms and conditions of the Company's tariffs,
including the treatment ofand costs related to, certain facilities making access to the CFE more available
to parties other than the Company. In February 1997, the Company entered into a stipulated
agreement among the various parties settling all rate issues related to the Open Access Case. Under the
settlement, the Company will provide transmission service, to the extent transmission capacity is
available, to any party for firm or interruptible service to the CFE until the earlier of the end of 1998 or
the date the FERC rules on the complaint filed by one of the wholesale power marketers that submitted
a bid in 1996 to the CFE. See "Department ofEnergy" below.

Intervenors in the Open Access Case also raised certain issues relating to the criteria by which
the Company willdetermine the amount of transmission capacity that is available for use by third parties
desiring to use its transmission system. Hearings related to these issues were conducted before a FERC
administrative law judge in January 1998. A final decision from the FERC on these issues is not
expected until the fourth quarter of 1998. The Company does not expect a material financial impact to
result from a FERC ruling.

I

In July 1996, Las Cruces exercised its right under Order No. 888 to request that the Company
calculate Las Cruces'tranded cost obligation should it leave the Company's system and operate its own
municipal utility. For a discussion of this proceeding, see Item 3, "Legal Proceedings —Litigation with
Las Cruces."

Department ofEnergy. The DOE regulates the Company's exports of power to the CFE in Mexico
pursuant to a license granted by the DOE and a presidential permit. In addition, the DOE is authorized
to assess operators of nuclear generating facilities for a share of the costs ofdecommissioning the DOE's
uranium enrichment facilities a'nd for the ultimate costs ofdisposal of spent nuclear fuel. See "Facilities
-Palo Verde Station —Spent Fuel Storage."

In September 1996, one of the wholesale power marketers that submitted a bid in 1996 to the
CFE in connection with renewal of the interchange agreement for the supply of power during 1997 to
Ciudad Juarez, Mexico, filed a complaint against the Company with the FERC. The complaint sought
emergency reliefand requested the FERC to direct the Company to enter into an agreement to provide
firm point-to-poin't transmission service to the CFE under the Company's open access transmission tariff.
In October 1996, the FERC issued an order requiring the Company to provide point-to-point
transmission service over the Company's transmission system to substation facilities near the
United States/Mexico border. The FERC, however, concurred with the Company's position that the
FERC does not have jurisdiction to order transmission across the border, suggesting that the DOE has
such jurisdiction. The DOE subsequently issued a Notice ofDelegation and Assignment which delegated



to the FERC the DOE's authority to carry out its duties in this case. The FERC has docketed the

Delegation and Assignment and the process is expected to continue throughout 1998.

JVuckar Regilatory Commission. The NRC has jurisdiction over the Company's licenses for
Palo Verde and regulates the operation of nuclear generating stations to protect the health and safety of
the public from radiation hazards and has authority to conduct environmental reviews pursuant to the
National Environmental Policy Act.

Other Wholesale Customers

The term of the Company's previous one-year 1997 sales agreement for firm capacity and
associated energy to the CFE terminated December Sl; 1997. Pursuant to a bidding process, the

Company was selected by the CFE to provide varying amounts of power during 1998 ranging from 90

to 200 MW. The price is stable throughout the twelve-month term of the agreement and includes

charges for capacity and energy as well as transmission and any required ancillary services. Under the
new agreement, the Company's revenues in 1998 related to power sales to the CFE a'e expected to be

similar to 1997 revenues. There can be no assurance that the CFE will remain a customer after 1998.

The agreement requires payment in United States dollars.

Recent Changes in UtilityRegulation

General. The electric utility industry faces increasing pressure to become more competitive as

legislative, regulatory, economic and technological changes occur. Federal and state legislation,
regulatory initiatives, and proposed initiatives in Texas and New Mexico encourage competition in the

industry, and ultimately in the'Company's service area. Together with increasing customer demand for
lower priced electricity and other energy services, these measures have accelerated the industry's
movement toward more competitive pricing and cost structures. Such competitive pressures could result
in the loss of customers and could diminish the ability of the Company to fully recover its investment in

generation assets, as well as the cost ofoperating these assets. This issue is particularly important to the

Company because its rates are significantly higher than national and regional averages. In the face of
increased competition, there can be no assurance that the future operations, cash flows and financial
condition of the Company will not be adversely affected, or that the Company will be able to sustain

retail rates at the levels established by the Rate Stipulation during the I"reeze Period.

Of articular importance to the Company is, the issue of ultimate recoverability of "strandedpar icu ar p
costs," or costs previously found by regulatory authorities to be reasonable and prudent, but which at the

same time are higher than would be recovered under immediate, full competition. There is-substantial

'discussion and debate on this issue on both a national and state level and, at this, time, there appears to

be no clear solution. At the federal level, the FERC has announced, through a formal rulemaking, its

intention to allow 100% recovery of all legitimate verifiable stranded costs attributable to FERC

jurisdictional customers. Texas and New Mexico commissions and legislatures are engaged in various

activities which are attempting to address the issue of stranded cost recovery from customers subject to

their jurisdictions.

FERC. In April 1996, the FERC issued its Order No. 888, requiring all public utilities owning,

o crating or controlling facilities used for transmitting electricity in interstate commerce to (i) file open,
access transmission tariffs containing minimum terms and conditions of non-discriminatory service and

(ii) take transmission service (including ancillary services) for their own new wholesale sales and
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purchases of electric energy under the open access tariAs. Additionally, Order No. 888 permits public
utilities to seek recovery of legitimate, prudent and verifiable stranded costs and provides a mechanism
for the recovery ofsuch costs. Order No. 888 also provides for recovery of costs associated with former
power customers and new municipally-owned entities becoming transmission-only customers as a result
ofproviding:open access transmission ifthe utilityhad a reasonable expectation ofcontinuing to provide
service. to the departing customer.. Order No. 888 established criteria under which stranded costs willbe
evaluated for contracts entered into prior to July 11, 1994, and for stranded costs resulting from the
formation ofany new municipal utilities. Recovery of stranded costs under contracts entered into after
July 10, 1994, willbe governed by the terms of those contracts.

In April 1996, the FERC also issued Order No. 889, OPen Access Same-Time Information Sys(em

(formerly Real-Time Information JYetworks) and Slandards ofConduct ("Order No. 889"). Order No. 889 requires
all public utilities owning, operating'or controlling facilities used for transmitting electricity in interstate
commerce to develop and maintain an Open Access Same-Time Information System that, will give
existing and potential transmission users access to transmission-related information on a basis consistent
with that available to a utility's employees engaged in the buying and selling of power. Order No. 889
further requires public utilities to separate their transmission and generation marketing functions arid
adopt standards of conduct ensuring that all open access transmission customers are treated in a non-
discriminatory manner.

Texas. During 1996, the Texas Commission conducted projects to evaluate the (i) scope of
competition in the electric industry in Texas and (ii) potential stranded investment, procedures for
allocating stranded costs, and acceptable methods of stranded cost recovery. The Texas Commission's
report, which was issued inJanuary 1997, recommended a careful and deliberate approach to continued
expansion of competition in the Texas,.electric market, ultimately leading to retail, competition, with
certain safeguards, and recommended against any legislation that would introduce,",broad-based retail
competition before 2000. The Texas Commission also quantified the potential retail "excess ofcost over
market" ("ECOM") under several scenarios. In February 1998, the Texas Commission requested all
Texas utilities to revise the gCOM estimates based on certain updated assumptions. Using the Texas
Commission's revised model inputs, the Company's revised ECOM estimates range from a high of
$ 1.5 billion to a low of5843 million, with an expected value ofSl.2 billion, assuming full retail access in
1999. Although several pieces of legislation were oAered during the 1997 Texas legislative session, no
significant deregulation legislation was passed.

In August 1997, the Lieutenant Governor appoin'ted seven senators to serve on a special interim
committee to study the various issues involved in a possible transition to a competitive electric market.
The comm'ittee is receiving testimony from various parties, including environmental advocates,
consumer advocates, power marketers, public power entities, electric cooperatives and investor-owned
utilities, as well as testimony and comments from the public at large, and is holding public hearings
across the state on various aspects of the electric industry restructuring debate., The Association of
Electric Companies of Texas (the "AECT") testified on behalf of all investor-owned utilities in Texas,
including the Company. The AEGT,testified that it would support retail competition that provides
benefits to all consumers, maintains electric system reliability, provides for equitable treatment of all
competitors and provides for the preservation of prior regulatory commitments. The committee is

expected to file a final report in late 1998. Recently, the 'Lieutenant Governor asked the Texas
Comptroller ofPublic Accounts to initiate a study to review the impact of a deregulated electric market

- on state and local tax systems. tl
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JYew Mexico. In 1995, the New Mexico Commission initiated a notice of inquiry regarding
competition and the restructuring of regulation of the electric industry. The New Mexico Commission
received comments from numerous parties representing various interests and conducted workshops in an

attempt to arrive at a consensus with respect to the need for regulatory change, the nature of such
change and the timing/transition of any changes. No consensus was reached by the participants. The
New Mexico Commission also commenced a collaborative process with the assistance of facilitators in
an attempt to reach consensus. Although that collaborative process failed to reach a consensus around
which restructuring legislation could be drafted, the New Mexico investor-owned utilities, including the

Company, have, agreed to support legislation that would permit retail competition provided: (i) all
customers have the opportunity to benefit, (ii) reliability of electric service is maintained, (iii)all energy
suppliers are subject to the same laws and regulations, (iv) the price of electric generating capacity and
electric energy is determined solely by market forces, (v) unbundled transmission and distribution
functions remain subject to regulation, and (vi}each electric utility must have a reasonable opportunity
to recover its stranded costs.. The 1998 legislative session concluded without the passage of any
significant deregulation legislation.

Reorganization Under Chapter 11 ofthe United States Bankruptcy Code

On February 12, 199$ , the Company emerged from a bankruptcy proceeding which it instituted
in January 1992. As a result of the Reorganization, the Company significantly reduced its debt and
simplified its capital structure. The Company's total obligations subject to compromise (including
obligations related to the Palo Verde Leases, which represented 5700 million of allowed claims in the
Bankruptcy Case) prior to,its Reorganization was $ 2,007 million. Under the Plan, this debt and the
Palo Verde Lease obligations were extinguished and the creditors received a combination of
5212 million cash and newly issued debt and equity securities of the Reorganized Company consisting of
51,189 Jnillion of, long-term bonds and financing and capital lease obligations, 8100 million of
redeemable preferred stock and $ 255 millionofcommon stock.

II

Under the Plan, all of the Predecessor Company's common and preferred stock was canceled and
the holders of such securities received approximately 545 million (15'/0) of the Reorganized Company's
common stock and,the right to receive certain potential litigation recoveries which ultimately amounted
to $ 20 million. In addition, on the Effective Date, the Palo Verde Leases were terminated and the

Company reacquired such interests. See Part II, Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data —Note H ofNotes to Financial Statements."

The Reorganized Company's financial statements for periods after February 12, 1996 are not
comparable to the Predecessor Company's financial statements for periods before February 12, 1996. A
vertical line is shown in the accompanying selected financial data and financial statements to separate
the. Reorganized Company from the Predecessor Company because the respective financial information
has not been prepared on a consistent basis ofaccounting.
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Name:, A~e

Executiv'e OfBcers ofthe Company

Current Position and
Business Ex erience

James S. Haines.

|

Eduardo A. Rodriguez ....

J. Frank Bates.

Michael L. Blough

Gary R. Hedrick

John C. Horne

Robert C. McNiel

Terr y Bassham

Guillermo Silva,Jr

Chief Executive OAicer, President and Director since May
1996; Executive Vice President and Chief Operating
OAicer of Western Resources, Inc. from June 1995 to
'May 1996; Executive Vice President and Chief
Administrative Officer ofWestern Resources, Inc. from
April 1992 toJune 1995.

Senior Vice President —Customer and Corporate Services
since August 1996; Senior Vice President since January
1994 Vice President from April 1992 to January 1994;
General Counsel from 1988 to August 1996; Secretary
fromJanuary 1989 toJanuary 1994.

Vice President — Transmission and Distribution since
August 1996; Vice President —Operations from May
1994 to August 1996; Vice - President — Customer
Services Texas Division fromJune 1989 to May 1994.

Vice President —Administration since August 1996; Vice
President since 'ay 1995; Controller and Chief
Accounting OAicer from November 1994 to August
1996; Assistant Vice President —Financial Planning
from September 1990 to November 1994.

Vice President, Chief Financial" OAicer and Treasurer
since August 1996; Treasurer since March 1996; Vice
President- Financial Planning and Rate Administration
from September 1990 to August 1996.

Vice President —Power Generation since August 1996;
Vice President — Power Supply from May 1994 to
August 1996; Vice President —Transmission Systems
Division from August 1989 to May 1994.

Vice President — New Mexico Affairs since
December 1997; Vice President —Public Affairs and
Marketing from August 1996 to December 1997; Vice
President-'New Mexico Division from December 1989
to August 1996.

General Counsel since August 1996; Shareholder with
Clark, Thomas & Winters, P.C. from May 1993 to
August 1996; Shareholder with Moreno, Fry &Bassham
from February 1992 to May 1993.

Secretary since January 1994; Assistant Secretary from
June 1989 to January 1994.

The executive oAicers of"the Company are elected annually and serve at the discretion of the
Board ofDirectors.
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Item 2. Properties

The principal properties of the Company pre described in Item 1, "Business," and such

descriptions are incorporated herein by reference. Transmission lines are located either on private
rights-of-way, easements or on streets oi'ighways by public consent. See Part II, Item 8, "Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data -'Note F of Notes to Financial Statements" for information
regarding encumbrances against the principal properties of the Company.

Item 3. Lega1 Proceedings
4

Litigationwith Las Cruces
t

Las Cruces is attempting to replace the Company as the electric service provider in Las Cruces

by acquiring, through condemnation or a negotiated purchase, the distribution assets and other facilities

used to provide electric service to customers in Las Cruces. Sales to customers in Las Cruces represent
approximat'ely 8 /o of the Company's operating revenues.

h

In April 1995, Las Cruces filed a complaint against the Company in New Mexico state court,
seeking a declaratory judgment that Las Cruces has a right ofeminent domain to condemn the electric
distribution system and related facilities owned and operated by the Company within and adjacent to the

city limits. In May 1995; the Company removed the case to federal district court in New Mexico.
Following a trial on the merits, the Federal Magistrate granted the Company's motion to certify to the

New Mexico Supreme Court the question of'whether Las Cruces possesses the authority to condemn the

Company's property for use as a municipal 'utility when that property is'already devoted to public use.

Prior to a ruling by the New Mexico Supreme Court', the New Mexico legislature enacted a bill which
purports to give Las Cruces the authority to'condemn the Company's distribution system within its city
limits and a territory extending five miles beyond the municipal-boundary. On February 11, 1998, the

New Mexico Supreme Court ruled that the subsequent legislation rendered moot the certified question

before the Supreme Court. On February 26, 1998, the Company received notice from Las Cruces of its

intent to file a condemnation action in New Mexico district court. At this time the Company is unable

to predict the outcome of this litigation."
1I

IfLas Cruces succeeds in its efforts to condemn the Company's distribution system, the Company

could lose its L'as Cruces customer base, although 'the Company would be entitled to receive "just

compensation" as established by the court under'New Mexico law. 'J'ust compensation" is generally

defined as the amount ofmoney that would fairly compensate the party whose property is condemned.

It is the Company's opinion that this amount would be the diAerence between the value of the

Company's entire system prior to the taking, as compared to the value of the entire system after the

taking. See Item 1, "Business —Regulation —Federal Regulatory Matters" for a full discussion of
stranded costs.

Las Cruces has taken several actions to position'tself to acquire portions of the Company's

distribution system and certain related- facilities. In August 1994, SPS 'and Las Cruces entered into a

fifteen-year contract granting'SPS the right to provide all of the electric power and energy required by

Las Cruces during the term of the contract. In addition, Las Cruces sold approximately 873 million in

revenue bonds in October 1995 to provide funding to finance the acquisition by condemnation or
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negotiated purchase of the Company's electrical distribution assets within and adjacent to the Las Cruces
city limits.

The Company has filed a lawsuit in the Dona Ana County District Court and is pursuing a
complaint simultaneously before the New iMexico Commission challenging the legality of the sale of the
revenue bonds., In addition, the New Mexico Commission is investigating the agreement between SPS
and Las Cruces which, under certain circumstances, would grant Las Cruces an option to sell to SPS
electric utility assets acquired through condemnation. In August 1996, the Dona Ana County District
Court issued an opinion letter stating that Section 3-23-3 of the New Mexico Municipal Code is
inapplicable to home rule municipalities and Las Cruces, therefore, was not required to acquire the
New Mexico Commission's approval before issuing revenue bonds to acquire utilityproperty. However,
the Court did agree with the Company that the revenue bonds, in this case backed by utility revenues,
are subject to the same requirements as those imposed on other revenue bonds backed by gross receipts
tax revenues. Therefore, ifthe Court's finding of the applicability ofLas Cruces'ome rule authority is
overturned on appeal,„the Company's position that the issuance of the bonds required prior approval
could be upheld. The Company filed an appeal with the New Mexico Court ofAppeals and Las Cruces
requested an expedited ruling from the Court of Appeals. In August 1997, the New Mexico Court of
Appeals certified to the New Mexico Supreme Court the issues related to Las Cruces'uthority to issue
the revenue bonds. Oral argument before the Supreme Court was held in November 1997.

In July l996, Las Cruces exercised ip right under Order No. 888 to request that the Company
calculate Las Cruces'tranded cost obligation should it leave the Company's system and operate its own
municipal utility. The Company's initial non-binding calculation was provided within the statutory
period. Las Cruces subsequently filed a request at the FERC for a determination that Las Cruces would
have no stranded cost obligation to the Company or, in, the alternative, that the FERC convene a
hearing to establish the amount of any stranded costs. In.August 1997, the FERC issued an order
denying Las Cruces'equest for a determination that Las Cruces would have no stranded cost obligation,
and providing for evidentiary hearings on the following stranded costs issues: (i) whether the Company
has met the "reasonable expectation" standard so as to justify recovery of stranded costs from Las
Cruces; and (ii) ifso, the amount ofstranded costs that the Company may recover from Las Cruces. The
Company filed testimony in support of its recovery and calculation ofstranded costs, calculated pursuant
to the FERC formula. After removal of all distribution and transmission related expenses, the
Company's 'testimony reflects a generation stranded cost request of approximately 8101 million. In
November 1997, Las Cruces filed testimony which takes the. position that the Company is entitled to
stranded costs in the range of$0 to $ 19 million. On December 19, 1997, the FERC staff filed testimony
estimating the Company's, stranded cost to be 829.4 million. Hearings ofall issues were conducted at the
FERC in February 1998. A final"decision from the FERG is not expected before late 1998 or early
1999.

In April 1997, Las Cruces announced its plan to build a substation and distribution lines to serve
a new customer in a city-owned industrial park. Las Cruces stated that SPS would construct, operate
and maintain the new substation facility, and that the rates for this new customer would be significantly
lower than the Company's current rates. Las Cruces has approved a contract with SPS to provide
operation and maintenance services for the proposed Las Cruces electric distribution system, substations
and associated transmission facilities.
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The Company continues to believe that it can provide lower cost electric service to customers in
Las Cruces than can be achieved through a municipal takeover. Accordingly, the Company has stated
its strong preference for a resolution of its differences with Las Cruces through negotiation rather than
litigation and condemnation. A negotiated settlement of the Company's, pending rate case in
New Mexico could include a reduction in rates and settlement ofall issues in New Mexico, which would
be likely to create increased political and economic pressure on the Company to reduce rates in Texas.

The Company is unable to predict the outcome ofLas Cruces'florts to replace the Company as

its electric service provider or the effects it may have. on the Company's financial position, results, of
operations and cash flows. The Company does not believe it is probable that a loss has been incurred
and, therefore, has made no provision in the accompanying financial statements related to these matters.

! Four Corners )

!
!!

In July 1995, the Navajo Nation enacted the Navajo Nation Air Pollution Prevention and
Control Act, the Navajo .Nation Safe Drinking Water Act and the Navajo Nation, Pesticide Act
(collectively, the "Acts"). In October 1995, the Four Corners participants requested that the United
States Secretary of the Interior resolve their dispute with the Navajo Nation regarding whether. the Acts
apply to operation of Four Corners. The Four Corners participants subsequently filed a lawsuit in the
District Court of the Navajo Nation, Window Rock District, seeking, among other things, a declaratory
judgment that (i) the Four Corners leases and federal easements preclude the application of the Acts to
the operation of Four Corners; and (ii) the Navajo Nation and its agencies and courts lack adjudicatory
jurisdiction to determine the enforceability of the Acts as applied to Four Corners. On October 18,
1995, the Navajo Nation and the I'our Corners participants agreed to stay the proceedings indefinitely
so the parties may attempt to resolve the dispute without litigation. This matter remains inactive and the
Company is unable to predict the outcome of this case.

Water Cases

Sanjuan River System. The Four Corners participants are among the defendants in a suit filed by
the State of New Mexico in 1975 in state district court in New Mexico against the United States of
America, the City of Farinington, New Mexico, the Secretary of the Interior as Trustee for the Navajo
Nation and other Indian tribes and certain other defendants (State ofPew Mexico ex reL S E. Reynolds

JVew Mexico Slate Engineer v. United States ofAmerica, et al., Eleventh Judicial District Court, County of San
Juan, State of New Mexico, Cause No. 75-184). The suit seeks adjudication of the water rights of the
San Juan River Stream System in New Mexico, which, among other things, supplies the water used at
Four Corners. An'agreement reached with the Navajo Nation in 1985 provides that ifFour Corners
loses a portion of its water rights in the adjudication, the tribe will provide suflicient water from its
allocation to oflset the loss. The case has been inactive for many years and the Company is unable to
predict the outcome of this case.

Gila River System. In connection with the construction and operation ofPalo Verde, APS entered
into contracts with certain municipalities granting APS the right to purchase efliuent for cooling
purposes at Palo Verde. In 1986, a summons was served on APS that required all water claimants in the
Lower Gila River Watershed in Arizona to assert any claims to water in an action pending in Maricopa
County Superior Court, titled In re 77ie General Ajdudication ofAllRights to Use Hater in the Gila River System

and Source. Palo Verde is located within the geographic area subject to the summons and the rights of the
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Palo Verde Participants to the use ofgroundwater and eNuent at Palo Verde is potentially at issue in this

action. APS, as operating agent, filed claims that dispute the Court's jurisdiction over, the Palo Verde
Participants'roundwater rights and their contractual rights- to efHuent relating to Palo Verde and,

alternatively, seek confirmation of such rights. In December 1992, the Arizona Supreme Court heard

oral argument on certain issues in this matter that are pending on interlocutory appeal. Issues important
to the Palo Verde Participants'laims were remanded to the trial court for further action and the trial
court certified its decision for another interlocutory appeal to the Arizona Supreme Court. The Arizona
Supreme Court willhear argument on th'ese issues in October 1998 and subsequently render a decision.

The Company is unable to predict the outcome of this case.

k

Other J egal Proceedings

The Company is a party to various other claims, legal actions and complaints. In many of these

matters, the Company has excess casualty liability insurance which is applicable. Based upon a review

of these claims. and applicable insurance coverage, the Company believes that none of these claims will
have a material adverse effect'on the operations, financial position or cash flows of the Company.

Item 4. Submission ofMatters to a Vote ofSecurity Holders

Not applicable.
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. PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common, Equity and Related Stockholder Matters
I

The Company's common stock began trading on the American Stock Exchange on February 16,
1996 under the symbol "EE.", The high and low sales prices for the Company's common stock, as
reported in the consolidated reporting system of the American Stock Exchange, for the periods indicated
below, were as follows:

1997

First Quarter.
Second Quarter.
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter.

1996

Sales Price
~Hl h Low

7 "/is 8 5~/8

7'/8 5'/g
7'/iG 5's/is
71/~ 5l/

February 16 - March 31

Second Quarter.
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter.

6'/y
6'/8
6l/8
6'/8

P/<
5
5'/<
@is/„

At March 17, 1998, there were 6,141 holders ofrecord of the Company's common stock.

The Company's ability to pay dividends on the common stock for the next several years will be
limited by applicable law and by the financing arrangements entered into pursuant to the
Reorganization. Pursuant to the resolutions creating the Company's Series A Preferred Stock, no
dividends can be paid on the coinmon stock ifthere are dividends in arrears on the Series A Preferred
Stock. Pursuant to the First and Second Supplemental Indentures, so long as the Company's First
Mortgage Bonds, are outstanding and the series with the longest maturity is not rated "investment grade"
by either Standard & Poor's Rating Service or Moody's Investors Service, Inc., the Company may not
declare any dividend on the common stock, other than in additional shares of common stock, or make
any other distribution on, or acquire for value any shares of common stock (with certain limited
exceptions) unless, after giving eA'ect thereto, the aggregate of all such dividends, distributions and
certain other payments made by the Company since February 12, 1996 would be less than the sum of (i)
50% of the consolidated net income (as defined in the mortgage indenture) of the Company minus
dividends paid in respect of the Series A Preferred Stock for the period from February 13, 1996 to the
most recently ended fiscal quarter for which quarterly financial statements are available (or, if such
consolidated net income is a deficit; less 100% of such deficit), plus (ii) 100% of the aggregate net
proceeds received by the Company from the issuance or sale since February 12, 1996 ofequity securities
or debt securities that have been converted into equity securities, plus (iii) 510.0 million. Currently, the
Company's First Mortgage Bonds are not rated investment grade.

Pursuant to the terms of the reimbursement agreements related to four letters of credit issued

with respect to the four series ofpollution control revenue bonds, so long as a drawing is available under
any of the letters of credit, the same limitation contained in the First and Second Supplemental
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Indentures on the declaration of dividends would apply to the Company. In addition to the restriction

contained in the mortgage indenture, the credit agreement for the working capital and fuel financing
facility limits to $ 15.0 million the aggregate amount ofdividends that can be paid on the common stock

during the three years after its initial issuance on February 12, 1996.



em 6. Selected Financial Data

As ofand for the following periods (In thousands except for share data):

Period From
Year February 12

Ended to
December 31, December 31,

1997 1996

Period From
January 1

to
February 11,

Ye'ar)'996~)9 3
nded D c mb r31
~199 ~19 3

perating revenues .

perating income
ncome (loss) before extraordinary items
and cumulative elfect ofa change
in accounting principle ................................

'raordinary loss on repurchases ofdebt,
net offederal income tax benefit .................
traordinary gain on discharge ofdebt ........

umulative effect ofa change in
'ccountingprinciple ........................,...........

'et income (loss) applicable to common stock ...

asic earnings per common share:
Income (loss) before extraordinary items

and cumulative elfect ofa change in
accounting principle.................................

Extraordinary loss on repurchases ofdebt,
net of federal income tax benefit ..............

Extraordinary gain on discharge ofdebt .....
Cumulative eAect ofa change in

accounting principle ........................„.......
Net income (loss).
eighted average number ofcommon
shares outstanding,......:...............................
iluted earnings per common share:
income (loss) before extraordinary items

and cumulative effect ofa change in
accounting principle .................................

Extraordinary loss on repurchases ofdebt,
net of federal income tax benelit.'.............

Extraordinary gain on discharge ofdebt .....
Cumulative elTect ofa change in

accounting principle .................................
Net income (loss).
eighted average number ofcommon shares
and common share equivalents outstanding....

'tdditions to utilityplant .................:.........,.....
fotal assets

ng-term debt and linancing and capital
lease obligations.....,,................................,...
ebt and obligations subject to compromise..
referred stock

ommon stock equity (deficit) ........................

54,568

(2,775)

41,919

38,649 31>481

0.689 0.523

(0.046)

0.643 0.523

60,128,505 60,073,808,

0.685 0.523

(0.046)

0.639 0.523

60,437,632
75,431

1)812>613

60,116,709
53,346

1,846,190

966,810

121,319
iKL$9

1)046,173

108,426
'QL25Z

3 '94,038 $ 523,974
161,667 144,491

8 '4)949 3 504,617
1,639 49,874

$ 536,760 3 543,594
54,997 '57,035

118,198

264,273

(33,319) (28>153) (41)855)

382,471 (33,319) (28,153)

"
(96,044) (t)

(137,899)

3.825 (0.937) (0.792) (1.1 78)

7.435

'0.760

35,544,330

(0.937)

35,544,330

(0.792)
(2.702) tti
(3.880)

35,544,330 35)539,480

3.325 (0.937) (0.792) (1.178)

7.435

10.760

- 35,58,330>
8i176

1,910,354

(0.937)

35,54+,330
87,937

1,809,891

(0.792)

35,544,330
59,976

1,730,851

i

(2.702) tt>

(3.880)

35,539,480
57,806

1,715,406

1,164,328

100,000
'KKQOQ

),608,091 1,537,303 1,495,315
81,464 81,464 81,464

~Mh26K) ~2526N ~M,K5)

) Reflects the change in accountirig for income taxes due to the implementation of SFAS No. 109, "Accounting
for Income Taxes."

The selected financial data should be read in conjunction with Item 7, uManagement's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations," and Item 8, "Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data."
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Item 7. Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations,

Statements in this document, other than statements ofhistorical information, are forward-looking
statements that are made pursuant'to the safe'harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995. Such forward-looking statements, as well as other oral and written forward-looking
statements made by or on behalf of the Company from time to time, including statements contained in
the Company's filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission and its reports to stockholders,
involve known and unknown risks and other factors which may cause the Company's actual results in
future periods to diAer materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statements. Any such-

.statement is qualified by reference to the risks and factors discussed below under the headings
'OperationalProspects and Challenges" and "Liquidityand Capital Resources" and in the Company's

filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, which are available from the Securities and
Exchange Commission or which'may be obtained upon request from the Company. The Company
cautions that the foregoing list of important factors is not exclusive. The Company does not undertake
to update any forward-looking statement that may be made from time to time by or on behalf of the .

Company.

Ope'rational Prospects and Challenges

While the Company prepares for a new era ofderegulation and competition in the electric utility
industry, the Rate Stipulation provides a certain level ofstability in the rates that the Company currently
charges the majority of its customers. During the Freeze Period, the Company's strategic goals include

(i) serving the growing need for electricity within its retail service territory; (ii) continuing to focus on its
strategic location on the border with 'Mexico; (iii)enhancing long-term relationships with its largest retail
customers; (iv) continuing to reduce operating costs; and (v) developing an energy-related services
business.

The Company faces a number of challenges which could negatively impact its operations during
the Freeze Period. The primary challenge is the risk ofincreased costs, including the risk ofadditional or
unanticipated costs at Palo Verde resulting from (i) increases in operation and maintenance expenses;

(ii) the possible replacement of steam generators; (iii) an extended outage ofany of the Palo Verde units;

(iv) increases in estimates of decommissioning costs; (v) the storage of radioactive materials; and

(vi) compliance with the various requirements and regulations governing commercial nuclear generating
stations. There can be no assurance that the Company's revenues will be sufficient to recover any
increased costs incurred during the Freeze Period, including any such increased costs in connection with
Palo Verde or increases in other co'sts ofoperation, whether as a result of higher than anticipated levels
of inflation, changes in tax laws or regulatory requirements, or other causes.

In December 1996 and the first quarter of 1997, rapid escalation in natural gas prices increased
concern over price levels for energy, including electricity. The Company's recovery of fuel expense is

subject to challenges regarding. reasonableness and prudence through periodic fuel reconciliation
proceedings. See Part I, Item 1, "Business —Regulation —Texas Rate Matters —Fuel" and "-
Regulation —New Mexico Rate Matters —Fuel."

Another risk to the Company's operations is the potential loss of customers. The Company's
wholesale and large retail customers have, in varying degrees, additional alternate sources ofeconomical
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power, including co-generation of electric power. For example, a 504 MW combined-cycle generating
plant located in Samalayuca,'Chihuahua, which is scheduled to be fully operational by the end of 1998,
willjive the CFE the current capacity to supply electricity to portions ofnorthern Chihuahua, including
the geographic area currently served by the Company. Ifthe Company loses a significant portion o its
retail customer base or wholesale sales, the Company may not be able to replace such revenues through
either the addition ofnew customers or an increase in rates to remaining customers. The New Mexico
State Legislature has passed legislation which gives.La's Cruces the apparent legal authority to condemn
the Company's distribution system and related assets located within its city limits,'nd the Company has
received notice from Lah Cruces of its intent to file an'eminent domain proceeding. IfLas Cruces
succeeds in its efforts, the Company could lose its Las Cruces customer base, although the Company
would receive "just compensation" as established by the court. See Part I, Item 3, "Legal Proceedings-
L'itigation with Las

Cruces.'"'n

recent years, the United States has closed a large number of military bases and there can be
no assurance that Holloman Air Force Base-("Holloman"), White Sands Missile Range ("White Sands" )
or the United States Army AirDefense Center at Fort Bliss,("I';.Bliss") will not be closed in the future. or
that the Company willnot lose all or some of its mihtary base sales. The Company's sales to the military
bases represented approximately'$19.6 million'or 3/o 'of operating revenues for the year ended
December 31, 1997. 'The Company signed a riew contract with Ft. Bliss in August 1996, under which
Ft. Bliss will take service from the Company through 1999, with the right thereafter to continue,'service
on a year-t'o-year>basis for'n additional two years. The Company has a contract to provide, retail
electric service to Holloman for a ten-year term which began in December 1995. In August 1996, the
Army advised the Company White Sands would continue to purchase retail electric service from t e

Company pursuant to the existing retail service contract for an indefinite period. The Army willprovide
the Company written notice of termination of such contract not less than one year in advance of the

R itermination date.

Tli'e Company does not currently have an agreement with New Mexico~regulatory authorities or
parties to past New Mexico regulatory. proceedings comparable'to the Rate Stipulation. Pursuant to an
order from'the New Mexico Commission,'the Company filed rate data with the Commission in March
1997. Although the Company's filingdemonstrates 1 revenue deficiency of approximately $8.6 million
under current rates, the Company did not request a rate change to recover the deficiency. The
New Mexico Commission could, after hear'ing, order a rate reduction or, alternatively, in response to
regulatory, political and competitive pressures, the Company could agree to a rate reduction as part of
an overall settlement ofall issues in New Mexico, which would be likely to create increased political and
economic pressure on the Company to reduce rates in Texas. Prosecution of the case before the
New Mexico Commission is expected to be completed in 1998. The Company is unable at this time to
predict with certainty the outcome of this proceeding currently pending before the NewMexico
Commission. See Part I, Item 1, "Business —Regulation —New Mexico Rate Matters."

,The Company faces thesame concerns as most other companies that use computers relating to
the Year 2000 problem. The problem is that many computer applications do not correctly diAerentiate
a one year difference between the years 1999 and 2000. Applications that are date sensitive may not
properly calculate information or may not function.

I a

The Company began working on the Year 2000 computer"concern during the last quarter of
1996 and is attempting to either revise current computer systems to be Year 2000 compliant, or replace
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systems with new ones that are Year 2000 compliant by the end of 1998, to allow adequate time for

additional testing and correction. Incremental costs of the project are anticipated to be immaterial as

the Company is using internal resources to modify and test programs. The Company anticipates

spending approximately $ 1.8 million on this project and is expensing such amount as incurred over the

life of the project.
I

Because of the integrated nature of the Company's business with other utilities and its joint
facilities operated by other utilities, the Company is inquiring about and reviewing the activities of the

other utilities which comprise the integrated system. In addition, the Company is inquiring about and

reviewing the activities of its financial institutions and major suppliers to determine their compliance

with Year 2000 issues. Given the complex nature of this problem and the potential overlap with systems

beyond the Company's control, the Company cannot assure that it will not experience some diAiculty

relating to the Year 2000 problem.

Finally, the electric utility industry in general is facing significant challenges and increased

competition as a result of changes in federal provisions relating to third-party transmission services and

independent power production, as well as potential changes in state regulatory provisions relating to

wholesale and retail service. Both the Texas and New Mexico Commissions have conducted

proceedings related to industry restructuring and stranded cost recovery; however, restructuring
legislation has yet to be passed in either state. See Part I, Item 1, "Business —Regulation —Recent

Changes in UtilityRegulation." The. potential effects of deregulation are particularly important to the

Company because its rates are significantly higher than the national and regional averages. In the face

of increased competition, there can be no assurance that such competition. will not adversely aflect the

future operations, cash flow and financial condition of the Company.

Liquidityand Capital Resources

The Company's principal liquidity requirements through the end of the decade are expected to

consist of interest payments on the Company's indebtedness and, capital expenditures related to the

Company's generating facilities and transmission and distribution systems. The Company expects that
cash flows from operations willbe suflicient for such purposes.

; Long-term capital requirements of the Company willconsist primarily ofconstruction of electric"

utility plant, payment of interest on and retirement of debt, and payment of dividends on and

redemption of preferred stock. The Company has no current plans to construct any new generating

capacity through at least 2004. Utilityconstruction expenditures willconsist primarily ofexpanding and

updating the transmission and distribution systems and the cost of betterments and improvements to
Palo Verde and other generating facilities.

The Company anticipates that internally generated funds will be suflicient to meet its

construction requirements, provide for the retirement of debt at maturity and enable the Company to

meet other contingencies that may exist, such, as compliance with environmental regulation, pending
litigation and any claims for indemnification. At December 31, 1997, the Company had approximately

$ 111.2 million in cash and cash equivalents. The Company also has a $ 100 million revolving credit

facility, which provides up to $60 million for nuclear fuel purchases and up to $50 million (depending on

the amount of borrowings outstanding for nuclear fuel purchases) for working capital needs. At

28



December 31, 1997, approximately $52.0 million had been drawn for nuclear fuel purchases. No
amounts have been drawn on this facilityfor working capital needs.

The Company has a high debt to capitalization ratio and significant debt service obligations. Due
to the Rate Stipulation and comp'etitive pressures, the Company does not expect to be able to raise its

base rates in the event, of increases in non-fuel costs or loss of revenues. Accordingly, soon after its

emergence from bankruptcy, the Company established debt reduction as a high priority in order to gain
additional financial flexibilityto address the evolving competitive market.

The Company has significantly reduced its long-term debt following the Reorganization. From
June 1, 1996 through March 18, 1998, the Company repurchased approximately $ 230.3 million of first
mortgage borids as part of an aggressive deleveraging program and has reduced its annual interest
expense by approximately 817.9 million. Long-term indebtedness as a percentage ofcapitalizatiori was

reduced from 74/0 at June 30, 1996 to 66'/0 at December 31, 1997.

The Company continues to believe that the orderly reduction of debt with a goal of achieving a

capital structure that is more typical in the electric utility.industry and, ultimately, an investment grade
rating, is a significan't component of long-term shareholder value creation. Accordingly, the Company
will regularly evaluate market conditions and, when appropriate, use a portion of its available cash to
reduce its fixed obligations through open market purchases of first mortgage bonds.. However, the

significant amount ofdebt reduction that the Company has achieved since the Reorganization, and the
need for cash both to meet upcoming bond maturities and, ifappropriate, to redeem'early the Series A
Preferred Stock, may result in a lower volume of repurchases in the future. Accordingly, the Company
may experience a net increase in cash as it evaluates the comparative economic value of using excess

cash for purposes other than open market purchases of its first mortgage bonds.

The degree to which the Company is leveraged could have important consequences on the
Company's liquidity, including (i) the Company's ability to obtain additional financing for working
capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions, general corporate or other purposes could be limited in the

future; (ii) a substantial portion of the.,Company's cash flow from operations will be dedicated to the

payment of principal and interest on its indebtedness and, ifappropriate, the early redemption of its

Series A Preferred Stock; and (iii) the Company's substantial leverage may place the Company at a

competitive disadvantage by limiting its financial flexibilityto respond to the demands of the competitive
market and make it more vulnerable to adverse economic or business changes.

C

Historical Results ofOperations

Financial comparisons herein for the years ended December 31, 1997, 1996 and 1995 are based

„,on, the results, of operations of the Reorganized Company for the year ended December 31, 1997,

combined results of the Reorganized Company for the period February 12, 1996 to December 31, 1996

and the Predecessor Company for the period january 1, 1996 to February 11, 1996, and results of the

Predecessor Company for the year ended December 31, 1995.

Net income applicable to common stock before extraordinary item in 1997 was approximately

$41.4 million, or $0.69 per diluted common share, compared with combined net income applicable to

common. stock before reorganization items and extraordinary item of$27.4 million for the same period a
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year ago, and net loss before reorganization items of $23.3 million, or $0.66 per diluted common share

in 1995..

Operating revenues net of energy expenses increased $4.7 million in 1997 compared to 1996,

primarily due to increased KWH sales, partially offset by reduced revenue per KWH from the CFE.

Operating revenues net ofenergy expenses increased $43.8 million in 1996 compared to 1995, primarily
due to an increase in Texas base rates associated with the implementation of the Rate Stipulation and

increased KWH sales.

19961997Years Ended December 31:

Comparisons ofKWH sales and operating revenues are shown below gn thousands):

Amount Percent

Electric KWH Sales:
Retail Customers.....
Other Utilities

Total

5,784,447 5,652,907 131,540
1 897 885 1 753 553 144 332~UG2

2.3%
8.2
3.7

Operating Revenues:
Retail Customers.....
Other Utilities

Total

$ 497,868 $ 471,824 $ 26,044 5.5%
96 170 107 099 ~10 929 (10.2)

.6

Years Ended December 31: 1996 1995
Increase/ Decrease
Amount Percent

Electric KWH Sales:

Retail Gust'omers.....
Other Utilities

Total.

5,652,907 5,416,902 236,005
1 753 553 1 646 357 107 196

~II2Ql

4.4%
6.5
4.9

Operating Revenues:
Retail Customers.
Other Utilities

Total.

$ 471,824 $ 405,316 $ 66,508
107 099 99 301 7 798

l~kJE6

16.4%
7.9

14.7

Other operations and maintenance expense decreased $ 12.0 million in 1997 compared to 1996,

and $ 73.1 million in 1996 compared to 1995. The decreases were primarily the result of a reduction in
'Palo Verde costs ofapproximately $8.7 million and $67.3 million, respectively, due to the lease accruals

by the Predecessor Company, with no corresponding accrual by the Reorganized Company as a result

of the reacquisition of the leased portion ofPalo Verde in the Reorganization.

Depreciation expense increased $2.4 million to $ 88.7 million in 1997 compared to $ 86.3 million
in 1996. The effect ofan increase in depreciable plant following th'e'reacquisition in the Reorganization
ofa portion ofPalo Verde and the depreciation of such amounts over the period of the Rate Stipulation
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was partially offset by the decrease in the book value of depreciable plant from fresh-start reporting
adjustments.

"Combined depreciation expense increased $ 29.5 million to $ 86.3 million in 1996 compared to

$56.8 million in 1995. The:eHect of an increase in depreciable:pla'nt following the reacquistion in the
Reorganization of a portion of Palo Verde was partially oAset by the decrease in the book value of
depreciable plant from fresh-start reporting adjustments. The eAect of the implementation of fresh-start

reporting and the accelerated'depreciation of a portion of such amounts over the period of the Rate
Stipulatiori resulted in increased depreciation expense of$37.2 million for the period February 12, 1996

'o

December 31, 1996, which was partially offset by decreased nuclear decommissioning amortization.
As part of the adoption of fresh-start reporting, the Company recognized the net present value of
estimated future expenditures for nuclear decommissioning ofapproximately 884.9 million,

Taxes other than income taxes decreased 81.2 million in 1997 compared to 1996 and
59.0 million in 1996 compared to 1995, due to reduced Arizona property taxes. The decreases in
Arizona property taxes resulted from a decrease in taxable nuclear plant based on plant reductions on
the Company's regulatory books in 1997 and a net state property tax law which reduced the Company's

property taxes by approximately $8.8 million in 1996.
I

Other income increased $3.8 million in 1997 compared to 1996 due to the favorable litigation
settlement in 1997 of $ 7.5 million, net of legal fees and expenses, partially offset by a gain on sale of
investment of $3.8 million and an additional $2.3 million due to favorable settlement of bankruptcy
professional fees in 1996. There was no comparable activity in 1995. Also, in 1996, investment income
was classified as Other Income, whereas investment income in 1995 was included in Reorganization
Items (Expense) for the Predecessor Company. Investment income decreased 86.9 million in 1996

compared to 1995 due to reduced levels of cash resulting from repurchases of debt and the payment of
bankruptcy-related claims.

Interest charges decreased $8.9 million in 1997 compared to 1996, primarily due to a reduction
in outstanding debt as a result ofopen market purchases of the Company's first mortgage bonds and the

extinguishment of certain debt in conjunction with the Reorganization. Interest charges increased

S7.2 million in 1996 compared to 1995, primarily due to (i) increased interest on mortgage bonds due to

a greater amount of bonds being outstanding subsequent to the Reorganization and (ii) accretion of the

increased nuclear decommissioning liability as a result of implementing fresh-start reporting. This
increase was partially oAset by decreased interest charges due to the extinguishment of certain debt in
conjunction with the Reorganization.

Income tax expense, excluding income tax benefits of $ 1.5 million related to the loss on

repurchases of debt, increased $ 11.5 million in 1997 compared to 1996, primarily due to changes in

pre-tax income, including a favorable litigation settlement and certain permanent diAerences. Income

tax expense, excluding the deferred income tax effects of fresh-start reporting, reorganization items and

income taxes on interest income during bankruptcy, increased $ 39.1 million in 1996 compared to 1995,

primarily due to changes in pre-tax income and certain diAerences in book and taxable income.

The reorganization items benefit recorded by the Predecessor Company upon the emergence

from bankruptcy consisted of the eA'ects of the Rate Stipulation and deferred income tax benefits related

to the Reorganization. These. benefits were partially offset by (i) the adjustments of assets to their
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reorganization value and liabilities to their fair market values; (ii) provisions for settlement ofclaims; and

(iii)professional fees and other expenses. There were no comparable amounts in 1997.

Extraordinary loss on repurchases of debt represents the payment of premiums on debt
repurchased and the recognition of unamortized issuance expenses on that debt of $2.8 million, net of
federal income tax benefits of51.5 million, with no comparable amounts in 1996.

P

Extraordinary gain on discharge of debt for the Predecessor Company for the period January 1,

1996 to February ll, 1996 consisted of forgiven indebtedness upon" the Reorganization, primarily
related to the extinguishment ofPalo Verde lease obligations with no comparable amounts in 1997.

For the last several years, inflation has been relatively low and, therefore, has had little impact on
the Company's results ofoperations and financial condition.

r

In 1997, the Company implemented„SFAS No. 128, "Earnings Per Share," SFAS No. 129,
"Disclosure of Infqrmation about Capital Structure," and SFAS No. 130, "Reporting Comprehensive
Income," none of which had a material eAect on the Company's financial statements. See Item 8,
"Financial Statements and Supplementary Data —Note AofNotes to Financial Statements." There are
no new accounting standards pending implementation by the Company which would have a material
eflecton the Company's financial statements.



Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

INDEXTO FINANCIALSTATEMENTS

~Pa e

Independent Auditors'eport.

Balance Sheets at December 31, 1997 and 1996.

Statements of Operations for the year ended December 31, 1997, the period from February 12

to December 31, 1996, the period from January 1 to February 11, 1996 and the year ended

December 31, 1995.

Statements of Comprehensive Operations for the year ended December 31, 1997, the period
from February 12 to December 31, 1996, the period from January 1 to February 11, 1996

and the year ended December 31, 1995

Statements of Changes in Common Stock Equity (Deficit) for the year ended December 31,

1995, the period from January 1 to February ll, 1996, the period from February 12 to
December 31, 1996 and the year ended December 31, 1997

Statements of Cash Flows for the year ended December 31, 1997, the period from February 12

to December 31, 1996, the period from,January 1 to February 11, 1996 and the year ended

December 31, 1995.

Notes to Financial Statements..
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'EPORT
F.

The Shareholders and Board ofDirectors
El Paso Electric Company

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets ofEl Paso Electric Company (the "Company" ) as of
December31, 1997 and 1996 and the related statements of operations, comprehensive operations,
changes in common stock equity (deficit), and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 1997, the
period February 12, 1996 to December 31, 1996, the period January 1, 1996 to February 11, 1996, and
the year ended December,31, 1995. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also inclu'des assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

As discussed in Note,A ofNotes to Financial Statements, on February 12, 1996, the Company emerged
from bankruptcy. The, financial statements of the reorganized Company reflect assets at reorganization
value and liabilities at fair value under fresh-start reporting as of February 12, 1996. As a result, the
financial statements of the reorganized Company are presented on a diflerent basis than those prior to
the reorganization and, therefore, are not comparable in all respects.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present'airly, in all material respects, the
financial position ofEl Paso Electric Company as ofDecember 31, 1997 and 1996, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the year ended December 31, 1997, the period February 12, 1996 to
December 31, 1996, the period January 1, 1996 to February 11, 1996,- and the year ended
December 31, 1995 in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

KPMG Peat Marwick LLP

El Paso, Texas
February 6, 1998
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ELPASO, ELECTMC COMPANY
BALANCESHEETS

ASSETS
(In thousands) 1997

December 31
.1996

, Utilityplant (Notes A, B, C and F )
Electric plant in service
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization.......

Net plant in service
Cons'truction work in progress
Nuclear fuel; includes fuel in process of$9,910 and

$5,084, respectively..
Less accumulated amortization.

Net nuclear fuel:
Net utilityplant .

I

Current assets:
Cash and temporary investments.
Accounts receivable, principally trade, net ofallowance for,

doubtful accounts of35,124 and 86, 161, respectively .........
Federal income tax receivable
Inventories, at cost
Net undercollection of fuel revenues.
Prepayments and other

Total current assets

1,538,572 S

164 283
1,374;289

43,761

86,609
40 142
46 467

1 464 517

111,227

58,960

27,130
13,870
6 930

218 117

1,492,737
77 976

1,414,761
44,432

'0,014

18 651
41 363-

1 500 556

68,767

57,587
20,713
28,322

1,925
8 727

186 041

Long-term contract receivable (Note B). 27 659 31 057

Deferred charges and other assets:
Accumulated deferred income taxes, net (Note G) ....................
Decommissioning trust fund (Note C)..
Other

Total deferred charges and other assets........................

43,208
38,438
20 674

102 320

73,884
33,054
21 598

128 536

Total assets

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



t 1

EL PASO ELECTRIC COMPANY
BALANCESHEETS (Continued)

(i,

CAPITALIZATIONANDLIABILITIES
(In thousands except for share data) 1997 1996

December 31

Capitalization (tVotes D and E):
Common stock, stated value Sl per share, 100,000,000 shares authorized,

60,060,034 and 59,999,981 shares issued and outstanding; and
196,404 and 180,000 restricted shares, respectively.

Capital in excess ofstated value ..................................
Unearned compensation —restricted stock awards.
Accumulated earnings..............................;....................................................
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (unrealized gains (losses)

on marketable securities) ...

Common stock equity .

Preferred stock, cumulative, no par value, 2,000,000 shares authorized:
Redemption required —1,213,188 and 1,084,264 shares issued and
outstanding, respectively; at liquidation preference.

Long-term debt (Note F).
Financing and capital lease obligations (Note F).

- Total capitalization.

184

369,640 331,257
1

121,319 108,426
938,562 1,021,749

28 248 24 424
1 457 769 1 485 856

$ 60,256 3 60,180
241,222 '40,768
(1,138), (758)
69,484 30,835

Current liabilities:
Current maturities offinancing and capital lease obligations (Note F).....
Accounts payable, principally trade
Taxes accrued other than federal income taxes.
Interest accrued.
Other

Total current liabilities

28,463
24,957
19,292
21,172
17 439

111 3 3

28,333
37,215:
21,296
23,150
15 000

Deferred credits and other liabilities:
Decommissioning (Note C) .

Accrued postretirement benefit liability(Note J).
Accrued pension liability(Note J)..
Other

Total deferred credits and other liabilities ...

94)917 89,544
75,531 „,, „71,313
33,909 34;550
39 164 39 933
43 521 235 340

E

Commitments and contingencies (Notes 8, C, H, I and J)

Total capitalization and liabilities

See accompanying notes 'to linancial statements.



Operating revenues:
Base revenues.
Fuel'revenues and economy sales .

Other.

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands except for share data)

II

Period From
Year February 12
Eaded to

December 31, December 31,
1997 1996

S, 458>979 S 416,221
130,172 104>193

Period From
January 1

to
February 11,

1996

S 44,679
9,849

42
4 49

Year
Ended

December 3
1995

S 432,05
68,82

744
4 617

Energy expenses:
Fuel.
Purchased and interchanged power

113,457
01

92,899
17 1

1107 0

10,125
8

1 407

76,00
1 6
9 57

Operatxag revenues net ofenergy expenses ...
Other operating expenses:

Other operations.
Maintenance.
Depreciation and amortization..
Taxes other than income taxes ...........................

460 451

131>916
34,782
88,735
433 I

115,742
34>702
79,772
38 547

23,559 '08,44
4,743 43,41
6,577, 56,76

Operating income
Other iacome (deductxons):

Litigation settlement, net
Investment income.
Gain on sale of investment
Settlement ofbankruptcy professional fees ...
Other, net

Iacoxne before interest charges.
Interest charges (credxts) i

Interest on long-term debt.
Other interest.
Interest during reorganization ..
Interest capitalized and deferred.

Income (loss) before income taxes .

Income tax expense (benefit) (Note G)..
Income (loss) before reorganizatxon xtems

(cxpease) and extraordinary xtems ..................
Reorganization items (expense), net ofincome

tax benefit (expense) .

Income (loss) before cxtraordiaary items .............
Extraordxnary xtems:

Extraordinary loss on repurchases ofdebt, net of
federal income tax benefit

Extraordinary gain on discharge ofdebt ...................

~~87 $

7,500
6,095

362

14 11

175 786

86,117
6,200

5 75

89,344

54,568

5 568

(2,775)

77

144 491

4,796
3,844
2,305

8
1 4

1547 5

85,633
5,722

189
1 6

68,589
7

41,919

41 91

1 639

1 689

9,569
41
157

(7,468)
415

(4,053)

1

118 198

64 7
64 73

17

91>923

88 103
39,139
15 791I

(23>341

78

Net income (loss).
Preferred stock divxdead requxremeats................
Net income (loss) applicable to common stock ...

Basic earniags pcr commoa share (Note A)i
Income (loss) before extraordinary items
Extraordinary loss on repurchases ofdebt, net of

federal income tax benefit
Extraordinary gain on discharge ofdebt ..................

Net income (loss)..
Diluted earnxngs per common share (Note A):

Income (loss)gbefore extraordinary items
Extraordinary loss on repurchases ofdebt, net of

federal income tax benefit
Extraordinary gain on discharge ofdebt ...,.............

Net income (loss).

Weighted average number ofcommon shares
outstanding.

Weighted average number ofcommon shares
and common share equivalents outstandiag.

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

51,793

$ 0.689

(0.046)

(0.046)

3 0.685

41,919
1 488

382,471

'Ui2J:Zl

(33,319

0.523 $ 3.325 S (0.937

~2292

7.435
i9ZK 5 ~Q 9 32

0.523 S 3.325 S (0.937



EL'PASO ELECTRIC COMPANY .,

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE OPERATIONS
(In thousands)

Period From
Year Februaxy 12

Ended .to
December 31, December 31,

1997 1996

Period From
January 1 Year

to Ended
February 11, December 31,

1996 1995

et income (loss) ..

ther comprehensive income (loss) (Note A):
Net unrealized gain (loss) on marketable securities, less

applicable income tax benefit (expense) of S223,
S(125), 3 — and S(282), respectively...........................

Rcclassification adjustmcnt included in nct
income, nct of income tax ofS93 ................................

comprehensive incoxnc (loss) ..
'referred stock dividend requirements ..........................

comprehensive income (loss) apphcable to coxnxnon stock...

S i 51,793 3

(416)

517377

41,919

232

42,151
10 488

522

172

382,299

~BK292
(32,797)

3 382,471 S (33,319)

ee accompanying notes to financial statements.

P
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EL PASO ELECTRIC COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN COMMONSTOCK EQUITY (DEFICIT)

(In thousands except for share data)

Uneassied
Cocnpensation- Acnmudated

Capatalin Restsicted Acciunulated Otber
Excxmof Stodt Eassxings Cotriprtibensiw

Stated Va~ Away@ ~e6cit+ lncom~esg

Toed

Balances at December 31, 1994.....
Net loss.
Other comprehensive income...........

Balances at December 31, 1995 .....
Net income
Elimination ofpredecessor equity

accounts .

Effects of fresh-start reporting
adjustment to common stock equity....

Balances at February 11, 1996 .......

35,544,330 339,097

(35,544,330) (339,097)

(758,032)
382,471

3397097

172 (418,7(
382,4;

~64 ~7 ~6

35,544,330 3 339,097 3 — 3 — 3 (724,713) S (350) 3 (385,9
(33,319) (33,3 l

Issuance ofcommon stock upon
reorganization ...............................

Capital stock expense .......................
Grants of restricted common

stock
Amortization ofunearned

compensation ................................
Preferred stock dividends ..................
Net income
Other comprehensive income...........

Balances at December 31, 1996.....
Grants of restricted common

stock
Amortization ofunearned

compensation ................................
Repurchase ofunrestricted

common stock ...............................
Preferred stock dividends..................
Net income
Other comprehensive loss.................

Balances at December 31, 1997 .....

59,999,981 60,000 240,000
(596)

30070I
(5!

180,000 180 768 (948)

190 1!

(10,488) (10,41
41,919 4179

60,179,981

84,255

60,180 240,768

84 491

(758) 30,835

(575)

232 331,2;

195

(7,798) (8) (37) (-

(13,144) (13,1 ~

51,793 51,7',

I ~MM ~tL222 5 JLLUO ~M5 5 ~Sf~6M
See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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EL PASO ELECTRIC COMPANY
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

Perxod From
Year February 12

Ended to
December 31, Deceinber31,

1997 1996

Period From
January 1 Year

to Ended
February 11, Decxmxber312

1996 1995
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:

Net income (loss).

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided

by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credit, net ............

Other operating activities..
Extraordinary loss on repurchases ofdebt, net of

federal income tax benefit.
Gain on sale of investment.
Reorganization items, net of income tax benefit.....................

Extraordinary gain on discharge of debt.................................

Change in:
Accounts receivable
Federal income tax receivable
Inventories
Prepayments and other
Long-term contract receivable
Accounts payable
Interest accrued.
Net under/overcollection of fuel revenues ...,.........................,
Other current liabihties.
Deferred charges and credits.
Obligations subject to compromise
Revenues subject to refund.

Net cash provided by operatxng activitxes..............

Cash Flows From Investxng Activxties:
Additions to utilityplant
Investment in decommissioning trust fund
Proceeds from sale of investment.

Net cash used for investing activities ..............,.......

Cash Flows From Financxng Actxvities:
Repurchases ofand payments on long-term debt.........................

Net proceeds from financing obligations.
Redemption ofcapital lease obligations .

Capital stock expense.

Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock.
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt.
Redemption ofobligations subject to compromise.......................

Net cash used for Gnancing activities.....................,

Net xncrease (decrease) in cash and texnporary investments .........

Cash and temporary investments at beginning ofperiod ....

Cash and temporary xnvestments at end ofperiod ................

111,622
32,394

2,552

99,355
41,341

2,487

8,246
(3,116)

(805)

69,444.

(26,744),
(6,795),

2,775
(3,844)

(122,251)
(264,273)

(1,373)
20,713"

1,192
1,797

3,398
(12,258)

(1,978)
(1 1,945)

386
57520

3,513
(20,713)

(32)
(1,974)
27333

(4>038)
23,034

(12,709)
(1,242)
(1,117)

JBLull

5,429

90
34

293
(6,859)

417
(152)

1,994
9,430~278

(4,866)

1,590 l
',214

(80) t',

117885

161581
',027

21,187
71,839~4107

(75,431) (53,346)
(6,023) (5,960)~IS

(8,176) (87,937)
(553) (5,159)

~»> ~KJ!9$
(86,771)

5,369
(1,272)

8 674

(117,528)
3,320

(364)
(596)

115 168

43,309

97,500
778,120

~1181 6 ~1051
j~1766 ~i05I

42,460 14,022

68 767 ~474
dI26l

(207,762) 53,923

~65 7 ~0584
'82K f~I2 'iQZ

S 51,793 S 41,919 3 382,471 3 (33,319)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



EL PASO ELECTRIC COMPANY

NOTES TO FINANCIALSTATEMENTS

A: Summary ofSignificant Accounting Policies

GeneraL El Paso Electric Company (the "Company" ) is a public utilityengaged in the generation,
transmission and distribution of electricity in an area of approximately 10,000 square miles in west
Texas and southern New Mexico. The Company also serves wholesale customers in Texas, New
Mexico, California and Mexico.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that aAect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Bankruptg Reorganization. On February 12, 1996 (the "Effective Date"), the Company emer'ged
(the "Reorganization" ) from a bankruptcy proceeding which it instituted in January 1992 (the
"Bankruptcy Case" ). As a result of the Reorganization, the Company significantly reduced its debt and
simplified its capital structure. The Company prior to the Reorganization (the "Predecessor Company" )
had total obligations subject to compromise of 82,007 million (including obligations related to leases on
portions of the Palo Verde Nuclear Generating Station ("Palo Verde" ) (the "Palo Verde Leases" ), which
represented 8700 million of allowed claims in the Bankruptcy Case). Under the Company's Fourth
Amended Plan of Reorganization (the "Plan"), this debt and thc Palo Verde Lease, obligations were
extinguished and the creditors received a combination of 8212 milli'on cash and newly issued debt and
equity securities of the Company following the Reorganization (the "Reorganized Company" ) consisting
of 81,189million of long-term bonds and financing and capital lease obligations, 8100 million of
redeemable preferred stock and 8255 millionofcommon stock.

Under the Plan, all of the Predecessor Company's common and preferred stock was canceled and
the holders of such securities received approximately 845 million (15%) of the Reorganized Company's
common stock and the right to receive certain potential litigation recoveries which ultimately amounted
to 820 million. In addition, on the Effective Date, the Palo Verde Leases were terminated and the
Company reacquired such interests. See Note H.

Basis ofPresentation. The Company maintains its accounts in accordance with the Uniform System
of Accounts prescribed by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (the "I'ERC"). The Company
had determined that it does not meet the criteria for the application of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 71, "Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation,"
and accordingly does not report the eAects of certain actions of regulators as "assets or liabilities unless
such actions result in assets or liabilities under generally accepted accounting principles for commercial
enterprises in general.

h

The Company accounted for all transactions related to its Reorganization in accordance with
Statement of Position 90-7, "Financial Reporting by Entities in Reorganization Under the Bankruptcy
Code" ("SOP 90-7"). As of the EAectivc Date of the Reorganization, the Company applied "fresh-start"



EL PASO ELECTRIC COMPANY

NOTES TO FINANCIALSTATEMENTS

reporting i'n accordance with SOP'90-7 resulting in the creation of a new reporting entity having no

retained earnings or accumulated deficit. In applying fresh-start reporting, the Company determined its

reorganization value, which was allocated to the Company's assets, and recorded its liabilities at fair
value. Reorganization value was determined as the value of the Company's capital structure, based on
management's estimates of future operating results, less operational liabilities.

Because of the effects of fresh-start reporting, the Reorganized Company's financial statements

for periods after February 12, 1996 are not comparable to the Predecessor Company's financial
statements for periods before February 12, 1996. A vertical line is shown in the accompanying financial
statements to separate the Reorganized Company from the Predecessor Company because the respective

financial statements have not been prepared on a consistent basis ofaccounting.

.Comprehensive Income. In 1997, the Company implemented SFAS No. 130, "Reporting
Comprehensive Income." Under this standard, certain gains and losses that are not recognized currently
in the statement ofoperations are reported as other comprehensive income.

Utiliyt Plant. Upon adoption offresh-start.'eporting, the Company revalued its utilityplant. As of
February 12, 1996, the value allocated to the assets used in the Company's generation, transmission and

distribution operations was based on the Company's estimate of the replacement cost less depreciation
("RCLD") and was derived from the value of the Company as a going concern rather than on an

appraisal or other professional valuation of its assets. The RCLD of generation assets was calculated

based on estimates of the current cost ofgas-fired combined-cycle and combustion turbine power plants,
adjusted for certain economic factors. Additions to utility plant subsequent to February 12, 1996 are

reported at historical cost. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated remaining
lives of the assets (ranging from 11 years to 31 years), except for approximately S384million of
reorganization value allocated to net transmission, distribution and general plant in service. This
amount is being depreciated over the ten-year period of a rate settlement (the "Rate Stipulation") dated

July 27, 1995 among the- Company and substantially all of the other parties to Docket No. 12700.

The Company charges the cost of repairs and minor replacements to the appropriate operating

expense accounts and capitalizes the cost of renewals and betterments. Gains or losses resulting from
'etirementsor other dispositions of operating property in the normal course of business are credited or

charged to the accumulated provision for depreciation.

The Company accrued a liability for the present value of the estimated decommissioning costs

for the Company's interest in Palo Verde using an escalation rate of 3% and a discount rate of 6%.

Accretion of the decommissioning liability is charged to interest charges in the statements ofoperations.

The cost of. nuclear fuel is amortized to fuel- expense on a unit-of-production basis. A provision

for spent fuel disposal costs is charged to expense based on requirements of the Department of Energy

(the "DOE") for disposal cost ofapproximately one-tenth ofone cent on each kilowatt hour generated.
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Impairment ofLong-Lived Assels. The Company evaluates impairment of its long-lived assets and
certain intangible assets whenever. events or. changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of the asset may not be recoverable. An asset is deemed impaired ifthe sum of the expected future cash
flows is less than the carrying amount of the asset.

Capitalized Interest. The Company capitalizes, to construction work in progress, interest cost
calculated in accordance with SFAS iNo. 34, "Capitalization ofInterest Cost."

Cash and Cash Squivaknts. All temporary cash investments with an original maturity of three
months or less are considered cash equivalents.

Investments. The Company's marketable securities, included in decommissioning trust funds in the
balance sheets, are reported at fair market value and consist primarily of municipal bonds in trust funds
established for decommissioning of its interest in Palo Verde which had a fair- market value of
approximately 538.4million at Deceinber 31, 1997.'uch marketable securities are classified as
"available-for-sale" securities and as such unrealized gains and losses are included in accumulated other
comprehensive income as a separate component ofcapitalization.

Inventories. Inventories, primarily parts, materials and supplies are stated at average cost not to
exceed recoverable cost.

Operating Revenues. The Company accrues revenues for services rendered but unbilled.

The regulations of the Public Utility Commission of Texas (the "Texas Commission" ), the
New Mexico Public Utility Commission (the "New Mexico Commission" ) and the FERC and the
agreements with individual customers generally provide for fuel and purchased and interchanged power
expenses to be recovered from customers. Fuel revenues'reflect the Company's estimate of recoverable
fuel and purchased and interchanged power expenses net of a percentage of (i) profit margins from
certain of-system sales and (ii) revenues from third-party transmission services, which are credited to
customers. Economy sales relate to spot market sales and are included in fuel revenues. Base revenues
refer to the Company's revenues from the sale ofelectricity, excluding such fuel revenues.

Federal Income Taxes. The Company accounts for federal income taxes under the asset and
liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, deferred income taxes are
recognized for the estimated future tax consequences of "temporary difFerences" by applying enacted
statutory tax rates for each taxable jurisdiction, applicable to future years to differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts and the tax bases of existing assets and liabilities. The Company
records a valuation allowance to reduce its deferred tax assets to the extent it is more likely than not that
such deferred tax assets willnot be realized. The eflect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change
in tax rate is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

Earnings per Share. The Company adopted the provisions ofSFAS No. 128, "Earnings per Share,"
which establishes standards for computing and presenting earnings per share, for the year ended
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December 31, 1997. All per share amounts reported in prior periods presented have been restated to

conform to the new standard. Basic earnings (loss),per common share is computed by dividing net
income or loss, after deducting the preferred dividend requirements, by the weighted average number o

common shares outstanding. Diluted earnings (loss) per common share is computed by dividing net
income or loss after deducting the'preferred dividend requirements, by the weighted average number of
common shares and dilutive common shares outstanding.

Benefit Plans. See Note J for accounting policies regarding the Company's retirement plans and
postretirement benefits.

Stock Options and Restricted Stock. The Company has a long-term incentive plan which reserves

shares ofcommon-stock for issuance to officers, key employees and non-employee directors through the
award or grant of stock options and restricted stock. The Company has adopted the disclosure-only
'rovisions of SFAS No. 123, "Accounting for Stocl'-Based Compensation" ("SFAS No. 123").

A d'ngly compensation expense is recognized for the intrinsic value, if any, of option grants at
measurement date ratably over the vesting period of the options. Compensation expense or e

restricted stock awards is recognized for the fair value of the shares at the award date ratably over the
restriction period. Unearned compensation related to stock options and restricted stock awards is shown
as a reduction ofcommon stock equity.

Reclassifications. Certain amounts in the financial statements for 1996 and 1995 have been

reclassified to conform with the 1997 presentation.
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Supplemental Statements ofCash Flow Disclosures (In thousands)

Period From,
Year February 12

Ended to
December 31, December 31,

1997 . 1996

Period From
January 1 Year

'to Ended
February 11, December 31,

1996 1995

Cash (refunded) paid for:
Income taxes, net
Interest .........................
Reorganization items - professional

fees and other

8 (17,8.12)
76,477

3,264,

8 (2,504)
53,000

8,910

$
8,580

2,279

5 12,950
80,688

15,207

Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Issuance ofpreferred stock for

pay-in-kind dividends ........................
Grants of restricted shares of

common stock
Property purchased through issuance

ofpromissory note ..................'...........
Reorganized common stock

exchanged for Predecessor
common and preferred stock ............

Reorganized common stock
exchanged for settlement of
obligations subject to
compromise

Long-term debt exchanged for
settlement ofobligations subject
to compromise

Plant in service reacquired through
incurring obligation subject to
compromise

12,893

575

8,426

948

964

45,000

255,000

151,834

227,656

B. Rate Matters

Texas Rate Matters

The rates and services of the Company in Texas municipalities are regulated by those
municipalities, and in unincorporated areas by the Texas Commission. The largest municipality in the
Company's service area is the City of EI Paso. The Texas Commission has exclusive appellate
jurisdiction to review municipal orders and ordinances regarding rates and services in Texas and
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jurisdiction over certain other activities of the Company. The decisions of the Texas Commission are
subject to judicial review.

II

'Rate Stipulation and Agreed Order, The Company's rates for its Texas customers are governed by a
rate order entered by the Texas Commission in Docket 12700 (the "Agreed Order") adopting a Rate
Stipulation.,The Agreed Order and Rate Stipulation were entered into by the Company, the Texas
Commission staA; the City of El Paso and virtually all other intervenors in the case. The Agreed Order
implemented certain provisions of the Rate Stipulation and set rates consistent with the Rate Stipulation.

„"Among other things, under the Rate Stipulation: (i) the Company's base rates for most customers in
Texas were fixed for ten years beginning in August'995 (the "Freeze Period" ); (ii) the City of El Paso
granted the Company a new franchise that extends through the Freeze Period; (iii) the Company will
retain 75% during the first five years of the Freeze Period and 50% during the remainder of the Freeze
Period of (A) the net revenues generated by, providing third-party transmission services and (8),profit
margins from certain oA'-system power sales; (iv) the Company's reacquisition of the Palo Verde leased
assets was.,deemed to be in the. public interest; and (v) all appeals of Texas. Commission orders
concerning the. Company and all outstanding, Texas Commission dockets concerning the Company's
rates were resolved.

. Neither the Rate Stipulation nor the Agreed Order deprives the Texas regulatory authorities of
their jurisdiction over the Company during the Freeze Period. However, the Texas Commission
determined in the Agreed Order that the rate freeze is in the public interest and results in just and
reasonable rates. Further, the signatories to, the Rate Stipulation (other than the General Counsel, the
Texas OAice of Public UtilityCounsel'and the State ofTexas) agreed not to seek to initiate an inquiry
into the reasonableness of the Company's rates during the Freeze Period and to support the Company's
entitlement to rates at the freeze level throughout the Freeze Period. The Company believes, but cannot
assure, that its cost ofservice willsupport rates at or above the freeze level throughout the Freeze Period
and, therefore, does not believe any attempt to reduce the Company's rates would be successful.

~ However, during the Freeze. Period, the Company is precluded from seeking rate increases in Texas,
even in the, event of increased operating or capital costs. In the event of a merger, the parties to the Rate
Stipulation retain all rights provided in the Rate Stipulation, their rights to participate as a party in any
proceeding related to the merger; and the right to pursue a reduction in rates below the freeze level to
the extent ofpost-merger synergy savings.

W

J~'uel., Pursuant to Texas Commission rules, the Company periodically must make a filing
reconciling the revenues collected from Texas customers under its fixed fuel factor with the fuel and
purchased power expenses actually incurred for the period covered by the reconciliation. A fuel and
purchased power reconciliation must include not less than twelve months nor more than thirty-six
months of. reconcilable data. The Company has not filed a reconciliation for any period since
June 1995. Differences between revenues collected and expenses incurred are subject to a refund to
customers (in the case of an overrecovery of fuel costs) or surcharge (in the case of an underrecovery of
fuel costs). The Texas Commission,staA; local regulatory authorities such as the City of El Paso, and
customers are entitled to intervene in a fuel reconciliation proceeding and to challenge the recovery of
fuel and purchased power expenses.
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Higher than expected natural gas prices were experienced in December 1996, continued in the

first quarter of 1997 and remained at higher levels through the remainder of 1997 compared to 1996.

These higher natural gas prices have increased the Company's underrecovered fuel costs, which willbe

reviewed in the next Texas fuel reconciliation. A'ignificant disallowance of fuel costs in this

reconciliation could have an adverse effect on the Company's financial results. In January 1998, the

Company filed a request with the Texas Commission to increase its Texas fixed fuel factor and
implement a surcharge, subject to reconciliation, of its underrecovered fuel costs. The Company
'entered into a stipulation with all parties to the docket to implement the surcharge and a new fixed fuel
factor. Both the fixed fuel factor and surcharge are expected to go into eAect in April 1998.

Palo Verde Performance Standards. The Texas Commission has established performance standards
for the operation'of Palo Verde, pursuant to which each Palo Verde unit is evaluated annually to
determine whether its three-year rolling average capacity factor entitles the Company to a reward or
subjects it to a penalty. There are five performance bands based around a target capacity factor of 70%.
The capacity factor is calculated as the ratio of actual generation to maximum possible generation. If
the capacity factor, as measured on a station-wide basis for any consecutive 24-month period, should fall
below 35%, the Texas Commission could reconsider the rate treatment of Palo Verde, regardless of the

~ provisions of the Rate Stipulation. The removal of Palo Verde from rate base could have a significant
negative impact on the Company's revenues and financial condition. For the three-year rolling average

period ended, December 31, 1997, Palo Verde Units 1, 2'and 3 achieved capacity factors of 83.75%,
83.04% and 88.70%, respectively. These capacity factors result in the Company's entitlement to a

combined reward of 82.8 million pursuant to the formula established by the Texas Commission for the
Palo Verde units.

New Mexico Rate Matters

The New Mexico Commission has jurisdiction over the Company's rates and services in
New Mexico and over certain other activities of the Company, including prior approval of the issuance,

assumption or guarantee of securities. The New Mexico Commission's decisions are subject to judicial
review. Current base rates in New Mexico were established in 1990 and have not increased since. The
Company does not have an agreement with New Mexico regulatory authorities or parties to past
New Mexico regulatory proceedings comparable to the Rate Stipulation. The largest city in the
Company's New Mexico service territory is Las Cruces, which in 1997 accounted for 8% of the
Company's total revenue. See Note I.

Pending Rate Case. In October 1996, the New Mexico Commission issued an order in Case

No. 2722, requiring the Company to answer certain ratepayer complaints and to file a rate filing
package, including cost of service data and supporting testimony. On March 3, 1997, the Company
filed with the New Mexico Commission all of the rate filing package data required by the Commission's
order. Although the Company's filingdemonstrates a revenue deficiency of approximately S8.6 million
under current rates, the Company did not request a rate change to recover the deficiency. The
New iMexico Commission could order a rate reduction or, alternatively, in response to economic factors
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and regulatory, political and competitive pressures, the Company could agree to a rate reduction as part
ofan overall settlement ofall issues in New Mexico. Prosecution of the rate case before the New Mexico
Commission is'expected to be completed before the end of 1998. The Company is unable at this time to
predict the outcome of this, proceeding.

JiueL The Company is required to make annual filings with the New Mexico Commission to
reconcile the revenues collected under its fixed fuel factor with its fuel and purchased power expenses
actually incurred, and to report the results ofPalo Verde performance standards. These reports are due

by January 31 of each year for the preceding calendar year, and are filed along with the Company's
request to revise its fixed fuel factor to reflect current projections of fuel and purchased power costs and
to include the over or underrecovery reflected in the reconciliation report and the reward or penalty
reflected in the performance standards report: On October 31, 1997, the Company filed testimony and
evidence supporting its continued use of the methodology and manner ofcollecting fuel and purchased
power costs reflected in its tariffs. A hearing on this filing is scheduled forJuly 1998.

The Company's 1998 annual filingreflects a significant increase in the monthly fuel charge. This
increase is necessary because of (i) significant increases in the spot price ofnatural gas and (ii) the delayed
implementation of the 1997 change, eflective'with bills rendered on or after August 1, 1997, which has

caused the Company to underrecover its fuel costs in New iMexico by approximately $5.3 million for the

year ended December 31, '1'997. The recovery of this amount, coupled w'ith continued higher gas costs

for 1998, results in an increase in the proposed 1998 fixed fuel factor of approximately 24% over the
present factor. The'Company believes it has fully justified its'fuel and purchased power costs and
recovery methodology. In March 1998, the New Mexico Co'mmission consolidated the 1998 annual
filing and the October 1997 filing for hearing in July 1998. There can be no assurance that the New
Mexico Commission will accept the Company's proposed fixed fuel factor. As in Texas, interested

parties are allowed to intervene and challenge the recoverability of fuel expenses. A significant
disallowance of fuel costs'could have an adverse eflect on the Company's financial results.

Palo Verde Performance Slandards. The New Mexico Commission has established performance
standards for the operation ofPalo Verde, pursuant to which the entire Palo Verde station is evaluated

annually to.determine ifits achieved capacity factor allows the Company to claim a reward or subjects it
to a penalty. There are five performance bands based around a target capacity factor of67.5%. Because

Unit 3 is not included in the Company's New Mexico rate base, any penalty or reward calculated on a

total station basis is limited to two-thirds of such penalty or reward. The capacity factor is calculated as

the ratio of actual generation to maximum possible generation. If'the annual capacity factor is 35% or

less, the New Mexico Commission is required to initiate a proceeding to reconsider the rate base

treatment of Palo Verde Units 1 and 2. The removal of Palo Verde from rate base could have a

significant'egative impact on the Company's revenues and financial condition. For the year ended

December 31, 1997, the Palo Verde station capacity factor was 88.43%. This capacity factor results in

the Company's entitlement to a reward of $ 1.1 million, pursuant to the formula established by the

New Mexico Commission for the Palo Verde units.
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Federal Regulatory Matters
b

Federal Energy Regulator Commission. The Company is subject to regulation by the FERC in certain
matters, including rates for wholesale power sales, transmission of electric power and the issuance of
securities.

The Company has a long-term firm power sales agreement with Imperial Irrigation District
("IID") providing for the sale of 100 megawatts ("MW") of firm capacity and 50MW of contingent
capacity through April 2002. The agreement generally provides for level sales prices over the life of the
agreement. The Company also has a firm power sales agreement with Texas-New Mexico Power

Company ("TNP"), providing for sales to TNP in the minimum amount of25 MW through 2002. Sales

prices are essentially level for the reinaining life of the agreement., Rate tariAs currently applicable to
IID and TNP contain fuel and purchased power cost adjustment provisions designed to recover the
Company's fuel and purchased power costs.

InJuly 1996, the Company filed its open access transmission tariffs (Docket No. OA96-200-000)
(the "Open Access Case" ), in,,compliance with FERC Order No:888, Promoting Whoksak Competition

Through Open Access JVon-Discriminatory Trarismission Services bp Public Utilities Recovery ofStranded Costs by Public
Utilities and Transmitting Utilities ("Order No. 888"), covering network and point-to-point transmission
services and the six specifically required ancillary services. Several parties, including the City of
Las Cruces, New Mexico ("Las Cruces"), other utilities and several wholesale power marketers,
intervened and filed protests to the Company's tariffs. Issues raised by the intervenors included rates and
the terms and conditions of the Company's tariffs, including the treatment of and costs related to, certain
facilities making access to the Comision Federal de Electricidad de Mexico ("CFE") more available to
parties othe'r than the Company. In February 1997, the Company entered into a stipulated agreement
among the various parties settling all rate issues related to the Open Access Case. Under the settlement,
the Company will provide transmission service, to the extent transmission capacity is available, to any
party for firm or interruptible'ervice to the CFE until the earlier of the end of 1998 or the date the
FERC rules on the complaint filed by one of the wholesale power marketers that submitted a bid in 1996
to the CFE. See "Department ofEnergy" below.

'ntervenorsin the Open Access Case also raised certain issues relating to the criteria by which
the Company willdetermine the amount of transmission capacity that is available for use by third parties
desiring to use its transmission system. Hearings related to these issues were conducted before a FERC
administrative law judge in January 1998. A final decision from the FERC on these issues is not
expected until the fourth quarter of 1998. The Company does not expect a material financial impact to
result from a FERC ruling.,

In July 1996, Las Cruces exercised its right under Order No. 888 to request that the Company
calculate Las Cruces'tranded cost obligation should it leave the Company's system and operate its own
.municipal utility. For a discussion of this proceeding, see Note I.

Department ofEnergy. The DOE regulates the Company's exports of power to the CFE in Mexico
pursuant to a license granted by the DOE and a presidential permit. In addition, the DOE is authorized
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to assess operators of nuclear generating facilities for a share of the costs ofdecommissioning the DOI"s
uranium enrichment facilities and for the ultimate costs ofdisposal ofspent nuclear fuel.

In September 1996, one of the wholesale power marketers that submitted a bid in 1996 to the

CFE in connection with renewal of the interchange agreement for the supply of power during 1997 to
Ciudad Juarez, Mexico, filed a complaint against the Company with the FERC. The complaint sought
emergency relief and requested the FERC to direct the Company to enter into an agreement to provide
firm point-to-point transmission service to the CFE under the Company's open access transmission tariK
In October- 1996, the FERC issued an order requiring the Company to provide point-to-point
transmission service over the Company's transmission system to substation facilities near the

United States/Mexico border. The FERC, however, concurred with the Company's position that the

FERC does not have jurisdiction to order transmission across the border, suggesting that the DOE has

such jurisdiction. The DOE subsequently issued a Notice ofDelegation and Assignment which delegated

to the FERC the DOE's authority to carry out its duties in this case. The FERC has docketed the

Delegation and Assignment and the process is expected to continue throughout 1998.

JVuckar Regdatap Commission. The Nuclear Regulatory Commission (the "NRC") has jurisdiction
over the Company's licenses for Palo Verde and regulates the operation ofnuclear generating stations to

protect the health and safety of the public from radiation hazards and has authority to conduct
environmental reviews pursuant to the National Environmental Policy Act.

Other Wholesale Customers

The term of the Company's previous one-year 1997 sales agreement for firm capacity, and

associated energy to the CFE terminated December 31, 1997. Pursuant to a bidding process, the

Company was selected by the CFE to provide varying amounts of'power during 1998 ranging from 90

to 200 MW. The price is stable throughout the twelve-month term of the agreement and includes

charges for capacity and energy as well as transmission and any required ancillary services. Under the

new agreement, the Company's revenues in 1998 related to power sales to the CFE are expected to be

similar to 1997 revenues. There can be no assurance that the CFE will remain a customer after 1998.

The agreement requires payment in United States dollars.

Recent Changes in UtilityRegulation

General. The electric utility industry faces increasing pressure to become more competitive as

legislative, regulatory, economic and technological changes occur. Federal and state legislation,

regulatory initiatives, and proposed initiatives in Texas and New Mexico encourage competition in the

industry, and ultimately in the Company's service area. Together with increasing customer demand for

lower priced electricity and other energy services, these measures have accelerated the industry's

movement toward more competitive pricing and cost structures. Such competitive pressures could
result'n

the loss ofcustomers and could diminish the ability of the Company to fully recover its investment in

generation assets, as well as the cost of„,operating these assets. This issue is particularly important to the

Company because its rates are significantly higher than national and regional averages. In the face of
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increased competition, there can be no assurance that the future operations, cash flows and financial
condition of the Company will not be adversely affected, or that the Company will be able to sustain

retail rates at the levels established by the Rate Stipulation during the Freeze Period.

Of particular importance to the Company is the issue of ultimate recoverability of "stranded
costs,'" or costs previously found by regulatory authorities to be reasonable and prudent, but which at the
same time are higher than would be recovered under immediate, full competition. There is substantial
discussion 'and debate on this issue on both a national and state level and, at this time,-there appears to
be no clear solution. At the federal level, the FERC has announced, through a formal rulemaking, its
intention to allow 100'/0 recovery of all legitimate verifiable stranded costs attributable to FERC
jurisdictional customers. Texas and New Mexico commissions and legislatures are engaged in various
activities which are attempting to address the issue of stranded cost recovery from customers subject to
their jurisdictions. h

H

5'ERG. In April 1996, the FERC issued its Order No. 888, requiring all public utilities owning,
operating or controlling facilities used for transmitting electricity in interstate commerce to (i) file open
access transmission tarifls containing minimum terms and conditions of non-discriminatory service and

(ii) take transmission service (including ancillary services) for their own- new wholesale sales and
purchases of electric energy under the open access tariffs. Additionally, Order No. 888 permits public
utilities to seek recovery of legitimate, prudent and verifiable stranded costs and provides a mechanism
for the recovery ofsuch costs. Order No. 888 also provides for recovery of costs associated with former
power customers and new municipally-owned entities becoming transmission-only customers as a result
ofproviding open access transmission ifthe utilityhad a reasonable expectation ofcontinuing to provide
service to the departing customer. Order No. 888 established criteria under which stranded costs willbe
evaluated for contracts entered into prior to July 11, 1994, and for stranded costs resulting from the
formation of any'new municipal utilities. Recovery of stranded costs under contracts entered into after
July 10, 1994, willbe governed by the terms of those contracts.

In April 1996, the FERC also issued Order No. 889, Open Access Same-Time Information System

gormeryl Real-Time Information JYetworks) and Standards ofConduct ("Order No. 889"). Order No. 889 requires
all public utilities owning, operating or controlling facilities used for. transmitting electricity in interstate
commerce to develop and maintain an Open Access Same-Time Information System that will give
existing and potential transmission users access to transmission-related information on a basis consistent
with that available to a utility's employees engaged in the buying and selling of power. Order No. 889
further requires public utilities to separate their transmission and generation marketing functions and
adopt standards of conduct ensuring that all open access transmission customers are treated, in a non-
discriminatory manner.

I

texas.'During 1996, the Texas Commission conducted projects to evaluate the (i) scope of
competition in the electric industry in Texas and (ii) potential stranded investment, procedures for
allocating stranded costs, and acceptable methods of stranded cost recovery. The Texas Commission's

report, which was issued inJanuary 1997, recommended a careful and deliberate approach to continued
expansion of competition in the Texas electric market, ultimately leading to retail competition with
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certain safeguards, and recommended against any legislation that would introduce broad-based retail
competition before 2000. The Texas Commission also quantified the potential retaIl "excess ofcost over
market" ("ECOM") under several scenarios. In February 1998, the Texas Commission requested all
Texas utilities to revise the ECOM estimates based on certain updated assumptions. Using the Texas
Commission's revised model inputs, the Company's revised ECOM estimates range from a high of
$ 1.5 billion to a low of$ 843 million, with an expected value of $ 1.2 billion, assuming full retail access in
1999. Although several pieces of legislation were oA'ered during the 1997. Texas legislative session; no
significant deregulation legislation was passed.

In August 1997, the Lieutenant Governor appointed seven senators to serve on a special interim
committee to study the various issues involved in a possible transition to a competitive electric market.
The =committee is receiving testimony from various parties, including environmental advocates,

consumer advocates, power marketers, public power entities, electric cooperatives and investor-owned
utilities, as well as testimony and comments from the public at large, and is holding public hearings
across the state on various aspects of the electric industry restructuring debate. The Association of
Electric Companies of Texas (the "AECT") testified on behalf of all investor-owned utilities in Texas,
including the Company. The AECT testified that it would support retail competition that provides
benefits to all consumers, maintains electric system reliability, provides for equitable treatment of all
competitors and provides for the preservation of prior regulatory commitments. The committee is

expected to file a final report in late 1998. Recently, the Lieutenant Governor asked the Texas
Comptroller ofPublic Accounts to initiate a study to review the impact of a deregulated electric market
on state and local tax systems.

JYew Mexico. In 1995, the New Mexico Commission initiated a notice of inquiry regarding
competition and the restructuring of regulation of the electric industry. The New Mexico Commission
received comments from numerous parties representing various interests and conducted workshops in an

attempt to arrive at a consensus with respect to the need for regulatory change, the nature of such

change and the timing/transition of any changes. No consensus was reached by the participants. The
New Mexico Commission also commenced a collaborative process with the assistance of facilitators in

an attempt to reach consensus. Although that collaborative process failed to reach a consensus around

which restructuring legislation could be drafted, the New Mexico investor-owned utilities, including the

Company, have agreed to support legislation that would'permit retail competition provided: (i) all

customers have the opportunity to benefit, (ii) reliability of electric service is maintained, (iii) all energy

suppliers are subject to the same laws and regulations, (iv) the price of electric generating capacity and

electric energy is determined solely by market forces, (v) unbundled transmission and distribution

functions remain subject to regulation, and (vi) each electric utility must have a reasonable opportunity

to recover its stranded costs. The 1998 legislative session concluded without the passage of any

significant deregulation legislation.

C. Palo Verde and Other Jointly-Owned UtilityPlant

The Company has a 15.8% undivided interest in the,'three nuclear generating units at

Palo Verde. The Palo Verde Participants include the Company, five other utilities and Arizona Public
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Service Company'("APS"), which serves as the operating agent for Palo Verde. The operation of
Palo Verde and the relationship among the Palo Verde Participants is governed by the Arizona Nuclear
Power Project Participation Agreement (the "ANPP Participation Agreement" ).

Other jointly-owned utility plant includes a 7% undivided interest in Units 4 and 5. of
Four Corners Generating Station ("Four Corners" ) and certain other transmission facilities. A suinmary
of'the Company's investment in jointly-owned utility plant, excluding fuel, at December 31, 1997 and
1996 is as follows (In thousands):

" December 31 1997 December 31, 1996
MoVerde Palo Ver.e
"Station Other 'tation Other

$ ,„573,218 S 180,815 S 568)957. 5 180,366

(46,589) (27,078) (22,162) (12,747)
12,545 2,249' 8,545 . 985

Electric plant in service ............,.......
Accumulated depreciation '...............
Construction work in progress .........

F

Pursuant to the ANPP Participation Agreement, the Palo Verde Participants share .costs and
generating entitlements in the same proportion as their percentage interests in the generating units and
each Palo Verde Participant is required to fund its proportionate share of fuel, other operation,
maintenance and capital'costs, which, except capital costs, are included in the corresponding expense
captions in the statements of operations. The Company's total monthly share of these costs,was
approximately $ 7.3 million in 1997. The ANPP Participation Agreement provides that ifa participant
fails to meet its payment obligations, each non-defaulting participant shall pay its proportionate'share of
the payments owed by the defaulting participant. 1

'ecommissioning. Pursuant, to the ANPP Participation Agreement and federal law, the Company is

required to fund its share of the estimated costs to decommission Palo Verde over.,the estimated service
life of forty years. The Company's funding requirements are determined periodically based upon
engineering cost estimates perfor'med by outside engineers retained by the ANPP.

In December 1995,.the Palo Verde Participants approved a decommissioning study performed
by an outside engineering firm. The 1995 study determined, that the. Company will have to fund
approximately $229 million (stated in 1995 dollars) to cover its share of decommissioning costs. The
1995 study assumed that (i) maintenance expense for spent, fuel storage will be incurred for ten years
after the shutdown of the last unit (estimated to be in 2024); (ii) a national interim spent fuel storage
facility will be available; and (iii) as a result: of such national spent fuel storage facility, the amount of
spent fuel stored on-site will be reduced from all spent fuel assemblies to the final core plus fuel
assemblies from approxiinately three refuelings.

Cost estimates for decommissioning have increased with each study. The previous cost estimate
from a 1993 study determined that the Company would have to fund approximately $221 million (stated
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in 1993 dollars). The 1993 estimate, however, reflected an 84'/o increase from the previous estimate
made in 1989, primarily related to increases in estimated costs for low-level radioactive waste disposal.

Although the 1995 study was based on the latest available information, there can be no assurance
that decommissioning cost estimates will not continue to increase in the future or that regulatory
requirements willnot change. In addition, until a new low-level radioactive waste repository opens and
operates for a number ofyears, estimates of the cost to dispose of low-level radioactive waste are subject
to significant uncertainty. The decommissioning study is updated every three years and a new study will
be completed in 1998.

f'he

rate freeze under the Rate Stipulation would preclude the=Company from seeking a rate
increase in Texas during the Freeze Period to recover increases in decommissioning cost estimates.
Additionally, there can. be no assurance that the Company could increase its rates in-any of its other
jurisdictions to recover such increased costs.

The Company has established external trusts with independent trustees, which enable the
Company to record a current deduction for federal income tax purposes ofa portion ofamounts funded.
A's of December 31, 1997, the aggregate balance of the trust funds was approximately. $ 38.4 million,
which is reflected in the Company's balance sheets in deferred charges and other assets.

Steam Geri'eralors. Palo Verde has experienced degradation in the steam generator tubes of each
unit. The degradation includes axial'tube cracking, in the upper regions of the two steam generators in
Unit 2 and, to a lesser degree, in Units-1 and 3. This form of steam generator tube degradation, while
less common than other types, has also been seen at other United States nuclear generating stations. The
units also have experienced circumferential cracking at the tube sheet, a more common type of tube
cracking. The axial tube cracking was discovered following a steam generator tube rupture in Unit 2 in
March 1993. Since that time, APS has undertaken an ongoing investigation and analysis and has
performed corrective actions designed to mitigate further degradation. Corrective actions have included
changes in operational procedures designed to lower the operating temperatures of the units, chemical
cleaning and the implementation of other technical improvements. APS has stated that it believes its
remedial actions have slowed the rate'of tube degradation.

Steam generator tubes in each of the Palo Verde units have been inspected during regularly
scheduled refueling outages and mid-cycle inspection outages. Iftube cracks are detected during an
inspection, the aflected tubes are taken out of service by plugging. This may impair the performance of
a unit ifsuflicient numbers ofsteam generator tubes are affected.

The projected service lives of the units'team generators are reassessed by APS periodically in
conjunction with inspections made during outages of the Palo Verde units. APS has determined that it
willbe economically desirable to replace the Unit 2 steam generators, which have been the most affected

by tube cracking. In 1997, the Palo Verde Participants unanimously approved the purchase ofone set of
spare steam generators for delivery in May 2002. The Company's share of the cost is approximately
$ 12.9 million. APS has indicated that in 1998 it will request that the participants approve installation of

55



EL PASO'ELECTRIC COMPANY

NOTES TO FINANCIALSTATEMENTS

the spare generators in Unit 2 in 2003. The Company believes that such installation would require the
unanimous approval of the Palo Verde Participants. The Company will continue to analyze the
economic feasibility of steam generator replacement, or other options that may be available in
connection with the operation of Unit 2; Also, the Company cannot predict whether the Palo Verde
Participants will agree to replace the Unit 2 steam generators. The costs for the construction and
shipping of the spare steam generators are expected to be incurred between 1998 and 2002. Installation
costs, ifthey are approved, would be expected to be incurred between 1999 and 2003, with the bulk of
the expenditures after 2000. The Company's portion of total costs associated with construction and
potential installation of new steam generators in Unit 2, including replacement power costs and costs

that would otherwise have been expended through the operation and maintenance budget, is currently
estimated not to exceed $ 36 million. APS has also stated that, based on the latest available data, it
estimates that the steam generators in Units 1 and 3 should operate for their designated lives of40 years

(to 2025 and 2027, respectively). APS will reassess the expected lives of these stcam generators
periodically.

The Rate Stipulation precludes the Company from seeking a rate increase in Texas during the
Freeze Period to recover capital costs associated with such replacement of steam generators. It is

uncertain whether the costs associated with'replacing the Unit 2 steam generators. would be approved by
the New Mexico Commission and included in the Company's rate base in New Mexico.

Liabiliyt and Insurance Malters. The Palo Verde Participants have public liability insurance against
nuclear energy hazards up to the full limit of liability under federal law. The insurance consists of
$200 million of primary liability insurance provided by commercial insurance carriers, with the balance
being provided by an industry-wide retrospective assessment'program, pursuant'o which industry
participants would be required to pay an assessment to cover any loss in excess of $ 200 million. The
maximum assessment per reactor for each nuclear incident is approximately 579.2 million, subject to an
annual limitof810 million per incident. Based upon the Company's 15.8/0 interest in Palo Verde, the
Company's maximum potential assessment per incident is approximately 537.6'million for all three units
'xvith an annual payment limitation ofapproximately $4.7 million.

The Palo Verde Participants maintain "all risk" (including nuclear hazards) insurance for
property damage to, and decontamination of, property at Palo Verde in the aggregate amount of
$2.7 billion, a substantial portion of which must first be applied to stabilization and decontamination.
Finally, the Company has obtained insurance against a portion of any increased cost of generation" or
purchased power which may result from an accidental outage ofany of the three Palo Verde units ifthe
outage exceeds 23 weeks.
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D. Common Stock

Overview

The Company issued approximately 60 million shares of new common stock on February 12,

1996. The common stock has a stated value of $ 1 per share, with no cumulative voting rights or
preemptive rights. Holders of the c'ommon stock have the right to elect the Company's directors and to
vote on other'atters.

Pursuant to the resolutions creating the Series A Preferred Stock, no dividends can be paid on the
common stock if there are dividends in arrears on the Series A Preferred Stock. So long as the

Company's First Mortgage Bonds are outstanding and the series with the longest maturity is not rated
"investment grade" by either Standard & Poor's Rating Service or Moody's Investors Service, Inc., the

Company may not declare any dividend on the common stock, other than in additional shares of
common sto'ck, or make any other distribution on, or acquire for value any shares ofcommon stock (with
certain limited exceptions) unless, after giving effect thereto, the aggregate of all such dividends,
distributions and certain other payments made by the Company since February 12, 1996 would be less

than the sum of (i) 50/0 of the consolidated net income (as defined in the mortgage 'indenture) of the

Company minus dividerids paid in respect of the Series A Preferred 'Stock for the period from
February 13, 1996 to the most recently ended fiscal quarter for which quarterly financial statements are
available"'(or, ifsuch consolidated net income is a deficit, less 100'/0 of such deficit), plus (ii) 100'/0 of the

aggregate net proceeds received by the Company from the issuance or sale since February 12, 1996 of
equity securities or debt securities that have been converted into equity securities, plus (iii) $ 10.0 million.
Currently, the Company's First Mortgage Bonds are not rated investment grade.

Pursuant to the terms of the reimbursement agreements related to four letters of credit issued

with respect to the four series ofpollution control revenue bonds, so long as a drawing is available under

any of the letters of credit, the same limitation on the declaration of dividends would apply to the

Company. In addition to the restriction contained in the mortgage indenture, the credit agreement for
the working capital and fuel financing facility limits to $ 15.0 million the aggregate amount of dividends

that can be paid on the common stock during the three years after its initial issuance on February 12,

1996.

1996 Lonj-Term Incentive Plan

The 1996 Long-Term Incentive Plan (the "1996 Plan" ) authorized the issuance of up to

3,500,000 shares ofcommon stock for the benefit ofoAicers, key employees and non-employee directors

through the award or grant of non-statutory stock options, incentive stock options, stock appreciation

rights, restricted stock, bonus stock and performance stock.

Stock Options. Stock options have been granted at prices equal to or greater than the market value

of the shares at the date ofgrant. The options expire ten years from the date ofgrant unless terminated
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earlier by the Board of Directors. The following table summarizes the transactions of the Company's
stock options for 1996 and 1997:

Number of
Shares

%'eighted
Average
Exercise

Price

Unexercised options outstanding at February 12, 1996......,

Options granted .

Options exercised.
Options forfeited .

Unexercised options outstanding at December 31, 1996 ...

Options granted
Options exercised.
Options forfeited .

Unexercised options outstanding at December 31, 1997 ...

1,900,000

1,900,000
55,000

8
5.69

5.69
6.56,

6.56,
5.7 1.

Certain stock options awarded vest ratably over a four or five-year period. Stock„options
outstanding at December 31, 1997 are as follows:

Exercise Number Remaining Number
Life In Years Exercisable

$ 5.32
5.56
6.56
7.00

800,000
800,000

50,000
300 000

8.3
8.4
9.3
8.4

320,000
320,000

50,000
300 000

The Company has adopted the disclosure-only provisions of SFAS No. 123. Accordingly,
because the stock option grants had no intrinsic value at the measurement date, no compensation cost

has been recognized. Had compensation cost for the plan been determined based on the fair value at
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the grant date, consistent with the prov'isions ofSFAS No. 123, the Company's net earnings and earnings

per share would have been reduced to the pro forma amounts presented below:

December 31,
1997

Period From
February 12

to
December

31,'996

Net income applicable to common stock (In thousands):
As reported..
Pro forma

38,649, 5 31,431
38,093 30,337

„Basic earnings per share:
As reported...
Pro forma.

6 ~ ~ 0.643
0.6M,

, 0.523,,
0.505

Diluted earnings per share:
As reported..
Pro forma.

0.639
0.630

0.523
0.505

f
I

The fair value for these options was estimated at the grant date using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model. Weighted average assumptions and grant-date fair value for 1997 and 1996 are

presented below:

Risk-free interest rate
Expected life, in years
Expected volatility
Expected dividend yield
Fair value

1997
6.76%

10

I0.86%

53.24

1996
6.85%

10
4.24%

$2.60

Restricted Stock. The Company has awarded vested and unvested restricted stock awards under the

1996 Plan. Restrictions from resale generally lapse, and, unvested awards vest, over periods of four to

five years. During 1997 and 1996, approximately $ 0.5 million and 80.2 million, respectively, relating to
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restricted stock awards were charged to expense. The following table summarizes the vested and

unvested restricted stock awards for 1997 and 1996:

Vested Unvested Total

Restricted shares outstanding at February 12, 1996......
Restricted stock awards.
Lapsed restrictions

Restricted shares outstanding at December 31, 1996....
Restricted stock awards ..

Lapsed restrictions and vesting.
Restricted shares outstanding at December 31, 1997....

80,000

80,000
47,440
40 488

100,000

100,000
36,815

180,000

180,000
84)255
67 851

The holder ofa restricted stock award has rights as a shareholder of the Company, including the

right to vote and, ifapplicable, receive cash dividends on restricted stocl<, except that certain restricted

stock awards require any cash dividend on restricted stock to be delivered to the Company in exchange

for additional shares of restricted stock ofequivalent market value.
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'Reconciliation ofBasic'and Diluted Earnings Per Common Share

The reconciliation ofbasic and diluted earnings per common share before extraordinary items is

presented below:

Income before extraordinary items........
Less: Preferred stock dividends...........

Basic earnings per common share:

Income applicable to common stock ...

Effect ofdilutive securities:
'nvested restricted stock .....................

Stock options..

Diluted earnings per common share:
Income applicable to common stock ...

Income Shares
Pn thousands)

$ 54,568
13 144

Per
Common

Share

41,424 60,128,505 ij ~9
16,041

293 086

For the Year Ended December 31 1997

Period From February 12 to
December 31 1996

Income before extraordinary items.....
Less: Preferred stock dividends........

Income
(In thousands)

3 41,919
10 488

Shares

Per
Common

Share

Basic earnings per common share:

Income applicable to common stock .....

Effect ofdilutive securities:
Unvested restricted stock ......i................
Stock options;

Diluted earnings per common share:

Income applicable to common s'tock .....

31,431 60,073,808 $

3,912
38 989

Options to purchase 300,000 shares ofcommon stock at $7.00 per share were outstanding during

1997 and the second half of 1996 but were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per

common share for all periods except the first quarter of 1997 because the options'xercise price was

greater than the average market price of the common shares for those periods. The options, which

expire on June 11, 2006, were still outstanding at the end of 1997. Also excluded from the computation
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of diluted earnings per common share were options to purchase 525,000.shares of common stock at
$7.50 per share, granted on January 2, 1998.

The reconciliation ofbasic and diluted earnings per common share for the Predecessor Company
are not presented herein as there were no reconciling items for periods prior to February 12, 1996.

E. Preferred Stock

The Company issued one million shares ofnew Series A Preferred Stock on February 12, 1996.
The preferred stock has a liquidation preference of $ 100 per share, has no sinking fund requirements
and must be redeemed by the Company in 2008. The preferred stock has an'annual dividend rate of
11.40%, which is to be paid through the issuance ofadditional shares ofpreferred stock for the first three
years and in cash thereafter. The Company issued a total of 213,188 additional shares between
November 1, 1996 and December 31, 1997 to satisfy pay-in-kind dividends. Also, on January 22, 1998,
the Company's Hoard of Directors declared a scheduled pay-in-kind dividend which was paid on
February 1, 1998, through the issuance of 34,559 additional shares to shareholders of record as of
January 22, 1998.

Following is a summary of the changes in the preferred stock of the Predecessor and Reorganized
Company:

Redem tion Re uired Redem tion Not Re uired
~Share Amount

(In thousands)
Shares Amount

(In thousands)

Balance at December 31, 1994 and .1995 ............
Redemption ofPredecessor preferred stock ...

Issuance ofReorganized preferred stock ........
Issuance ofdividends..

Balance at December 31, 1996.
Issuance ofdividends......................................

Balance at December 31, 1997

639,600 3

(639,600)
1,000,000~84 4

1,084,264~18 4

67,266

(67,266)
100,000

8 426
108,426

142,450 S

(142,450)

14,198

(14,198)

Oplional Redemplion. The Series A Preferred Stock is not redeemable, at.,the Company's option
prior to February 1, 1999; provided, however, that upon the occurrence of a change of control on or
prior to February 1, 1999, the Company shall have the right to redeem the outstanding Series A
Preferred Stock, in whole or in part, no earlier than 30 days nor later than 60 days from the date the
change ofcontrol offer is mailed to the holders ofSeries A Preferred Stock, in cash, at a price per share
equal to the sum of (i) 108% of the liquidation preference plus (ii) accrued and unpaid dividends
(including an amount equal to a prorated dividend from the immediately preceding-dividend accrual
date), ifany, to the redemption date. Thereafter, the outstanding Series A Preferred Stock may be
redeemed, in whole or in part, at the option of the Company, in cash at the redemption prices set forth
in the table below, plus all accrued and unpaid dividends (including an amount equal to,a prorated
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dividend from the immediately preceding dividend accrual date to the date of redemption), ifany, if
redeemed during the twelve-month period beginning on February 1 of the years indicated below:

Year

1999
2000
2001
2002
2003
2004 and thereafter

Optiona1
Redemption

Price

105.70%
104.56
103.42
102.28
101.14.
100.00

Mandatory Redemption. On February 1, 2008, the Company will be required to redeem (subject to

the legal availability of funds therefor) all outstanding shares of Series A Preferred Stock at a price in

cash equal to the sum of(i) the liquidation preference thereof plus (ii) all accrued and unpaid dividends, if
any, to the date ofredemption.
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F. Long-Term and Financing and Capital Lease Obligations .

Outstanding long-term and financing and capital lease obligations are as follows:

Lon -Term Obli ations:
First Mortgage Bonds (1):

7.25% Series A, issued 1996, due 1999.
7.75% Series B, issued 1996, due 2001
8.25% Series C, issued 1996, due 2003.
8.90% Series D, issued 1996, due 2006.
9.40% Series E, issued 1996, due 2011

Pollution Control Bonds (2):
Secured by First Mortgage Collateral Series Bonds:

Variable rate bonds, duc 2014.
Variable rate refunding bonds, due 2013.
Variable rate refunding bonds, due 2014.
Variable rate refunding bonds, due 2015.

Promissory note due 2007 (384,000 due in 1998) (3).
Total long-term obligations.

Finan in and Ca ital Lease li a ion:
Turbine lease (S1,722,000 due in 1998) (4).
Nuclear fuel (826,657,000 due in 1998) (5).

Total financing and capital lease obligations ...........................
Total long-term and financing and capital lease obligations ...

December 31
1997 1996

(Inthousands)

8 = 66,261 S

62,698
119,292

" 223,132
273,398

I

,, 63,500
33,300
37,100
59,235

78,266
78,771

148,989
235,957
285,900

63,500
33,300
37,100
59,235

4,628 5,900
51 999 46 630
56 627 52 530

995,273 1,074,506

730 958
936 646 I 021 976

Current maturities (Amount due within one year). 28 463 28 333
26QJUQ Z~KJZK

(1) First Mortgage Bonds

Substantially all of the Company's utilityplant is subject to liens under the First Mortgage Indenture.

The First Mortgage Indenture imposes certain limitations on the ability of the Company to
(i) declare or pay dividends on common stock; (ii) incur additional indebtedness or liens on
mortgaged property; and (iii)enter into a consolidation, merger or sale ofassets.

Series A, B, C and 0 Bonds may not be redeemed by the Company prior to maturity. Series E
Bonds may be redeemed at the option of the Company, in whole or in part, on or after February 1,

2006.
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The Company is not required to make mandatory redemption or sinking fund payments with respe'ct

to the bonds, prior, to maturity. II

Repurchases ofFirst iMortgage Bonds made during 1997 and 1996 are as follows (In thousands):

7.25% Series A
7.75% Series B.
8.25% Series C
8.90%'eries D
9.40% Series E.

Total.

Year Ended
Decexnber 31,

1997

8 12,005
16,073
29,697
12,825
'12 502

Period From
February 12

to
- December 31,

1996

5 46,726
71,217

8

(2) Pollution Control Bonds

The Company has four series of tax exempt Pollution Control Bonds in an aggregate principal
amount of approximately $ 193.1 million. Each of the tax exempt issues is enhanced by a letter of
credit. The Company's obligation to the issuing banks pursuant to the letter ofcredit reimbursement

agreements are secured by First Mortgage Collateral Series Bonds (the "Collateral Series Bonds" )

issued pursuant to the First Mortgage Indenture in the amount of the letters of credit. The effective

annual interest rate on the bonds is calculated to be 5.65% at December 31, 1997. The bonds may
be required to be repurchased at the holder's option or are subject to mandatory redemption upon
the occurrence of certain events, and are redeemable at the option of the Company under certain

circumstances.

(3) Promissory Note

The note has an annual interest rate of5.5% and is secured by certain furniture and fixtures.

(4) Capitalized Lease Obligation, Copper Turbine

The Company leases a turbine and certain other related equipment under a lease which expires in

July 2000, with renewal options for up to seven additional years. Semiannual lease payments,

including interest, are approximately $0.9 million through July 2000. The effective annual interest

rate implicit in this lease is calculated to be 9.6%.
C
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(5) Nuclear Fuel Financing

The Company has available a 8100 million credit facility that provides for working capital and up to
560 million for the financing of nuclear fuel. This financing is eflected through a trust that borrows
under the facility to acquire and'process the nuclear fuel. The Company is obligated to repay the
trust's borrowings, and has secured this obligation with Collateral Series Bonds. In the Company's
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the trust are reported as assets and liabilities of the
Company.

The letter ofcredit reimbursement agreements which enhance the Company's Pollution Control
Bonds and the $ 100 million credit facility require compliance with certain total debt and interest
coverage ratios. The Company maintained the required compliance throughout 1997.

Scheduled maturities of long-term and financing and capital lease obligations at December 31,
1997 are as follows gn thousands):

1998.
1999.
2000.
2001.
2002

8 28,463
93,412

1,815
62,797

104

The table above does not reflect nuclear fuel purchase commitments and related obligations and
rnaturities.
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G. Income Taxes

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 1997 and 1996 are presented below (In thousands):

Deferred tax assets:

Reorganization expenses financed with bonds ............
Capital leases.

Benefits of tax loss carryforwards.
Investment tax credit carryforward.
Alternative minimum tax credit carryforward.............
Other (including state deferred taxes) .

Total gross deferred tax assets..

Less valuation allowance:
Federal
State

Total valuation allowance.
Net deferred tax assets.

Deferred tax liabilities:
Plant, principally due to diAerences in depreciation

and basis differences
Other

Total gross deferred tax liabilities.
Net accumulated deferred income taxes....

18,308 S

2,633
222,764

20,410
11,954
82 929

358 998

12,661
17 149
29 810

329 188

22,526
2,873

256,510
20,410

9,627
92 643

404 589

12,661
17 941
30 602

373 987

(275,531)

~2
(288,416)

~0

December 31, December 31,
1997 1996

The deferred tax asset valuation allowance decreased by approximately S0.8 million in 1997,

S226.7 million in 1996 and $4.5 million in 1995. The decrease in 1997 was due to a reduction of
unused state net operating loss ("NOL")carryforward benefits, which had valuation allowances recorded

against them. The decrease in 1996 was primarily due to the Company's belief that, because of the Rate

Stipulation, Reorganization, and other factors, it is more likely than not that the Company will have

suAicient taxable income in the future to utilize most of the tax NOL carryforward benefits that had

valuation allowances recorded against them. The Company believes that the net deferred tax assets

would be fully realized at current levels of taxable income. Prior to the effective date of the

Reorganization, the Predecessor Company did not assume future taxable income for the utilization of
NOL carryforwards. Approximately S27.1 million of the Company's valuation allowance at

December 31, 1997, ifsubsequently recognized as a tax benefit, would be credited directly to capital in

excess ofstated value in accordance with SOP 90-7.
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The Company recognized income taxes as follows (In thousands):

Period From
February 12 .

Year Ended to
December 31, December 31,

1997 1996

Period From
January 1

to Year Ended
February 11, December 31,

1996 1995

Income tax expense (benefit):
Federal:

Current.
Deferred..
Investment tax credit amortization...............

Subtotal current operations ....................
Deferred tax benefit on extraordinary loss.......
Adjustment of assets to reorganization value

and liabilities to fair value (elimination
ofaccumulated deferred investment
tax credits).

Dcfcrred included in reorganization items ...

Income tax expense on interest income
during bankruptcy..

Total.

State:
Current.
Deferred..

Subtotal current operations ....................
Deferred included in reorganization items ...

Total.

2>382 3
28,087

30,469
(1,494)

3

4,307

(17,203)
38,828

21,625

278 S

5,045

(77,950)
(172,899) (1,194)

116 3 935

~5MS
(750) (5,024)

S ~5'&)

3 13,757

(2,340) (21,703)
um

(2,665) (10,774)

The current federal income tax expense for 1997 results primarily from the accrual ofalternative
minimum tax ("AMT")for 1997. Deferred federal income'tax includes an offsetting AMT benefit of
approximately 82.4 million.

The cu'rrent federal income tax benefit for 1996 resulted primarily from the carryback of 1996
AMT NOL to the 1993, 1994 and 1995 tax years and decreased by an expense for the reduction 'of
investment tax credits ("ITC") utilized. Deferred federal income tax includes an offsetting AMT
deferred expense of approximately 824.0 million and a benefit for an increase in ITC carryforward of
approximately 86.8 million.

I

The current federal income tax expense for 1995 results primarily from the accrual of AMT
expense. The deferred federal income tax benefit recorded in 1995 includes offsetting AMTcredits of
approximately 818.3 million. ITC utilized ofapproximately 84.6 million was recorded as a reduction to
current tax and included as a deferred tax expense.
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Federal income tax provisions differ from amounts computed by applying the statutory rate of
35% to book income (loss) before federal income tax as follows (ln thousands):

Ir

Period From
February 12

Year Ended to
December 31, December 31,

1997 1996

Period From
January 1

to YearEnded
February 11, December 31,

1996 1995

Federal income tax expense (benefit) computed
on income (loss) at statutory rate......................... 3 28,269 S 22,240

Difference due to:
ITC amortization (nct ofdeferred taxes) ............
Nondeductible bankruptcy costs .........................
Federal valuation allowance ...........'.................... e

. Adjustment of assets to reorganization value,
and liabilities to fair value (elimination
ofaccumulated deferred ITCs)......................

Reorganization costs (including the nontaxable
extraordinary gain on discharge ofdebt) .......

Other 706
- Total federal income tax expense (benefit) .... 5 ~i.BZ5 5 ~6K

EB'ective federal income tax rate.........................,

3, 45>339 S (14'o229)

(21 1) (1,838)
3,604 " 5,925

(204,848) (4,461)

(77,950)

(27,745)
~!!K

1'W252Z@ 5 ~K%)
Qsd '})% ~%

The Company had approximately 8636.5 million of tax NOL carryforwards, approximately
$20.4 million of ITC carryforwards and approximately $ 12.0 million ofAVtITcredit carryforwards as of
December 31, 1997. Ifunused, the NOL carryforwards would expire at the'end of the year 2011, the

ITC carryforwards would expire" in the years 2001 through 2005 and the AMT credit carryforwards
have an unlimited life.

The Reorganization and the associated implementation of fresh-start reporting gave rise to

significant items of income and expense for financial reporting purposes that are not included in taxable

income. These reorganization items resulted in an eoective tax rate for the period from January 1 to

K'ebruary 11, 1996 that is significantly'different than the current statutory rate of35%.

H. Commitments and Contingencies

Sale/Leaseback Indemni6cation Obligations

Pursuant to the Palo Verde sale/leaseback participation ag'reements and leases, if the lessors

incur additional tax liability or other loss as a result of federal or'tate tax assessments related to the

sale/leaseback transactions, the lessors may have claims against the Company for indemnification.

Pursuant to settlement agreements entered into under the Plan, certain of these indemnity obligations

related to tax matters have continued after the Effective Date.

One of the lessors in the sale/leaseback transactions related to Unit 2 of Palo Verde has notified

the Company that the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") has raised issues, primarily related to ITC
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claims by the -lessor, regarding the income tax treatment of. the sale/leaseback transactions. The
Company estimates that the total amount of potential claims for indemnification from all lessors related
to the issues raised by the IRS could approximate 810.0 million, exclusive of any applicable interest, if
the IRS prevails. Although the Company believes the lessor has meritorious defenses to the

IRS'osition,the Company cannot predict the outcome of the matter or the Company's liability for any
resulting claim for indemnification. The Company does not believe it is probable that a loss has been
incurred and, therefore, has made no provision in the accompanying financial statements related to this
matter.

Environmental Matters

The Company is subject to regulation with respect to air, soil and water quality, solid waste

disposal and other environmental matters by federal, state and local authorities. These authorities
govern current facility operations and exercise continuing jurisdiction over facility modifications.
Environmental regulations can change rapidly and are diAicult to predict. Because construction of new
facilities is subject to standards imposed by environmental regulation, substantial expenditures may be
required to comply with such regulations. The Company analyzes the costs of its obligations arising
from environmental matters on an ongoing basis, and management believes it has made adequate
provision in its financial statements'o meet such obligations. However, unforeseen expenses associated
with compliance could have a material adverse effect on the future operations and financial condition of
the Company.

PCB Treatment, Inc. The Company received a request from the U.S'. Environmental Protection
Agency ("EPA") to participate in the remediation of polychlorinated biphenyls ("PCBs") at two facilities
in Kansas and Missouri, which had been operated by PCB Treatment, Inc. ("PTI"). Presently, PTI has
discontinued operations and the EPA has determined that PTPs abandoned facilities require
remediation.

The Company and the PTI Steering Committee, which consists of the largest generators of the
PCBs sent to PTI, have executed a settlement agreement. In consideration for the payment of
approximately S0.2 million, the settlement agreement excuses any further liability by the Company to
the Steering Committee and indemnifies the Company for any liabilities to other parties as may be
asserted in the future.

On September 16, 1997, the EPA sent the Company a "general notice of liability"wherein the
agency formally notified the Company that it was considered a Potentially Responsible Party at the sites.

The Company believes any liability it may face at the sites is covered by. the settlement agreement.
Accordingly, the Company immediately notified the Steering Committee and demanded it defend and
indemnify the Company as provided in'he settlemerit agreement. The Steering Committee informed
the Company that it intends to honor this indemnity obligation.

The Company may still face liabilityfor possible deliveries ofPCBs by PTI to a third site which is

also subject to remedial action by the federal authorities, except to, the extent that those PCBs were
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transferred from the first site. The Company's records do not indicate any deliveries of PCBs to this
third site. The Company believes it is unlikely to face substantial unindemnified liabilities associated

with this third site.-

t'oal Mine 1kc~malion. The Company has been informed by APS that'he Company's estimated
financial obligation for coal mine reclamation at Four Corners is not being fully reflected in the costs for
which the Company is billed. APS, the operating agent for Four Corners, is performing an analysis to
establish an appropriate revised cost estimate. Based on preliminary estimates from APS and the coal

provider, the Company recorded a liability of approximately $ 12 million in 1996 which reflects the

present value of the estimated future costs of reclamation for its share of the coal mine reclamation
obligation.

I H

I.'itigation"
Litigationwith'La's Cruces

Jl

Las Cruces is attempting to replace the Company as the electric service provider in Las Cruces

by acquiring, through condemnation or a negotiated purchase, the distribution assets and "other facilities
used to provide electric service to customers in Las Cruces. Sales to customers in Las Cruces represent

approximately 8'/0 of the Company's operating revenues.
i

In*April1995, Las Cruces filed a complaint against the Company in New Mexico state court,
seeking'a declaratory judgment that Las Cruces has a right ofeminent domain to condemn the electric
distribution system and related facilities owned and operated by the Company within and adjacent to the

city limits. In May 1995, the Company removed the case to federal district court in New Mexico.

Following a trial on the merits, the Federal Magistrate granted the Company's motion to certify to the

Net Mexico Supreme Court the question ofwhether Las Cruces possesses the authority to condemn the

'Company's property for use as a municipal utilitywhen that property is already devoted to public use.

Prior to a ruling by the New Mexico Supreme Court, the New iMexico legislature enacted a bill which

purports to give Las Cruces the authority to condemn the Company's distribution system within its city
limits and a territory extending five miles beyond the municipal boundary. On February 11, 1998, the

New Mexico Supreme Court ruled that the subsequent legislation rendered moot the certified question

before'the Supreme Court. On February 26, 1998, the Company received notice from Las Cruces of its

intent to file a condemnation action in New Mexico district court. At this time the Company is unable

to predict the outcome of this litigation.

IfLas Cruces succeeds in its efforts to condemn the Company's distribution system, the Company
could lose its Las Cruces customer base, although the'ompany would be entitled to receive "just

compensation" as established by the court under New Mexico law. "Just compensation" is generally

defined as the amount ofmoney that would fairly compensate the party whose property is condemned. It
is the Company's opinion that this amount would be the diflerence'between the value of the Company's

entire system prior to the taking, as compared to the value of the entire system after the taking. See

Note B for a fulldiscussion ofstranded costs.
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Las Cruces has taken several actions to position itself to acquire.,portions of the Company's
distribution system and certain related facilities. In August 1994, Southwestern Public, Service Company
("SPS") and Las Cruces entered into a fifteen-year contract granting SPS the right to provide all of the
electric power and energy required by Las Cruces during the term of the contract. In addition,
Las Cruces sold approximately $ 73 million in revenue bonds in October 1995 to provide funding to
finance the acquisition by condemnation or negotiated purchase of the Company's electrical distribution
assets within and adjacent to the. Las Cruces city limits.

The Company has filed a lawsuit in the Dona Ana County District Court and is pursuing a

complaint simultaneously before the New Mexico Commission challenging the legality of the sale of the
revenue bonds. In addition, the New Mexico Commission is investigating the agreement between SPS

and Las Cruces which, under certain circumstances, would grant Las Cruces an option to sell to SPS

electric utility assets acquired through condemnation. In August 1996, the Dona Ana County District
Court issued an opinion letter stating that Section 3-23-3 of the New Mexico Municipal Code is

inapplicable to home rule municipalities and Las Cruces, therefore, was not required to acquire the
New Mexico Commission's approval before issuing revenue bonds to acquire utilityproperty. However,
the Court did agree with the Company that the revenue bonds, in this, case backed by utility revenues,
are subject to the same requirements as those imposed on other revenue bonds backed by gross receipts
tax revenues. Therefore, ifthe Court's finding of the applicability ofLas Cruces'ome rule authority is

overturned on appeal, the Company's position that the issuance of the bonds required prior approval
could be upheld. The Company filed an appeal with the" New Mexico Court ofAppeals and Las Cruces
requested an expedited ruling from the Court ofAppeals. In August 1997, the New Mexico Court of
Appeals certified to the'New,Mexico Supreme Court the issues related to Las Cruces'uthority to issue

the revenue bonds. Oral argument'before the Supreme Court was held in November 1997.

.In July 1996, Las Cruces exercised its right under Order No. 888 to request that the Company
calculate Las Cruces'tranded cost obligation should it leave the Company's system and operate its own
municipal utility. The Company's initial non-binding calculation was provided within the statutory
period. Las Cruces subsequently filed a request at the FERC for a determination that.Las Cruces would
have no stranded cost obligation to the Company or, in the, alternative, that the FERC. convene a

hearing to establish the amount of any stranded costs. In.August 1997, the FERC issued an order
de'nying Las Cruces'equest for a determination that Las Cruces would have no stranded cost obligation,
and providing for evidentiary hearings on the following stranded costs issues; (i) whether the Company
has met the "reasonable expectation" standard so as to justify recovery of stranded'osts from
Las Cruces; and (ii) ifso, the amount ofstranded costs that the Company may recover from Las Cruces.
The Company filed testimony in support of its recovery and calculation of stranded costs, calculated
pursuant to the FERC formula. After removal ofall distribution and transmission related expenses, the
Company's testimony reflects a generation stranded cost request of approximately $ 101 million. In
November 1997, Las Cruces filed testimony which takes the position that the Company is entitled to
stranded costs in the range of80 to $ 19 million. On December 19, 1997, the FERC staA'filed testimony
estimatin'g the Company's stranded cost to be 829.4.million. Hearings ofall issues were conducted at the
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FERC in February 1998. A final-decision from the FERG is not expected before late 1998 or'early
1999.

In April 1997, Las Cruces announced its plan to build a substation and distribution lines to serve

a new customer in a'city-owned industrial park. Las Cruces stated that SPS would construct, operate
and maintain the new substation facility, and that the rates for this new customer would be significant y
lower than the Company's current rates. Las Cruces has approved a contract with S to provi e

operation and maintenance services for the proposed Las Cruces electric distribution system, substations

and associated transmission facilities.,
h

T'e Company continues to'believe that it can provide lower cost electric service to customers in
Las Cruces'-than can be achieved through a municipal takeover. Accordingly, the Company has stated

its stron reference for a resolution of its diAerences with Las Cruces through negotiation rather than
litigation and condemnation. A negotiated settlement of the Company's pending rate case in
New Mexico could include a reduction in rates and settlement ofall'issues in New Mexico, which would
be likely to create increased political and economic pressure on the Company to reduce rates in Texas.

Th C pany is unable to predict the outcome ofLas Cruces'fforts to replace the Company as

its electric service provider or the eHects'it may have on the Companys financial position, resu tsI I of
operations and'cash flows. The Company does not believe it is probable that a loss has been. incurre

and, therefore, has made no provision'in the accompanying financial statements related to these matters.
4

Four Corners

In July 1995, the Navajo Nation enacted the Navajo Nation Air Pollution Prevention and

Control Act, the Navajo Nation Safe Drinking Water Act and the Navajo Nation Pesticide Act
(collectively, the "Acts"). In October 1995, the Pour Corners participants requested that the nited

States Secretary of the Interior resolve their dispute with the Navajo Nation regarding whether the 'Acts

apply to operatio'n o our orners. efF C . The Four Corners participants subsequently filed a lawsuit in the
D' C t f the Navajo Nation Window Rock District, seeking, among other things, a declaratory

judgment that (i) the Four Corners leases and federal easements preclude the application o e c o

the operation ofFour Corners; and (ii) the Navajo Nation and its agencies and courts lack adjudicatory

jurisdiction to determine the. enforceability of the Acts as applied to Four Corners. On cto er

1995, the Navajo Nation and the Four Corners participants agreed to stay the proceedings indefinitely

so the parties may attempt o reso veh 't t t solve the dispute without litigation. This matter remains inactive and the

Company is unable to predict the outcome of this case.

Water" Cases

San juan River Sgslem. The Four Corners participants are among the defendants in a suit filed by

the State of New Mexico in 1975 in state district court in New Mexico against the United States o

A
' C'ay" fFarmington NewMexico, the Secretary of the Interior as Trustee or t e Navajo

Nation and other Indian tribes and certain other defendants (State ofJVew Mexico ex re . '..~~no
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JYetuMexic'o State Engineer v. United States ofAmerica, et aI., Eleventh Judicial District Court, County of
San Juan, State of New Mexico, Cause No. 75-184). The suit seeks adjudication of the water rights of
the San Juan River Stream System in New Mexico, which, among other things, supplies the water used
at Four Corners. An agreement reached with the Navajo Nation in 1985 provides that ifFour Corners
loses. a portion of its water rights in the adjudication, the tribe will provide suAicient water from its
allocation to oflset the loss. The case has been inactive for many years and the Company is unable to
predict the outcome of this case.

Gila River System. In connection with the construction and operation ofPalo Verde, APS entered
into contracts with certain municipalities granting APS the right to purchase effluent for cooling
purposes at Palo Verde. In 1986, a summons was served on APS that required all water claimants in the
Lower Gila River Watershed in Arizona to assert any claims to water in an action pending in Maricopa
County Superior Court, titled In re The GeneraI Ajdudicalion ofAllRights to Use Water in the Gila River System

and Source. Palo Verde is located within the geographic area subject to the summons and the rights of the
Palo Verde Participants to the use ofgroundwater and effluent at Palo Verde is potentially at issue, in this
action. APS, as operating agent, filed claims that dispute the Court's jurisdiction over the Palo Verde
Participants'roundwater rights and their contractual rights to effluent relating to Palo Verde and,
alternatively, seek confirmation of such rights. In December 1992, the Arizona Supreme Court heard
oral argument on certain issues in this matter that are pending on interlocutory appeal.. Issues important
to the Palo Verde Participants'laims were remanded to the trial court for further action and the trial
court certified its decision for another interlocutory appeal to the Arizona Supreme Court. The Arizona
Supreme Court will hear argument on these issues in October 1998 and subsequently render a decision.
The Company is unable to predict the outcome of this case.

Other Legal Proceedings

The Company is a party to various other claims, legal actions and complaints. In many of these
matters, the Company has excess casualty liability insurance which is applicable. Based upon a review
of these claims and applicable insurance'overage, the Company believes that none of these claims will
have a material adverse effect on the, operations, financial position or,cash flows of the Company.,

I IIJ... Employee Benefits

Pension Plan"
h b \k ~

The Company's Retirement Income Plan (the "Retirement Plan" ) covers employees who have
completed one year of service with the Company, are 21 years of age and work at least a minimum
number of hours each year. The Retirement Plan is a qualified noncontributory defined benefit plan.
Upon retirement or death of a vested plan participant, assets of the Retirement Plan are used to pay
benefit obligations under the Retirement Plan. Contributions from the Company'are,based on the
minimum funding 'amounts required by the Department of Labor and IRS under provisions of the
Retirement Plan, as actuarially calculated. The assets of the Retirement Plan are invested in equity
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securities, fixed income instruments and cash equivalents and are managed by professional investment
managers appointed by the Company.

The Coinpany's Non-Qualified Retirement Income Plan is a non-funded defined benefit plan
which covers certain former employees of the Company. The pension cost for the Non-Qualified
Retirement Income Plan is based on substantially the same actuarial methods and economic
assumptions as those used for the Retirement Plan.

During 1996, as part of the Reorganization, the Company terminated the Non-Qualified
Retirement Income Plan with respect to all active employees resulting in a curtailment gain of
approximately 82.0 million. In conjunction therewith, the Company entered into retirement agreements

with ten oAicers who had been participants in the Non-Qualified Retirement Income Plan resulting in
an increase in the accumulated benefit obligation of approximately 310.2 million. This increase in the

accumulated benefit obligation and the curtailment gain were recognized as reorganization items by the

Predecessor Company.

Net periodic pension cost for the Retirement Plan and the Non-Qualified Retirement Income
Plan under SFAS No. 87, "Employers'ccounting for Pensions," is made up of the components listed

below as determined using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method (In thousands):

Period From
Year February 12

Ended to
December 31, December 31~

1997 1996

Period From
January 1 Year

to Ended
February 11, December 31,

1996 1995

Service costs for benefits earned during the

period .

Interest costs on projected benefit obligation .......

Actual return on plan assets

Net amortization and deferral..............................

Recognition ofpreviously unrecognized items.....

Net periodic pension cost recognized.............

2,402 S

6,737
(12,469)

7,375

2,148
5,774

(5,019)
842

354 3
749

'570)
113

2,011
5,157

(9,267)
6,008

The assumed annual discount rates used in determining the net periodic pension cost were

7.50%, 7.25% and 8.50% for 1997, 1996 and 1995, respectively.

The pension cost includes amortization of unrecognized items. In the application of fresh-start

reporting, the Company recorded the then existing unrecognized items as of February 11, 1996 in the

amount ofapproximately $21.7, million.
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The funded status of the plans and amount recognized in the Company's balance slieets at
December 31, 1997 and 1996 are presented below (In thousands):

1997,

December 31
, 1996

Non-
Qualified

Retirexnexxt ., Retirement
Income, Income

Plan Plan

Non-
Qualified

Retixexnent Retirement
. Income, Income

Plan Plan

Actuarial present value ofbenefit obligations:
Vested benefit obligation.
Accumulated benefit obligation.
Projected benefit obligation.

Plan assets at fair value
Projected benefit obligation in excess ofplan assets ......

Unrecognized net (gain) loss from past experience........

Adjustment required to recognize minimum liability....
Accrued pension liability

2~~23) !'Mk) ~533K) B=~UZL)~~al)! &Ma) ~max) mme)
S (83,812) S (19,324) S (72,951) S (18,171)

74 114 — 61 460

(9,698) (19,324)

(4,887) 162

~162
(11,491) (18,171)

(3,520) " (1,368)

M'H5) 5 M~) !~1.Qll) 5 ~9'i')
,- Actuarial assumptions used in determining the actuarial present value of projected benefit

obligations are as follows: 'S

1997 1996

Discount rate
6

Rate of increase in compensation levels..

Expected long-term'ate of return on plan assets ...

7.QQ

5.QQ

8.5Q%

7.50%
5 QQ%

8 50%

Other Postretirement Benefits

The Company provides certain health care benefits for retired employees and their eligible
dependents and life insurance benefits for retired employees only. Substantially all of the Company's
employees may become eligible for those benefits if they reach retirement age while working for the

Company. Those benefits are accounted for under SFAS No. 106, "Employers'ccounting for
Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions." Contributions from the Company are b~ed on the
funding amounts required by the Texas Commission in the Rate Stipulation. The assets of the Other
Postretirement Benefits Plan are invested in fixed income instruments and cash equivalents and are
managed by professional investment managers appointed by the Company.
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The benefit cost includes amortization of unrecognized items. In the application of fresh-start

reporting, the Company recorded'he then existing unrecognized items as of February 11, 1996 in the

amount ofapproximately 852.3 million.

Net periodic 'postretirement benefit cost is made up of the components listed below (In
thousands):

Year
Ended

December 31,
1997

Period
From

February 12
to

December 31,
1996

Period
From

January 1 Year
to Ended

February 11, December31,
1996 1995

Service costs for benefits earned during
the period

interest costs on accumulated postretirement
benefit obligation..

Actual return on plan assets............................

Amortization of transition obligations ............

Amortization of (gain) loss ..............................
Recognition ofpreviously unrecognized

items.
Net periodic postretirement benefit cosf

recognized

5,254
(250)

(7)

4,723
(146)

$ 2,538 8 2,209 S 279 S

607

263
60

52 340

1,603

4,046

2,363
(54)

'he funded status of the plan and amount recognized in the Company's balance sheets at
December 31, 1997 and 1996 are presented below (In thousands):

December 31

1997 1996

Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation:
Retirees.
Active participants:

Fully eligible
Other.

Plan assets at fair value
Accumulated postretireinent benefit obligation in excess ofplan assets........

Unrecognized net gain from past experience different from that assumed ...

Accrued postretirement benefit liability.

(10,171)

(83,973)
8 822

(75,151)

(10,964)
36 727

(77,599)
8 050

(69,549)
1 764

S (35,846) S (29,908)

For measurement purposes, a 10.9% annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered

health care benefits was assumed for 1998; the rate was assumed to decrease gradually to 6% for 2004
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and remain at that level thereafter. The health care cost trend rate assumption has„a significant eflect on
the amounts reported. To illustrate, increasing the assumed health care cost trend rates by one
percentage point in each year would increase the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation as of
December 31, 1997 by 310.5 million and the aggregate of the service and interest cost components of
net periodic postretirement benefit cost for the year ended December 31, 1997 by $ 1.2 million.

Actuarial assumptions used in determining the actuarial present value of accumulated
postretirement benefit obligations are as follows:

1997 1996

Discount rate .

Rate of increase in compensation levels....
Rate of return on plan assets.

7.QQo/o

5.00o/o

4'.50o/o

7.50'/o

5 00o/o

g 5Qo/o

AllEmployee Cash Bonus Plan

The All Employee Cash Bonus Plan (the "Bonus Plan" ), introduced in early 1997, was
established to reward employees for their contribution in helping the Company attain its corporate goals.
Eligible employees below oflicer level would receive a cash bonus if the Company attained established
levels of safety, customer satisfaction and deleveraging (or cash flow) during 1997. The cash flow goal
had to be met before any bonus amounts would be paid, and improvement in cash flow must be'greater
than any bonus amounts paid. The Company was able to surpass the required minimum levels of
improvement in two out of the three performance measures. As a result of the Company's success, the
Company distributed approximately 32.3 million in cash bonuses to all eligible employees in early
February 1998. The bonus was expensed in the fourth quarter of 1997. The Company has renewed the
Bonus Plan in 1998 with similar goals.

K. Franchises and Significant Customers

City ofEl Paso Franchise

The Company's major franchise is with the City of El Paso, Texas. The franchise agreement
provides an arrangement for the Company's utilization ofpublic rights-of-way necessary to serve its retail
customers within the City of El Paso. The franchise with the City of El Paso extends through August 1,
2005.

Las Cruces Franchise

The Company's franchise with Las Cruces expired in March 1994. The Company has
continued to provide electric service to customers within Las Cruces; however, Las Cruces is attempting
to replace the Company as the'electric service provider in Las Cruces. Recently, the New Mexico
legislature has passed, legislation which purports to give Las Cruces the authority to condemn the
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Company's distribution system and related assets. IfLas Cruces succeeds in its efforts to condeinn the
Company's distribution system, the Company could lose its Las Cruces customer base. See Note I.

MilitaryInstallations

The Company currently serves Holloman Air Force Base ("Holloman"), White Sands Missile

Range ("White Sands" ) and the United States Army AirDefense Center at Fort Bliss ("Ft. Bliss"). The
Company's sales to the military bases represented approximately $ 19.6 million or 3'/0 of operating
revenues in 1997. The Company signed a new contract with Ft. Bliss in August 1996, which provides

that Ft. Bliss will take service from the Company through 1999, with the right thereafter to continue
service on a year-to-year basis for an additional two years. The Company has a, contract for service to

Holloman for a ten-year term which began in December 1995. In August 1996, the Army advised the

Company that White Sands would continue to purchase retail electric service'rom the Company
pursuant to the existing retail service contract for an indefinite period, until written termination of such

contract by the Army not less than one year in advance of the termination date.

L. Financial Instruments

SFAS No. 107, "Disclosure about Fair Value ofFinancial Instruments," requires the Company to

disclose estimated fair values for its financial instruments. The Company has determined that cash and

temporary investments, accounts receivable, long-term contract receivable, accounts'ayable, customer

deposits, decommissioning trust funds, long-term debt, and preferred stock meet the definition of
financial instruments. The carrying amounts of cash and temporary investments, accounts receivable,

accounts payable, an'd customer deposits approximate fair value because of the short maturity of these

items. Based on prevailing interest rates, the fair value of the long-term contract receivable

approximates its carrying value. Decommissioning trust funds are carried at market value.
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The fair values of the Company's long-term debt, including the current portion1thereof, and
preferred stock, are based on estimated market prices for similar issues at December 31, 1997 and 1996
and are presented in the table below (In thousands):

1997
Estimated

Carrying Fair
Amount Value

1996
Estimated

Carrying Fair
Amount " Value

First Mortgage Bonds..
Pollution Control Bonds ......
Nuclear Fuel Financing(1) ...

Total.

$ 744,781 S 814,857 S 827,883 S 864,047
193,135 '193,135 (2) 193,135 193,135 (2)
51 999

"
51 999 (5) 46 660 46 660 (5)

~LRLi ~52.991 li).I)(i'%lGL812
Preferred Stock .

(1) Includes current maturities.
(2) The interest rate on the Company's pollution control bonds is reset weekly to reflect current market

rates. Consequently, the carrying value approximates fair value.
(3) The interest rate on the Company's financing and capital lease obligations for nuclear fuel purchases

is reset every quarter to reflect current market rates. Consequently, the carrying value approximates
fair value.
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M. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

1997 uarters
~4th 3d ~B 1t

Briodlslt
Iehniary12

1996 uarters March 31,
4th 3 d ~d 1996

Period

Fm
January 1

to
Iehrrraxy ll,

1996
(In thousands except for share data)

Operating avenues....................................

Operating income......................................

Income(loss) before reorganization items

and extlaordrnary rtems- ---.........-.....
Reorganization items, nct of income

tax benefit .

Extnordinary kxs on reptmtrases ofddx,
net of federal income tax benefit..........

Ecraorrfirmygain on dichaauge ofdebt....
Net income ~to common stock.....

1hsic earnings per common share:

Income before extraordinary items......

Extraordinary krss on repurchases of
debt, net of federal income tax
benefit..

Extraordinary gain on~ of
debt...

Net income..............................................

Diluted earnings per common share:

Income before extraordinary items......

Extraordinary loss on repuKImses of
debt, net of federal income tax
benefit...

Extraordinary gain on~ of
debt..

Net income..............................................

8,743 23,988 161245 5,592 7,960 22,770 9,500 1,689

'35)

5,282

(69)

20,588

(427)

12,580

(21244)

199 4,898 191793 6,603 137

0.089 0.343 0.216 0.040 0.082 0.329 0.110 0.002

(0.001) (0.001) (0.007) (0.037)

0.088 0.342 0.209 0.003 0.082 0.329 0.110 0.002

0.088 0.342 0.216 0.040 0.081 0.329 0.110 0.002

(0.001) (0.001) - (0.007) (0.037)

0.087 0.341 0.209 0.003 0.081 0.329 0.110 0.002

$ 143,766 $ 170,140 $ 144,275 $ 135,857 S 143,023 S 166,656 S144,388 S 69,907
31,210 59,179 40,045 31,233 29,958 57,964 40,730 15,839

S 54,949
1,639

(41053)

122,251

264,273 (2)
382,471

3.325

7 435 (2)

10.760

3.325

ih435 (2)
10.760

(1) Includes an all employee cash bonus. See Note J.
(2) Reflects the discharge ofobligations subject to compromise for less than their recorded amounts.
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Item 9.

'4

Changes in and Disagreements withAccountants on Accounting and Financial
'isclosure

Not applicable.

PART IIIand PART IV.

The information set forth in Part IIIand Part IV has been omitted from this Annual Report to
Shareholders.
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SOUUTHERN CALIFORNIA



A'Profile of Southern'California Edison Company

Ir

Southern California Edison (SCE) is one of the nation's. largest electric utilities. Headquartered in
Rosemead, Califo'rnia, SCE is a subsidiary of Edison International, which is primarily an energy'-services
company.

; SCE, a 111-year-old investor-owned utility, serves '4.3 million customers in Central and Southern
California. More than 11 million people live in its 50,000-square-mile service territory.
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